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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
“STOCK EXCHANGE?”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which
a higher investment risk may be attached than other
companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing
in such companies and should make the decision to invest
only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities
traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market
volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no
assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the
securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and
expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever
arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the
contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Global
Strategic Group Limited (the “Company” and its subsidiaries,
collectively referred to as the “Group”) collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the
Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of
giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors,
having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best
of their knowledge and belief the information contained in this
report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not
misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement herein or this report
misleading.
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Financial Highlights

As at As at As at As at
30 September 30 September 30 September 31 December
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
W=B=-% H-F-TF H-F-nE i
hA=1H NB=1H NA=+A ZE-N\F ZE—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TAT TET FAT TET
Results ES
- Revenue - & 71,486 42,734 35,925 108,716 49,749
- Loss i (22,767) (274,163) (63,662) 88,431 (39,998)
- Loss per share -BREE
Basic (in HK cents) EA(HIL) (15.20) (110.89) (40.71) (98.92) (49.35)
Diluted (in HK cents) i (BI) (15.20) (110.89) (42.65) (98.92) (49.35)
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
(BE51) (25 (&5 (&5
Financial Position BBERR
— Non-current assets —FRBEE 188,914 184,615 436,512 488,312 516,382
- Current assets - REEE 56,329 41,053 58,809 65,605 17,124
- Current liabilities -REERE 99,598 118,415 110,412 61,903 51,169
- Non-current liabilities —FRBAR 73,013 73,506 107,126 134,599 261,230
- Equity — s 72,632 33,747 277,783 357,415 221,107
Financial Ratios g g2
- Current assets/Current liabilitles —RBEE,/ FEEE 0.6 0.3 0.5 1.1 0.3
- Assets/Equity —BE/x 3.4 6.7 1.8 15 2.4
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MRZTZ—F+=A++tH Asat 17 December 2021

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Wang Wenzhou (Chief Executive Officer)
Wu Guoming

Duan Fanfan

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Leung Oh Man, Martin
Sun Zhi Jun
Chung Ling Cheong Dicky

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ngai Tsz Hin Michael

COMPLIANCE OFFICER
Wang Wenzhou

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Wang Wenzhou
Ngai Tsz Hin Michael

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Leung Oh Man, Martin (Chairman)
Sun Zhi Jun

Chung Ling Cheong Dicky

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

Sun Zhi Jun (Chairman)

Leung Oh Man, Martin

Chung Ling Cheong Dicky

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Sun Zhi Jun (Chairman)

Leung Oh Man, Martin

Chung Ling Cheong Dicky

REGISTERED OFFICE
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

PO Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman lIslands

BITES
IXA(TFBAAR)
REH

BRAH

BAUFHTES
R
FHE
e

DNEME
{527 #F

REXE
EXAE

REAR
IXA
7

BREES
R ()
HEE

N E

ADERRFMEES

BB ()
BHX
F498

REZET
REE(ER)
R

E98

EER g Y7

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

PO Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKERE EEE B RN & ANNUAL REPORT 2021 i



=S

Corporate Information
RZTZ—F+=A++tH Asat 17 December 2021
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Corporate Information
MRZTZ—F+=A++tH Asat 17 December 2021
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CEQ’s Statement

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Global Strategic Group Limited (the “Company”), | am hereby
pleased to present the audited results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred as, the “Group”) for the year
ended 30 September 2021 for your review.

OVERVIEW

During the year, the Group’s revenue was approximately
HK$71.5 million, of which the natural gas business recorded a
segment revenue of approximately HK$61 million, accounting for
approximately 85% of the Group’s revenue. The Group recorded
a loss of approximately HK$23 million for the year (2020: HK$274
million). The decrease in loss for the year ended 30 September
2021 was mainly due to significant impairment made in 2020
causing to reduce the carrying amounts of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets as well as respective depreciation
and amortisation accordingly.

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

It was a turbulent period in 2020 and 2021 for global economy
due to the COVID-19 pandemic, and it is expected to recover
and enter 2022 with a relatively optimistic outlook. Despite the
uncertainty as to when the COVID-19 pandemic might come to an
end, the business environment had improved in 2021 relative to
2020.

Even though the external economic environment continues to be
weak, since the target customers for the Group’s key business
of natural gas supply is mainly domestic business, we remain
optimistic about the prospects of the natural gas business. In
the natural gas supply business, the Group holds the exclusive
right to supply natural gas in Yichang, Hubei for 30 years. With
this advantage, the number of potential customers has increased
correspondingly with the continuous expansion of the industrial
park.
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THAERHRSE
CEQ’s Statement

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)

Looking forwards, | am optimistic that the Group will perform
much better with the result of the natural gas segment. Currently,
the natural gas segment mainly consists of the natural gas
pipeline business. The Group has developed a natural gas sales
network of certain scale. The network is still expanding and with
the clean energy policy carried out by the PRC government, our
team believes the natural gas business will grow steadily under
the current economic environment and significant revenue will be
contributed by the natural gas business. The natural gas segment
will expand and continue to be the core business segment of the
Group.

Given the challenges mentioned above, the Group will be more
cautious and conservative in seeking new potential mergers
and acquisitions, business integration and expansion in order to
sustain the growth and profitability of the Group.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Here, on behalf of the Board of the Company, | hereby wish to
extend my gratitude for the hard work contributed by all staff and
the Directors, as well as the support to the Company from all our
customers, creditors, business partners and the shareholders. We
will adhere to proven management strategy, grasp market trend
and opportunities, and endeavor to bring greater value to our
shareholders and make new contribution to the community.

Wang Wenzhou
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 17 December 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The continuing operations of the Group recorded revenue of
approximately HK$71,486,000 for the year ended 30 September
2021 (“YE2021") as compared with approximately HK$42,734,000
for the year ended 30 September 2020 (“YE2020”), gross profit of
approximately HK$20,263,000 for YE2021 against approximately
HK$12,987,000 for YE2020 and net loss of approximately
HK$22,767,000 for YE2021 as compared to approximately
HK$266,818,000 for YE2020.

Analysis on the performance of the Group including revenue
and results of natural gas operations, leasing business and
independent financial advisory before allocation of the corporate
overheads is set out in note 11 “Segment Information” to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group generated revenue from sales of natural gas and
pipeline installation services of approximately HK$57,558,000
and HK$3,276,000 respectively for YE2021 as compared to
approximately HK$37,438,000 and HK$563,000 respectively
for YE2020. Revenue generated from leasing business and
independent financial advisory business were in aggregate
of HK$10,512,000 and HK$140,000 for YE2021 respectively
as compared to YE2020, it recorded HK$4,234,000 and
HK$499,000, in aggregate, respectively.

The total operating expenses, including selling and distribution
costs, general and administrative expenses, for YE2021 was
approximately HK$40,533,000 as compared to approximately
HK$51,580,000 for the YE2020, representing a decrease of
21% which was attributable to significant impairment made
in 2020 causing to reduce the carrying amounts of property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets as well as respective
depreciation and amortisation accordingly.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Finance costs of the Group were approximately HK$4,204,000 for
YE2021 (YE2020: approximately HK$8,440,000), which consisted
of the imputed interest expense on non-current interest free loan
from non-controlling shareholders of a subsidiary and its related
parties, interests on bank borrowings and non-convertible bonds.
The decrease was mainly came from the decrease in imputed
interest on loan from non-controlling shareholders and interest
on non-convertible bond and convertible bond, which has been
reassigned as non-convertible bond upon maturity as well as
repayment of non-convertible bond during the year.

Loss for YE2021 was decreased by 92% to approximately
HK$22,767,000, compared with loss of approximately HK$274,163,000
for YE2020. The decrease in loss for YE2021 was mainly due to
the net effect of impairment losses made on both current and
non-current assets for YE2020 as well as aforementioned reasons.

UPDATE ON NATURAL GAS BUSINESS

The Group acquired EE MEHKXARFABR A A (Yichang
Biaodian Natural Gas Utilization Co., Ltd.*) (“Yichang Biaodian”),
in 2016.
Although the performance of Yichang Biaodian significantly

which is engaged in natural gas supply operation,

improved, Yichang Biaodian has still suffered losses since
acquisition resulting from the following reasons:

(i)  the pipeline installation in Yaojiagang Chemical Zone has
been substantially completed in 2018, which covered
most area of the zone to supply natural gas to factories
operating in the zone. However, due to the slow progress
of the chemical enterprises’ removals and construction of

new factories in the zone, some potential customers did not

engage with Yichang Biaodian for natural gas supply;

(i)  some customers delayed the transformation from coal-boiler
to natural gas boiler as they concerned that the unstable
supply of industrial natural gas happened in 2018, will
continue onward; and worry that due to the peak period of
winter gas consumption in recent years, the government’s
policy of restricting natural gas to civilian use will affect
business;
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Management Discussion and Analysis

UPDATE ON NATURAL GAS BUSINESS (Continued)

(i) Impact of the novel coronavirus (“COVID-19”)

Due to the outbreak of the COVID-19 at the beginning
of the 2020, Hubei Province’s industrial operations were
suspended until the full return to normal in April 2020. In
order to alleviate the impact of the epidemic on the industry,
the local government reduced the sales price per m® of non-
residential natural gas from RMB3.18 to RMB2.8 from 1 April
2020. And, the sales price remained unchanged since then.

By considering the reasons as aforesaid, the management of the
Group performed impairment testing in accordance with Hong
Kong Accounting Standard 36 “Impairment of Assets” (“HKAS
36”) on the assets belongs to Yichang Biaodian.

The key assumptions used in the value in use (“VIU”) calculation
for impairment assessment based on a valuation prepared by an
independent valuer are those regarding the expected average
revenue growth rate, expected average net profit margin and
discount rate for the next five years:

- Expected average revenue growth rate and expected
average profit margin for the next five years were based on
past practices and management’s expectations on market
development; and

- Discount rate was estimated using pre-tax rates that reflect
current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the cash generating unit (“CGU”), i.e.
Yichang Biaodian.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED ¥R R B & B 45 R A &)

RAREBNRTER (#)

(i)

FATRES([2019BRFEERK]) 2

=245
ok

HR2019BRBERN - T - F )
B’E - R ETIXREFELEE T -F
FUAZERLELESE EMBRFERT&

MEZBEATRIVE m_F_%
/A — B RS A AERRARA
HEEEmARES ST TAEARS
2.870 ° WH - HIBEE - HEEBER
R -

REBRARE  AEEEEERERLES
APERIFE36H BERE] ([BESHERIF
365 D E R BN E SIRHEEETRER

R

ER B ER R G EH R E R (SR &
REE(EREEDFEMBIERRAE
AEREFOFAPFHHSRRE - BHFH
AERI = R BEIR AR

ARAFHNEHFHRAIERRLTRH
FEOMBERDERBEED R EEESH
MISBRNTEADR &

RRIR R THIR A R BRE AT 5 B B A0S
REENFELReELBEM([REE
B (EERHA) ARMRRAB
AR R A 5T

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 &%

11



12

EEENWR O
Management Discussion and Analysis

UPDATE ON NATURAL GAS BUSINESS (Continued)

The key assumptions used in the impairment assessment in 2021
changed from that of 2020:

- In 2021,
the next five years was 13%. In 2020, the expected revenue

the expected revenue growth rate estimated for

growth rate estimated for the next five years was 22%; and

- In 2021,
estimated for the next five years was 2%.

the expected average positive net profit margin
In 2020, the
expected average negative net profit margin estimated for
the next five years was 4%.

The valuation method of discounted cash flow was adopted for
the calculation of the VIU of the CGU. In accordance with HKAS
36, the recoverable amount should be the higher of (i) the fair
value less costs of disposal, and (ii) the VIU. After assessing both
the VIU and the fair value, the valuation opted for the VIU because
it was the higher between the two figures. VIU is based on the
estimated future cash flows expected to be derived from the CGU
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate of
13.23% (2020: 12.05%) that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU.
There is no change to the valuation method adopted in 2020 and
2021.

Based on the assessment, the recoverable amount of Yichang
Biaodian was approximately to its carrying amount and no
impairment losses were recognised in 2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

UPDATE ON INDEPENDENT FINANCIAL
ADVISORY BUSINESS

The Group acquired LW Insurance Brokers Limited (“LW
Insurance”), which is engaged in insurance brokerage, in 2019.
However, LW Insurance has suffered losses since acquisition
resulting from the following reasons:

(i)  keen competition from the competitors in the industry;

(i) the worsened local economy as a result of political unrest in
Hong Kong; and

(i)  the impact from the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic,

that less potential customers seek professional advice from the
Group.

Also, no professional party was acting as representative of LW
Insurance for compliance purpose, thus the management of the
Group considered to suspend the business.

By considering the reasons above, the management of the Group
estimated the recoverable amount of LW Insurance was zero and
impairment losses on goodwill, of HK$580,000 was recognised
for the year ended 30 September 2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group’s operation is being financed by internally generated
cashflow, bank borrowings and external financing. The Group
follows a policy of prudence in managing its working capital. The
management will continue to closely monitor the financial position
of the Group to maintain its financial capacity.

Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders of a subsidiary
and its related parties

As at 30 September 2021, the amounts due to J# 1t 12 # X
SRR AR A A (Hubei Biaodian Natural Gas Co., Ltd*) (“Hubei
Biaodian”) and its subsidiary, Mr. Xiong Songgan (“Mr. Xiong”)
and his controlled entities, and B S A B &R AR 2 7
(Yichang Dibogang Energy Co., Ltd.*) (“Yichang Dibogang”) were
approximately HK$27,433,000, HK$16,925,000 and HK$65,000
respectively, when comparing approximately HK$26,160,000,
HK$14,281,000 and nil at 30 September 2020 respectively. Hubei
Biaodian owns 20.92% of Yichang Biaodian and Mr. Xiong is the
controlling shareholder of Hubei Biaodian. Yichang Dibogang is
the 24.49% non-controlling shareholder of Yichang Biaodian.

The advance made by the above non-controlling shareholders of
the Group during the year was used for Yichang Biaodian’s capital
expenditure purpose.

Bank and other borrowings

The bank borrowings assigned RMB14,696,000 (equivalent
to HK$17,892,000) carry an interest at a variable rate, and
RMB144,000 (equivalent to HK$175,000) carry an interest at a
fixed rate, with an effective interest rate of 5% to 15% per annum.
The bank borrowings are guaranteed and pledged with several
properties owned by Mr. Xiong, his spouse and a company held
and controlled by him, and personal guaranteed by Ms. Wang
Lingsheng.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE (Continued)

Bank and other borrowings (Continued)

As at 30 September 2021,

(a)

the Group’s aggregate amount of bank and cash balances
was approximately HK$23,411,000 (as at 30 September
2020: approximately HK$1,978,000).

the Group’s total borrowings comprised (i) amounts due to
non-controlling shareholders of a subsidiary and its related
parties;
convertible bonds; (v) lease liabilities; and (vi) due to related

(i) bank borrowings; (i) due to directors; (iv) non-
parties totalling approximately HK$95,735,000 (as at 30

September 2020: HK$127,657,000).

the Group’s total gearing ratio was approximately 99%
(as at 30 September 2020: 372%).
calculated as the Group’s borrowings net of cash available

The gearing ratio was
divided by total equity of the Group.
the current ratio of the Group was approximately 0.57 (as at

30 September 2020: 0.35).
to closely monitor the financial position of the Group to

The management will continue

maintain its financial capacity.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE (Continued)

Use of proceeds from placing of share under general mandate
in 2020

RBEE  MBERRELXRE
(%)

CERECRFERB-REREEEROHAER
HR®

Unutilised
balance as at
30 September

Utilised
amount up to
30 September

Unutilised
balance as at
30 September

Use of net proceeds JTiEEE 2020 2021 2021
R-B-ZF HE-ZE-—f R=Z2=-—F

hA=+H hBA=+H hBA=+H

2 RE AL ZEBERASE 2 ARE A

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FHEIT T THET

Legal and professional fee UEYEEX: 317 317 =
Staff cost 8 TR 1,926 1,926 —
Settlement of bonds BEES 2,766 2,766 =
5,009 5,009 -

During the year ended 30 September 2021, the usage of net
proceeds from placing are consistent with the intended usage as
disclosed in the announcement date 16 March 2020 and 9 April
2020.

Capital Reorganisation and Rights Issue

On 20 November 2020, the Company proposed to implement the
following capital reorganisation (the “Capital Reorganisation”) involving
(a) the reduction of the issued share capital of the Company by
cancelling the paid up capital to the extent of HK$0.49 on each of
the then issued existing shares such that the par value of each of
the then issued adjusted shares will be reduced from HK$0.50 to
HK$0.01 (the “Capital Reduction”); and (b) immediately following
the Capital Reduction, each of the authorised but unissued existing
shares of par value HK$0.50 each be sub-divided into fifty ordinary
shares of par value of HK$0.01 each. At the same time, the Company
proposed, subject to the Capital Reorganisation becoming effective,
to implement the Rights Issue on the basis of four rights shares for
every one adjusted share held on the record date at the subscription
price of HK$0.16 per rights share (the “Rights Issue”), to raise
approximately HK$58,350,000 by issuing 364,688,000 rights shares
to the qualifying shareholders. Details of the Capital Reorganisation
are disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 20 November
2020 and 3 August 2021 and circular dated 26 March 2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE (Continued)

Capital Reorganisation and Rights Issue (Continued)

On 21 April 2021, the Capital Reorganisation and Rights Issue have
been approved by the shareholders in the Company’s extraordinary
general meeting.

On 4 August 2021, the Company announced that an order
confirming the capital reduction granted by the court from Cayman
Islands on 3 August 2021 (Cayman Islands time), the nominal value
of each of the Company’s issued share was reduced from HK$0.5
to HK$0.01 each by cancelling the paid-up capital to the extent of
HK$0.49 on each issued share and the existing issued share capital
of HK$45,586,000 was reduced by HK$44,674,280 to HK$911,720
comprising 91,172,000 shares of HK$0.01 each with effect from
4 August 2021. As a result, an amount of HK$44,674,280 will
be credited to accumulated losses on 4 August 2021. Upon the
completion of capital reduction effective on 4 August 2021, the
number of authorised shares of the Company will be increased from
160,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.5 each to 8,000,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each. Each share ranks pari passu in all
respects.

The Rights Issue was completed on 9 September 2021, and an
aggregate of 364,688,000 Rights Shares were allotted and issued
to the qualifying shareholders accordingly, which carried the
aggregate nominal value of HK$3,646,880. The gross proceeds
raised from the Rights Issue were approximately HK$58,350,000
and the net proceeds from the Rights Issue after deducting the
expenses were approximately HK$56,259,000. The net price per
Rights Share was approximately HK$0.15.

The Company intended to apply the net proceeds from the Rights
Issue for the redemption of outstanding bonds issued by the
Company, the payment of outstanding professional fees, and the
general working capital of the Group as previously disclosed in
the Capital Reorganisation Announcements and Circular and the
Rights Issue Announcements and Prospectus. As at the date of
this report the Company had partially utilised the net proceeds in
accordance with the said intention.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE (Continued) (%)

Capital Reorganisation and Rights Issue (Continued)

The breakdown of the Company’s proposed use of the Rights
Issue Proceeds as disclosed in the Prospectus and its actual use
of the Rights Issue Proceeds from the date of completion of the
Rights Issue to 30 September 2021 were as follows:

Actual use

of the Rights
Issue Proceeds
from the date
of completion
of the Rights

EXEARMKRE)

Balance of
the unutilised
Rights Issue

RBEE  MBERRELXRE

ARBNERMEE 2 HIRMERREEZS
RAREMERAEEHRKR K AREE_F =
—FNA=TRLEZER

HESIIT :

Expected
timeline for
utilising the

remaining net

Issue to Proceeds as of proceeds as of
30 September 30 September 30 September
Intended use EERAR 2021 2021 2021
Bt A ERAR
BB —F —B=-—F
hBA=+H R=-ZB=—%F AA=+8H
AR TS hA=+8 ZBTHB
MEZ RAGR MEFHEZES
BRRAR FRSRRIAAE R R &
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFHT T
Legal and professional fee FRERBEEE 1,316 1,684 On or before
31 Mar 2022
N-E——
ZA=+—RA%zAl
Staff cost 8T 1,446
Rental e 123
Other operating expenses Hg@EMx 1,935
General working capital —REEED 3,504 1,755 On or before
31 March 2022
RZEBEZ—F
=A=+—H3%ZH
Finance cost B 7 Pk AR 1,629
Settlement of bonds BEES 24,524
Redemption of outstanding bonds & B3 17 SM&E 5 26,153 21,847 On or before
31 March 2022
N—_E_——
=A=+—HAzzA
30,973 25,286
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Management Discussion and Analysis

DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

Great China Inc Limited

On 1 April 2021,

the Company entered into a share transfer

agreement with an independent third party to dispose its

100% equity interest in a wholly-owned subsidiary for a cash
consideration of HK$10,000. The disposal was completed on 1
April 2021.

LITIGATION

Yichang Biaodian Natural Gas Utilisation Co., Ltd

(a)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, Yichang Biaodian
entered into disputes with one of its suppliers regarding
the quality of work performed by such supplier. Legal
proceedings were initiated by the supplier (the “Yichang
Plaintiff 1”) and on 14 December 2018, pursuant to the
application from the Yichang Plaintiff 1, the Court in Yichang
granted an order to preserve the bank deposits of Yichang
Biaodian amounted to approximately RMB478,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$544,000).

On 13 March 2019, the Court issued civil mediation
agreement which set out that the Yichang Plaintiff 1
and Yichang Biaodian agreed with the repayment terms
in relation to the aforesaid amount. Yichang Biaodian
is required to repay RMB200,000 on or before 30 April
2019 and an order could be applied to unfreeze the bank
accounts; and Yichang Biaodian was required to settle
RMB2,000,000 on or before 30 September 2019 and the
remaining outstanding amount on or before 30 March 2020.
The Yichang Plaintiff 1 has the rights to apply for a court
order to enforce Yichang Biaodian to settle all its debts if
it fails to repay RMB2,200,000 to the Yichang Plaintiff 1 on
or before 30 September 2019. Amount of RMB8,787,000
(equivalent to HK$10,006,000) are fully provided as liabilities
of the Group at 31 December 2018. The restricted bank
balance was released on 11 April 2019 upon agreement
between the Yichang Plaintiff 1 and Yichang Biaodian.
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LITIGATION (Continued)

Yichang Biaodian Natural Gas Utilisation Co., Ltd (Continued)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED 3RERE; RS SE @A R L F]

On 20 November 2019, the Yichang Plaintiff 1 has exercised
its rights to apply for a court order to enforce Yichang
Biaodian for settlement of amount overdue. Yichang Biaodian
only repaid RMB200,000 up to 30 September 2021. As
at the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements, the Yichang Plaintiff 1 has not taken any
further action against Yichang Biaodian for the outstanding
balance. The Directors of the Company considered that as
the full amount of the debts of RMB8,587,000 (equivalent
to HK$10,455,000) claimed by Yichang Plaintiff 1 are fully
provided as liability of the Group as at 30 September 2021,
no further liability will be incurred.

During the year ended 30 September 2019, there was
a dispute between Yichang Biaodian and one of its
suppliers regarding the settlement of outstanding amounts
for construction work performed by the supplier. Legal
proceedings were initiated by the supplier (the “Yichang
Plaintiff 2”). The Court of Sanxia Ba District denied the
application of Yichang Plaintiff 2 for the settlement amount.
Yichang Plaintiff 2 appealed to Intermediate People’s Court
of Yichang City.

On 29 October 2020, the Court issued civil ruling paper
which set out the repayment of RMB1,036,000 (equivalent
to HK$1,261,000) from Yichang Biaodian to Yichang
Plaintiff 2 within 15 days of the issuance of the civil ruling
paper. Yichang Biaodian is required to pay default interest
equivalent to a balance which is double of the interest
expenses for late payment (the “Default Interest”). Yichang
Plaintiff 2 has the rights to apply for a court order to enforce
Yichang Biaodian to settle all its debts if it fails to repay
within 15 days of the issuance of the civil ruling paper.

HEMRAXRARFABRAA(E)
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LITIGATION (Continued) EiNED,

Yichang Biaodian Natural Gas Utilisation Co., Ltd (Continued) BEEMEZEAXRARINABRATE)

On 7 January 2021, Yichang Plaintiff 2 has exercised its
rights to apply for a court order to enforce Yichang Biaodian
for settlement of the amount overdue. On 10 June 2021,
the Court issued an consumption restriction order, to restrict
Yichang Biaodian (including its legal representative, main
person in charge, directly responsible personnel affecting
the liability enforcement and the actual controller) and
a senior management personnel from certain specified
consumption activities. Yichang Biaodian was required to
apply for permission from the court before carrying out those
restricted consumption activities. For any acts violating the
consumption restriction order, the Court has the rights to
issue penalty or detention. Yichang Biaodian had not repaid
any of the outstanding amounts as at 30 September 2021.

The Directors of the Group assessed that the Default Interest
would have insignificant impact to the consolidated financial
statements. The Directors also considered that as the full
amount of the debts claimed by Yichang Plaintiff 2 are fully
provided as liability of the Group, no additional liabilities are
required as at 30 September 2021.
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LITIGATION (Continued)
Global Billion Trading (Shenzhen) Limited

Durmg the year ended 30 September 2020, BREEEZ F(FY)
BRAF (Global Bilion Trading (Shenzhen) Limited*) (“Shenzhen
Global”) has been in dispute with a former director of the Group
regarding the ownership of the building located in the PRC. Legal
proceedings were initiated by the former director (the “Shenzhen
Plaintiff”) and on 8 July 2020, pursuant to the application from
the Shenzhen Plaintiff, the Court in Shenzhen granted an order to
preserve the building of Shenzhen Global from being sold by the
Group during the period from 9 July 2020 to 8 July 2023.

On 6 May 2021, the Court in Shenzhen concluded that the
ownership of the building belongs to the Group. On 24 May
2021, the former director lodged an appeal against the decision
made by the Court. The management of the Group is assessing
any possible outcome that bringing to Shenzhen Global from the
appeal. The Company will make further announcement(s) as and
when appropriate.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

The Group pledged a property approximately amounted to
HK$2,221,000 (2020: HK$2,237,000) to an independent
third party for obtaining an advance of HK$122,000 as at 30
September 2021.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 30 September 2021 (2020: Nil).
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PROSPECT

Looking forwards, the Board is optimistic that the Group will
perform much better with the result of the natural gas segment.
Currently, the natural gas segment mainly consists of the natural
gas pipeline business. The Group has developed a natural gas
sales network of certain scale. The network is still expanding and
with the clean energy policy carried out by the PRC government,
the management believes the natural gas business will grow
steadily under the current economic environment and significant
revenue will be contributed by the natural gas business. The
natural gas segment will expand and continue to be the core
business segment of the Group.

Given the challenges mentioned above, the Directors will be more
cautious and conservative in seeking new potential merger and
acquisition, business integration and expansion in order to sustain
the growth and profitability of the Group.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Up to the date of this report, the Group has no subsequent event
after 30 September 2021 which required disclosure.

EXPOSURE TO EXCHANGE RATE
FLUCTUATIONS

The Group’s foreign currency exposure is limited as most of its
transactions, assets and liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars and Renminbi.
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HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 30 September 2021, the Group employed 50 staff members
(at 30 September 2020: 50 staff). Remuneration is determined
with reference to market terms and the performance, qualifications
and experience of the individual employee. Remuneration includes
monthly salaries, performance-linked bonuses, retirement benefits
schemes and other benefits such as medical scheme and share
option scheme. The Group’s remuneration policies and packages
are reviewed by management on regular basis. The Company has
established a Human Resources and Remuneration Committee.
The Directors’ emoluments are determined with reference to
Directors’ duties, responsibilities and the operating performance
of the Group.

For reference purposes only, the Chinese names of the
PRC entities and terms have been translated into English
in this report. In the event of any discrepancies between
the Chinese names of the PRC entities and terms and their
English translation, the Chinese version shall prevail.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Wang Wenzhou (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Wang Wenzhou (“Mr. Wang”), aged 49, has over 25 years of
experience in textile industry and in-depth knowledge in products
operation, import and export trading and supply management. He
also has practical experience in corporate operation management.
Prior to joining the Company, he was a general manager of
Shanghai An Lin Trading Limited* (E8ZWMEZ 5ERAF]) and he
also worked as a general manager at Shanghai Lan Hao Clothing
Limited* (L7488 5 AR A R 2 7).

Mr. Wu Guoming

Mr. Wu Guoming (“Mr. Wu”), aged 55, has been the executive
Director since 30 April 2018. He holds a degree in Business
Management from Wuhan University, a degree in Civil Engineering
from China University of Petroleum and a degree in Economic
Management from Shanghai Jiao Tong University. Mr. Wu was the
engineering manager and the deputy general manager at Shanghai
Guangda Construction Decoration Engineering Company* (-
RIS M T2 2 F)). Since 2001, Mr. Wu has been the
general manager and the chairman of Shanghai Guangda Basic
Engineering Co., Ltd (EBERER TEBR A F]). Furthermore,
Mr. Wu is the director of China Civil Engineering Society (F B+
ARIFEE) and a construction technology committee member
of Chinese Institution of Soil Mechanics and Geotechnical
Engineering — China Civil Engineering Society (PRt ARTRES
T HERAETTESE). Mr. Wu has vast experience in business

management and construction business development.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Duan Fanfan

Mr. Duan Fanfan (“Mr. Duan”), aged 38, has been the executive
Director since 8 November 2019. He holds a bachelor degree
in International Business from Charles Sturt University and a
master degree in Professional Accounting from Deakin University.
Mr. Duan was General Manager in Victoria & South Australia of
Domino’s Pizza Enterprises in Australia. He was granted with
various Leadership Awards in the years from 2009 to 2013. He
was Chief Executive Officer of ATI International Trading Pty Ltd
from 2014 to 2019, specializing in the business development for
bilateral import and export trading between China and Australia.
Since 2020, Mr. Duan has served as the Chief Executive Officer
(BVE

), and is committed to promoting the

of Wuhan Kai Rui Pu Information Technology Co., Ltd.*
EEERRMER AR
development of smart health management equipment. Mr. Duan
has vast experience in retail hospitality services sector and
international trading.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin

Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin (“Mr. Leung”), aged 41,
independent non-executive Director since 16 October 2014. Mr.

has been the

Leung has been serving as an independent non-executive director
of KNT Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1025) since 31 January 2019.
Mr. Leung holds a Bachelor’'s Degree of Commerce in Accounting
and Finance from the University of Toronto in Canada. Mr. Leung
is the general manager of TL Property Consultants International
Ltd. (“TLP"),
management of real estate sector. Prior to joining TLP, he had

a consultancy group principally engaged in asset

worked at a multinational accounting and auditing firm for about
8 years. Mr. Leung is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Mr. Sun Zhi Jun

Mr. Sun Zhi Jun (“Mr. Sun”), aged 54, has been an independent
non-executive Director since 24 August 2015. Mr. Sun graduated
from Shanghai Medical Instrumentation College in the PRC
in 1988. Mr. Sun currently serves as Director of Strategy and
Business Development for Deep Voxel Intelligent Technology
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.* (ZEERERE(EE)BR AR, a company
specializing in artificial intelligence development in the medical
field in PRC.

Dr. Chung Ling Cheong Dicky

Dr. Chung Ling Cheong Dicky (“Dr. Chung”), aged 47, has been
the independent non-executive Director since 16 June 2021. Dr.
Chung obtained a doctor degree in Queen’s University of Brighton
on 2012. Dr. Chung possess over 17 years of experience in
trading, corporate finance, technology application and human
resources management. Dr. Chung has worked in various
organisation including Technology, Media and Telecommunications
companies. Dr. Chung was a director of TVNET.HK since 2004
and a chairman of China Dragon Foundation Creature Fuel
Technology (International) Limited from 2007 to 2015.

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Ngai Tsz Hin Michael

Mr. Ngai Tsz Hin Michael (“Mr. Ngai”), aged 33, is the company
secretary and one of the authorised representatives of the
Company with effect from 1 July 2021. Mr. Ngai has over eight
years of experience in legal industry and had obtained his
Bachelor of Laws and postgraduate certificate in laws from City
University of Hong Kong in 2011 and 2012, respectively. He is
a practicing solicitor in Hong Kong, and currently a partner of
Khoo & Co. and a consultant of O Tse & Co..

the company secretary of five companies listed on the Stock

He is currently

Exchange. Mr. Ngai had taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during YE2021.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT SREERE
Mr. Nip Chi Kin EEBEE

Mr. Nip Chi Kin (“Mr. Nip”), aged 40, is the Financial Controller of FEEEBEA([FELELE]) W+m BT —
the Group since June 2018. He had over 20 years’ experience in J\FE/N AR ARNEBTFEE - BHRET -
auditing, accounting and financial field. S RMBIEESS - TFRER -

* For reference purposes only, the Chinese names of the
PRC entities and terms have been translated into English
in this report. In the event of any discrepancies between
the Chinese names of the PRC entities and terms and their
English translation, the Chinese version shall prevail.
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Report of the Directors

The Directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30
September 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Business review of the Group is set out in the paragraph headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 September 2021
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on pages 61 and 63.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the year in property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in note 21 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company and
the issue of such shares during the reporting period are set out in
note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Report of the Directors

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE OF THE COMPANY

The share premium of the Company is available for payment
or distributions of dividends to its shareholders subject to the
provisions of its Memorandum and Articles of Association and
provided that immediately following the distribution or dividend
payment the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due
in the ordinary course of business. In accordance with the
Company’s Articles of Association, dividends can be distributed
out of the profits, special reserve and share premium of the
Company. No distribution reserves of the Company was recorded
as at 30 September 2021 (as at 30 September 2020: Nil).

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Wang Wenzhou, Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Wu Guoming
Mr. Duan Fanfan

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin
Mr. Sun Zhi Jun
Dr. Chung Ling Cheong Dicky
(appointed on 16 June 2021)
Ms. Huang Yu Jun
(retired on 19 March 2021)
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Report of the Directors

DIRECTORS (continued)

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Wu Guoming, Mr. Sun Zhi Jun and Dr. Chung
Ling Cheong Dicky will retire by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election. No director has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation). Each of
the independent non-executive Directors has a service contract
with the Company for a term of one year commencing on the
date of their respective appointment but is subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at an annual general meeting of the
Company in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under the section titled “Connected
Transactions” below, no Director or connected entity of a
Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in
any transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to
the business of the Group to which the holding company of
the Company, or any of the Company’s subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party during the year.
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Report of the Directors

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURE OF THE COMPANY OR ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 30 September 2021, the interests and short positions
of each Director and chief executive in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the required standard of dealings by
the Directors as referred to in Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules
were as follows:

Interests in the Company
The table below sets out the aggregate long positions in the

shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company held
by the Directors and chief executives of the Company:

EERBRSTHRAERALQTR
HEBZENRSG - HERO K
B cEBERAXR

R-ZZE-_—FNLA=+H EFE&ES1TK
ABZBERARARISEMERAEEZE (TR
REBEFRAEGA([FHREAEE ) EXV
)2k - HEERG RESFPEE DR
ARAREESFRAERPIEIHEETHER
ZBERM - HBREGEM TR BIES. 46165
MEFETRGZMTREASTHNEARR
AIREERFTz HEwm RAR AT

RARQ Tz xS

TREIARREZRERTHRABAFAR
REE - AR REFZ IR R

Corporate Percentage of
Directors/chief executive Interests Long (L) or short (S) position interests
EE BETHAR AT ER HRE(L)HARE(S) ERES
Mr. Wu Guoming 18,437,500 L 4.04%

REFLE

L:  Long position

Note: These interests represented the interests in underlying shares
in respect of the share options granted by the Company to
the directors.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 September 2021, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (as defined
in Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the required standard of dealings by the Directors as
referred to in Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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Report of the Directors

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 30 September 2021, according to the register kept by the
Company pursuant to section 336 of SFO, and so far as is known
to the Directors or chief executive of the Company, no person
(other than a Director or a chief executive of the Company) had,
or was deemed or taken to have, an interest or short position in
the Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the
shareholders in the extraordinary general meeting on 20 August
2020. The Share Option Scheme is a long-term incentive scheme
of the Company to reward its employees, Directors and other
eligible participants for their contributions to the Group and to
assist the Group in its recruitment and retention of high-calibre
employees and other eligible participants who are instrumental to
the growth and development of the Group.

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include: (a) any
employee or proposed employee (whether fulltime or part-time
and including any executive Director), consultants or advisers of
or to the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any invested entity;
(b) any non executive Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or
any invested entity; (c) any supplier of goods or services to any
member of the Group or any invested entity; (d) any customer
of the Group or any invested entity; (e) any person or entity that
provides research, development or other technological support to
the Group or any invested entity; and (f) any shareholder of any
member of the Group or any invested entity or any holder of any
securities issued by any member of the Group or any invested
entity, and any company wholly owned by one or more persons
belonging to any of the above classes.
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Report of the Directors

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Subject to the earlier termination of the Share Option Scheme in
accordance with the rules thereof, the Share Option Scheme shall
remain in force for a period of ten years commencing from the
date of adoption.

The maximum number of shares issuable upon the exercise of
options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme adopted by the Group (including both
exercised or outstanding options) to each grantee within any
12-month period, is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any time.

Share options granted to a Director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive
Directors of the Company. In addition, any share options granted
to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
Director of the Company, or to any of their associates, in excess
of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time
and with an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the
Company’s shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5
million, within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’
approval in advance in a general meeting.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon the
exercise of all options (excluding for this purpose options which
have lapsed) which have been or may be granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any share option scheme of the Group
must not in aggregate exceed 9,117,200 shares, representing
10% of the shares of the Company in issue as at the date of
approval of the Share Option Scheme and 2% of the shares of
the Company in issue as at the end of Reporting Period and the
date of approval of this report. The maximum number of shares
to be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme of the Group must not in aggregate
exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in issue from time to
time.
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Report of the Directors

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
30 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period
of the share options granted is determinable by the Directors,
which period may commence from the date of the offer of the
share options, and ends on a date which is not later than ten
years from the date of grant of the share options subject to the
provisions for early termination thereof.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by
the Directors, but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares as quoted on the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of the offer; (ii)
the average closing price of the Company’s shares as quoted on
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal
value of a share.

As at the date of this report, no share option had been granted
under the Share Option Scheme.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the five largest customers of the Group
accounted for about 52% of the revenue of the Group and the
largest customer of the Group accounted for about 16% of the
total revenue.

During the year, the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted
for about 87% of the purchases of the Group and the largest
supplier of the Group accounted for about 69% of the total
purchases.

Mr. Wu Guoming, director of the Company and his spouse held
100% equity interest in one of the Group’s five largest customers.
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Report of the Directors

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS (Continued)

Apart from aforesaid, none of the Director, their associates or
any shareholders of the Company (which to the knowledge of
the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital), has an interest in any of the Group’s five largest
customers and suppliers.

Details of the subsidiary’s controlling shareholder’s beneficial
interest in the Group are further explained in the section titled
“Connected Transactions” below.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

For the year ended 30 September 2021, the Group entered into
the following connected transactions.

Natural Gas Sales Agreement

On 15 January 2020 and 24 February 2021, Yichang Biaodian
and EEFHHERARAREGR AT (Yichang PetroChina Kunlun
Natural Gas Co., Ltd.*) (“Yichang Kunlun”) entered into two
upstream natural gas sales agreements (“Upstream Natural Gas
Sales Agreement”), pursuant to which, Yichang Kunlun agreed
to supply and Yichang Biaodian agreed to purchase natural gas
for the period from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020 and
from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021 respectively. For the
year ended 30 September 2021,
approximately HK$1,189,000.

the transaction amount was

As Yichang Kunlun is owned as to 49% by Hubei Biaodian and
Hubei Biaodian is a substantial shareholder (within the meaning of
the GEM Listing Rules) of Yichang Biaodian holding 20.92% equity
interest in Yichang Biaodian, whereas Mr. Xiong, is the ultimate
controlling shareholder of Hubei Biaodian and a former director of
Yichang Biaodian, each of Yichang Kunlun and Hubei Biaodian, is
connected person of the Company and the transactions constitute
connected transactions for the Company under the GEM Listing
Rules.
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Report of the Directors

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Material lease contract

On 20 April 2020, RERER (LB ) BR A F (Senchou
Environmental Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.* ) (“Senchou
Environment”) and £/8E EEFZITIEHR QA (Shanghai Junsheng
Construction Engineering Co., Ltd.*) (“Shanghai Junsheng”)
entered into a material lease contract, pursuant to which,
Senchou Environment agreed to lease the equipment to Shanghai
Junsheng for the period from 20 April 2020 to 19 August 2020.
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the execution of the above
contract was postponed and settled in December 2020. For the
year ended 30 September 2021,
approximately HK$4,444,000.

the transaction amount was

As Mr. Wu Guoming, the Director of the Company, and his
spouse, own 100% equity of Shanghai Junsheng, Shanghai
Junsheng is a connected company of the Company, and in
accordance with the GEM Listing Rules, the transactions
proposed under the material lease contract constitute connected
transactions of the Company.

The above-mentioned connected transactions are one-off
transactions.

The omission by the Company to comply with the GEM Listing
Rules requirements to make timely disclosure for the Connected
Transactions. The Company wishes to apologise in this regard
and an announcement will be published to provide details of the
Connected Transactions as soon as possible.

* For reference purposes only, the Chinese names of the
PRC entities and terms have been translated into English
in this report. In the event of any discrepancies between
the Chinese names of the PRC entities and terms and their
English translation, the Chinese version shall prevail.
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Report of the Directors

THE USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE RIGHTS
ISSUE

Reference is made to the prospectus published by the Company
dated 26 March 2021 (the “Prospectus”) in respect of the Rights
Issue. Unless otherwise specified, terms used in this section shall
have the same meanings as those defined in the Prospectus.

As disclosed in the Prospectus, the net proceeds from the Rights
Issue after deduction of expenses and professional fees amounted
to approximately HK$55,320,000 (“Rights Issue Proceeds”).

The breakdown of the Company’s proposed use of the Rights
Issue Proceeds as disclosed in the Prospectus and its actual use
of the Rights Issue Proceeds from the date of completion of the
Rights Issue to 30 September 2021 were as follows:

HBRFAEBRIERE

RURAARABTNERRMR —_FT - —F=H
“TREBEBREERZERER(ER] - K
ZBERAEI - AR/ ESEREMR
EEBEAMEREE -

WERKHRHRR AR (BRARFEL
ZHEBEXEM)R - BB ZAERAEREF
BRI #)4565,320,00078 7T ([ AR ARG RIA]) »

ARBNERMEE 2 HIRAERREEZS
RAREMERBEERREXAREE_F =
—FNA=THIEZEERERREINT

Actual use of
the Rights Issue
Proceeds from Balance of

the date of the unutilised

Proposed use of
the Rights Issue

Proceeds as
disclosed in the

completion of
the Rights Issue
to 30 September

Rights Issue

Proceeds as of

30 September

Intended use Prospectus 2021 2021
BEBREXBHE
EEfEE: Z—E-—FhA R-TB=-—F
HBAERE =+TAMERHAE HAA=THKA
EERAR ZEERZE REZERRAZ #HRASKELSR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET FAT
Redemption of outstanding bonds BRI ARRETZ

issued by the Company BITHEIMES 48,000 26,153 21,847

Payment of outstanding SNREEEXEER
professional fees 3,000 1,316 1,684
General working capital of the Group AfEE—RLEE S 5,259 3,504 1,755
56,259 30,973 25,286
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Report of the Directors

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 30 September 2021.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 30 September 2021, the Group entered
into transactions with related parties as set out in note 49 to the
consolidated financial statements. Apart from the items disclosed
in the section “Connected Transactions”, all other material related
party transactions did not constitute non-exempt connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this
report, there is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the
Company’s issue shares as required under the GEM Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

COMPETING INTERESTS

During the year, none of the Directors, the controlling shareholders
of the Company (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) or their
respective associates had any business or interest which
competed or might compete with the business of the Group nor
had any other conflict of interest with the Group.
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Report of the Directors

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Group was entered into or existed
during the year.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration of the employees of the Group is determined
with reference to market terms and the performance, qualifications
and experience of the individual employee.

The emoluments of the Directors were recommended by the
Human Resources and Remuneration Committee of the Company
after considering factors such as the Company’s Directors’ duties,
responsibilities and the operating performance of the Group.

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme as an
incentive to Directors and eligible employees. Details of the
scheme are set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial
statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There was no significant events occurring after the reporting
period.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors
is currently in force and was in force throughout the reporting
period. Appropriate insurance cover on Directors’ and officers’
liabilities has been provided by the Company to cover potential
legal actions from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they shall or may incur or sustain
by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or
about the execution of their duties.
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Report of the Directors

AUDITORS

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”), who was the auditor of
the Group from 2000 to 2017, has resigned as the auditor of the
Group with effect from 30 January 2019. Deloitte, in their letter of
resignation, confirmed that there were no matters in connection
with their resignation that needed to be brought to the attention
of holders of securities or creditors of the Company. The Board
also confirmed that there was no disagreement or unresolved
matter between the Company and Deloitte, and that they were not
aware of any matters in relation to the resignation of Deloitte as
auditor of the Group that needed to be brought to the attention of
holders of securities of the Company.

The Company has appointed RSM Hong Kong as the auditors
of the Company for the Year with effect from 30 January 2019.
RSM Hong Kong will retire and, being eligible, offer itself for
reappointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
A resolution to reappoint RSM Hong Kong and to authorise
the Directors to fix its remuneration will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Wang Wenzhou
DIRECTOR

17 December 2021
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. It met all the code provisions of
the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) set out in Appendix
15 of the GEM Listing Rules in the year ended 30 September
2021 except for the following deviation:

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. The Company did not appoint
a chairman from 19 April 2018. The Board will keep reviewing
the current structure from time to time and appoint candidate
with suitable knowledge, skill and experience as chairman of the
Company, if identified.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealing
set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules (the
“Required Standard”) as the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, all Directors confirmed that they had complied with the
Required Standard during the year ended 30 September 2021.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company confirms it has received from each of its
independent non-executive Directors an annual confirmation
of his/her independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM
Listing Rules, and considers that the independent non-executive
Directors to be independent.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is governed by a board of Directors (the “Board”)
which has the responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company. The Directors are collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Group by directing and supervising the Group’s
affairs. The Board set strategies and directions for the Group’s
activities and lead the Group’s management team through the
Directors with a view to developing its business and enhancing
shareholder value.
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Corporate Governance Report

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

During the year ended 30 September 2021, the Board’s
composition and the individual attendance of each Director at
the Board meetings, board committee meetings and shareholder
meetings during the year ended 30 September 2021 are set out
in the table below:

BEEg s

BHE-_Z-_—FALA=1+HLLFE  EFTg
HERENEEREBEE_S-_—FNLA=1
ALEFELESE CEEZLZEEEE
EREREHBFEAERTE :

L2t
=

Attendance/Number of Meetings held during
the tenure of his/her office in the year

HERY/ FRERENETEHRY

Human
Resources &
Remuneration Nomination Audit Shareholder
Board Meeting Committee Committee Committee Meeting
ANERR
Ezegs yHzEEE REZEE ENZRE RRAE
Executive Directors HTEE
Mr. Wang Wenzhou, IXARE  TTHAH 4/6 N/A N/A N/A 2/2
Chief Executive Officer ok TER ek
Mr. Wu Guoming REAEE 4/6 N/A N/A N/A 2/2
TER TR TR
Mr. Duan Fanfan BRMEE 6/6 N/A N/A N/A 2/2
TER TR TR
Independent Non-Executive BUFYTES
Directors
Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin DA 3/6 N/A N/A 4/4 2/2
TR TR
Mr. Sun Zhi Jun REERE 5/6 N/A N/A 4/4 1/2
Ti#h Tiaf
Ms. Huang Yu Jun BERERT 2/2 N/A N/A 2/2 1/1
(retired on 19 March 2021) (W=E=—-%=A+AR T TERE
R
Dr. Chung Ling Cheong Dicky E98ET 33 N/A N/A 1/1 N/A
(appointed on 16 June 2021) (R=E=—FxA+AA T@f TERE T

N/A: Not applicable

BZft)

the Board held six

NER - AER

BHEC

T_—FNA=FTRHILFE - EFg

= __

During the year ended 30 September 2021,
Board meetings to review, among other matters, the Group’s
financial and operating performance and discuss the business
direction and strategy. Agenda and accompanying board papers
were sent to all Directors in a timely manner.
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Corporate Governance Report

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Directors who could not attend in person could participate
the Board meetings and Shareholder meetings through other
electronic means of communications.

The biographical information of the Directors are set out in the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 25 to 28 in this annual report.

The Company is committed to arranging and funding suitable
training to all Directors for their continuous professional
development. During the year ended 30 September 2021 and up
to the date of this report, Mr. Wang Wenzhou, Mr. Wu Guoming,
Mr. Duan Fanfan, Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin, Mr. Sun Zhi Jun
and Dr. Chung Ling Cheong Dicky engaged in business activities
in their respective fields as continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills so as to
ensure that their contributions to the Board remain informed and
relevant. Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin has participated in continuous
professional development programs required by The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The Directors also
participated in other trainings and professional developments
such as attending seminars, studying reading materials relating to
the Group or its industries and businesses; rules and regulations;
business management; or the roles, functions and duties of a
listed company director.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the leadership of the
Board, ensuring its effectiveness in all aspects of its role and for
setting its agenda and taking into account any matters proposed
by other directors for inclusion in the agenda. Through the Board,
he is responsible for ensuring that good corporate governance
practices and procedures are followed by the Group.
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HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

The Human Resources and Remuneration Committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) did not hold meetings during the year
ended 30 September 2021. The Remuneration Committee has
reviewed and approved the Group’s remuneration policy, including
that for the executive Directors, and the levels of remuneration
paid to executive directors and senior management of the Group.
The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee follow
the guidelines set out in the Code and it is responsible for,
among other things, making recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and
senior management. The remuneration paid and payable to the
Directors for the year ended 30 September 2021 is set out in
note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

The remuneration paid and payable to the senior management
excluding directors by band for the year ended 30 September
2021 is set out below:

s E

Remuneration of band

ANEBRRFMEES

HE_ZT-_—FANAR=1THILFEE AHE
BEhkFHEzEe((FHEZEE )Y EETE
& FHZEeCENIMEAREE(EEH
TER)ZHMBER - RAKERTEERS
MEIRE 2 F K - RRRRESTRIFTE
ZHESIGIEFMEE G BERE - HREE
ZRAEESEERERNNTEERERE
BENFMTE BE_T-_—FhA=+
BIEFE ENRENESEZHMENEZRS
FAF R MIEE16

HE_Z-_—FAR=THLEEE  BEfE
ENESREEE(TERER)NHFMREE
g oEsmT

Number of
Individuals

AE

HK$0 - HK$500,000 0/ 7L £500,000% 7T
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BOARD DIVERSITY

The Board has adopted a policy concerning diversity of Board
members (the “Board Diversity Policy”) which is summarised as
follows:

The Company is committed to maintaining a highly effective Board
which should have a balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of its business.
When deciding on the appointment of directors, it is the policy
of the Company to consider a number of factors, including but
not limited to, gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, and other qualifications, skills and
experience which the Company considers that it will make a
positive contribution to the performance of the Board.

The Nomination Committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) monitors the implementation of the Board Diversity
Policy and reviews it from time to time and shall bring to the
attention of the Board any significant issues or recommendations
as and when necessary and appropriate. Any reviews, updates
and amendments to the Board Diversity Policy shall be approved
by the Board.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee have been
determined with reference to the Code.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for identifying potential
new directors and making recommendations to the Board for
decision. A director appointed by the Board is subject to re-
election by shareholders at the first annual general meeting after
his/her appointment. All Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every 3 years. In accordance with the
Company’s Articles of Association, one third of the directors are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election by shareholders
at each annual general meeting of the Company.

Potential new Directors are selected with reference to the Board
Diversity Policy whenever necessary and appropriate.

The Nomination Committee did not hold meetings during the year
ended 30 September 2021.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has adopted the terms of reference for corporate
governance functions set out in the Code and has delegated the
Group’s corporate governance functions to the Audit Committee
of the Company (the “Audit Committee”).

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, with the inclusion
of the corporate governance functions, follow the guidelines set
out in the Code. The Audit Committee is responsible for, among
other things, having relationship with the Company’s auditors,
reviewing the Group’s financial information and its financial
reporting, financial reporting system, risk management and
internal control systems and corporate governance, including
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting and
financial reporting function. The Audit Committee reports to the
Board any significant issues relating to its terms of reference.

the Audit Committee
held four meetings and work performed included reviewing

During the year ended 30 September 2021,
the Group’s quarterly, half-yearly and annual results, its risk
management and internal control systems, and corporate
governance matters for inclusion in the Company’s Annual Report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to RSM Hong Kong for audit and non-
audit services for the year ended 30 September 2021 amounted
to approximately HK$1,050,000 and approximately HK$730,000,
respectively. The non-audit services provided by RSM Hong Kong
to the Group were in relation to certain agreed upon procedures
services and being reporting accountants for the circular and
prospectus issued during the year.

The remuneration paid to RSM Hong Kong for audit and non-
audit services for the year ended 30 September 2020 amounted
to approximately HK$1,000,000 and approximately HK$442,000
respectively. The non-audit services provided by RSM Hong
Kong to the Group were in relation to limited assurance services
on continuing connected transaction and certain agreed upon
procedures services.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group (the “Consolidated
Financial Statements”) which give a true and fair view and are
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The Directors endeavor to ensure a balanced, clear
and understandable assessments of the Group’s performance,
position and prospects in financial reporting. Accordingly,
appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied
consistently; judgments and estimates made are prudent and
reasonable.

They are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary steps
to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect
fraud and other irregularities. The Directors continue to adopt the
going concern basis in preparation of the consolidated financial
statements and are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the Company’s auditors about their reporting
responsibilities on the Consolidated Financial Statements is set
out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on page 60.

The auditors has stated in the financial statements that there
is material uncertainty related to going concern and note 2 to
the consolidated financial statements indicates that the Group
incurred a net loss of approximately HK$22,767,000 for the year
ended 30 September 2021, and, as of the date, the Group has
net current liabilities of HK$43,269,000. In addition, as at 30
September 2021, the Group had capital commitments amounting
to HK$9,902,000. Besides, the Group was in default of non-
convertible bonds of approximately HK$16,853,000 which were
overdue as of 30 September 2021 (“In Default Bonds”). These
events and conditions indicate that a material uncertainty exists
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Subsequent to 30 September 2021, non-convertible bonds
of HK$3,850,000 included in the In Default Bonds have been
renewed with maturity date extended to 30 September 2022
and non-convertible bonds of HK$12,303,000 included in the
In Default Bonds have been settled. Moreover, holders of non-
convertible bonds with principal amounts in aggregate of
HK$11,912,000, including the aforementioned non-convertible
bonds of HK$3,850,000 which have been renewed, have signed
letters of intent with the Company agreeing to extend the maturity
date by one year once the bonds mature.

The directors have estimated the Group’s cash requirements
by preparing a Group cashflow forecast for the twelve-month
period ending 30 September 2022. Mr. Wu Guoming (“Mr. Wu”),
a shareholder and a director of the Company, and Mr. Wang
Wenzhou (“Mr. Wang”), a director of the Company, as at 30
September 2021, have agreed to provide sufficient funds to
the Group so that the Group will be able to meet all current
obligations as they fall due for the foreseeable future.

In order to address the uncertainties which may cast doubt
regarding the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, the
directors have given careful consideration to the future liquidity
and performance of the Group and its available sources of finance
to continue as going concern. In the opinion of the directors, the
Group will have sufficient working capital to finance its operations
and to meet it financial obligations as and when they fall due in
the foreseeable future, based on the cash flow projections of the
Group and after taking into consideration the following:

()  two directors of the Company have confirmed that they shall
provide continuous financial support to the Group for the
foreseeable future;

(i) the Company will consider certain ways to raise funds from
the markets; and

(i) having regard to measures to tighten controls over expenses
and to better manage the Group’s working capital, the
directors believe that the Group is able to continue to
generate sufficient cash flows from operations.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

The management considered that the proposed measures
mentioned above, if successful, could improve the Group’s liquidity
and therefore could help to address the audit matter. However, as
the management’s assessment of the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern for the purposes of preparing the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ending 30 September
2022 has to take into consideration of the future conditions and
circumstances and could only be made at the end of the relevant
reporting period, the management is unable to ascertain at this
moment whether the audit matter can be removed in the next
financial year purely based on the Company’s measures above.

The audit committee has discussed with the Company, reviewed the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 September
2021, and agreed with the going concern basis of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements and to finalise and implement the
action plans for addressing the disclaimer of opinion.

The audit committee has also discussed with the Auditors and reviewed
the disclaimer of opinion and the basis of disclaimer of opinion.

The Board has, through the Audit Committee, conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control system with an aim to safeguard the shareholders’
investment and the Company’s assets in compliance with the
provisions of the Code. The purpose is to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatements, errors,
losses or fraud, and to manage rather than eliminate risks of
failure in achieving the Group’s business objectives.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take
in achieving the Group’s strategic objectives, and maintaining
sound and effective risk management and internal control systems
to safeguard the interests of shareholders and the Group’s assets.
The Board also acknowledges its responsibility for overseeing the
Group’s risk management, financing reporting, and internal control
systems on an ongoing basis and reviewing their effectiveness at
least annually through the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee
assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight and corporate
governance roles in the Group’s financial, operational, compliance,
risk management and internal controls, and the resourcing of the
finance and internal audit functions.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

To this end, appropriate policies and controls have been designed
and established to ensure that assets are safeguarded against
improper use or disposal, relevant rules and regulations are
adhered to and complied with, reliable financial and accounting
records are maintained in accordance with relevant accounting
standards and regulatory reporting requirements, and key risks
that may impact on the Group’s performance are appropriately
identified and managed. Besides, management continues to
allocate resources for the risk management and internal control
systems to provide reasonable, though not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss and to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has delegated the
internal audit function to an independent external assurance
provider, who has conducted a review on the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems for the year ended 30 September 2021. The Board
considers that the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems are effective and adequate.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, leads and provides
direction to management by laying down strategies and
overseeing their implementation by management, monitors the
Group’s operational and financial performance, and ensures that
sound risk management and internal control systems are in place.

The Board reviewed and was satisfied with the adequacy of
the resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes, on the Group’s accounting, financial reporting and
internal audit functions.

The Board, through delegation of its authority to an environmental,
social and governance (“ESG”) working group, is also responsible
for reviewing the Company’s corporate social responsibility
strategies, principles and policies; setting guidelines, direction and
overseeing practices and procedures; and monitoring progress
on the Company’s corporate social responsibility and related
activities.

The following highlights the key risk management measures under
the Group’s “Three Lines of Defence” model and enhancements
made by the Group for the period.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

1st line of defence - Risk management

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED 3R &R & B

Management conducted an annual Internal Control Self-
Assessment for the period. Management confirmed that
appropriate internal control policies and procedures have
been established and complied with.

Various policies, procedures and guidelines are in place with
defined authority for effective segregation of duties, controls
and risk management, and they are subject to regular review.

The Group’s anti-bribery and anti-corruption guidelines
are in place to set out minimum standards in recognizing
circumstances which may lead to or give the appearance of
involving corruption or unethical business conduct, to help
avoid conduct which is clearly prohibited, and to encourage
everyone in the Group to seek appropriate guidance
promptly when needed.

The Group’s whistleblowing policy is in place to facilitate
internal reporting of any malpractice and unethical conduct
within the Group without fear of reprisal and victimization.

2nd line of defence - Risk oversight

The Group’s Enterprise Risk Management (“ERM”) Policy
is developed to outline the principles, governance, roles
and responsibilities, and approach within a coherent risk
management framework that addresses and prioritizes risks
that are material and relevant to the Group’s corporate

goals.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

2nd line of defence - Risk oversight (Continued)

° The Group’s ERM Framework aims to help management
assess and manage risks arising from and associated
with new business activities and environments, including
emerging risks. An integrated risk assessment approach was
adopted to address risks across various subsidiaries of the
Group, to assess those risks on an integrated group-wide
basis.

3rd line of defence - Independent assurance

° The external assurance provider takes up the internal audit
function, who is responsible for conducting independent
reviews of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control systems and reporting the review results
regularly to the Board through the Audit Committee.

For internal audit, a risk-based approach is adopted. The three
years’ work plan of external assurance provider for internal
audit, is subject to review annually, covers major activities and
processes of the Group’s operations, businesses and service
units. The results of these audit activities are communicated to
the Audit Committee and key members of senior management
of the Group. Audit issues are tracked, followed up for proper
implementation, and their progress are reported to the Audit
Committee and senior management of the Group (as the case
may be) periodically. The external assurance provider for internal
audit provides independent assurance to the Board, the Audit
Committee and the senior management of the Group on the
adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls for the Group.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

The Group’s ERM Policy is established by the Board as an
effective and adequate approach to be applied across the Group
to manage the risks associated with its business and operations.
This policy is designed to enhance enterprise risk management of
the Group through a holistic and integrated framework so that all
material risks faced by the Group are identified and appropriately
managed to:

() promote consistent risk identification, measurement,
reporting and mitigation;

(i)  set a common risk language to avoid any conflicting
terminology or confusion in risk reporting;

(i) develop and communicate policies on enterprise risk
management and controls aligned with the business
strategy; and

(iv) enhance reporting to provide transparency of risks across
the Group.

The Company has adopted policies and procedures for assessing
and, where prudent, improving the effectiveness of its risk
management and internal control systems, including requiring the
management of the Group at least annually to assess whether
the risk management and internal control systems are functioning
effectively in the belief that this will enhance the corporate
governance of the Company and its business practices in the
future.

The Company regulates the handling and dissemination of inside
information as set out in the Code of Conduct to ensure inside
information remains confidential until the disclosure of such
information is appropriately approved, and the dissemination of
such information is efficiently and consistently made.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ngai Tsz Hin Michael, the company secretary of the Company,
has complied with the relevant professional training under
Rules 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules during the year ended 30
September 2021.

COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Mr. Wang Wenzhou is the compliance officer of the Company. His
biographical details are set out in Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management on page 25 of this report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company seeks to maintain a balance between meeting the
shareholders’ expectations and prudent capital management with
a sustainable dividend policy. The Company’s dividend policy aims
to allow shareholders to participate in the Company’s profit and
for the Company to retain adequate reserves for future growth.
In proposing any dividend payout, the Company would consider
various factors including the Company and the Group’s actual
and expected financial performance, the Group’s current and
future operations, the level of the Group’s debts to equity ratio,
liquidity position and capital requirement of the Group, general
market conditions and any other factors that the Board deems
appropriate.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company maintains an on-going dialogue with its
shareholders through various channels including announcements
and annual, interim and quarterly reports published on its website
at www.globalstrategicgroup.com.hk and the Company’s general
meetings. All shareholders are encouraged to attend general
meetings and they may put to the Board any enquiries about the
Group through its website at www.globalstrategicgroup.com.hk
or in writing sent to the principal office of the Company at Unit A,
11/F., Neich Tower, 128 Gloucester Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong.
The Directors, company secretary or other appropriate members
of senior management respond to enquiries from shareholders
promptly. The Chief Executive Officer, chairmen of board
committees (or their respective delegates) and external auditors
attend the annual general meeting and are available to answer
questions raised by shareholders. Shareholders may also access
the Company’s corporate website for the Group’s information.

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the company secretary, to require an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business (including any proposals) specified in such requisition,
and such meeting shall be held within two months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such
deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionists themselves may do so in the same manner.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Board is not aware of any significant changes in the
Company’s constitutional documents during the year ended 30
September 2021. Memorandum and Articles of Association of the
Company is available on both the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.
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BB EN RS
Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Disclaimer of Opinion

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements
of Global Strategic Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 61 to 224, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
30 September 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. Because of the significance of the
matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of
our report, we have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these
consolidated financial statements. In all other respects, in our
opinion the consolidated financial statements have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion

We draw attention to note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements, which indicates that the Group incurred a net loss of
HK$22,767,000 for the year ended 30 September 2021 and, as
of that date, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current
assets by HK$43,269,000. In addition, as at 30 September 2021,
the Group had capital commitments amounting to HK$9,902,000
as disclosed in note 48. The Group was also in default of non-
convertible bonds of HK$16,853,000 as of 30 September 2021.

These events and conditions indicate the existence of material
uncertainties which may cast significant doubt about the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern and to realise its assets
and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
a going concern basis, the validity of which depends on the
continuous financial support of Mr. Wu Guoming (“Mr. Wu”) and
Mr. Wang Wenzhou (“Mr. Wang”) as disclosed in note 2. However,
we were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
to satisfy ourselves that Mr. Wu and Mr. Wang had the financial
resources to provide the required level of financial support to the
Group. Mr. Wu and Mr. Wang both agreed to pledge properties
to provide financial support to the Group. Based on the market
valuations of the properties, we considered that it was uncertain
whether Mr. Wu and Mr. Wang would be able to borrow funds
using the properties as collateral at the level necessary to support
the Group’s liquidity requirements. In addition, we were unable
to ascertain whether Mr. Wu and Mr. Wang had any personal
liabilities which would affect their credit standing and ability to
borrow against the pledged properties. Accordingly, we were
unable to determine the validity of preparing the consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis.
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BB EN RS
Independent Auditor’s Report

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion (Continued)

Should the Group be unable to operate as a going concern in the
foreseeable future, adjustments would have to be made to write
down the carrying value of the Group’s assets to their recoverable
amounts, to provide for any further liabilities that might arise,
and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities as
current assets and current liabilities respectively. The effect of
these adjustments have not been reflected in these consolidated
financial statements.

Responsibilities of Directors and Audit Committee for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard
("HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.
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BB EN RS
Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Qur responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the HKICPA and to issue an
auditor’s report. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

However, because of the matters described in the Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we were not able to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for
an audit opinion on these consolidated financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Wong Wo Cheung.

RSM Hong Kong
Certified Public Accountants

29th Floor, Lee Garden Two
28 Yun Ping Road
Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

17 Decmeber 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
HE-_Z-_—FNA=1THIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

2021 2020
—E- & —E-TF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 5E FEx FHET
Continuing operations HEREER
Revenue &y 8 71,486 42,734
Cost of sales HER A (51,223) (29,747)
Gross profit EF 20,263 12,987
Other income HAb YA 9 2,629 3,939
Other gains and losses E s K EE 10 54 827
Loss on fair value change on BEEAFEFABRE([Z
convertible bond designated at fair NFEFTAER]) 2 TH#R
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) &%z AF{EZEEE - (399)
Selling and distribution costs SHE Ry sEA AR (8,555) (19,389)
General and administrative expenses — B RITHEZ T (31,978) (32,191)
Impairment loss on property, plant and 1% - &= &R &R ERIE
equipment 21 - (132,902)
Impairment loss on intangible assets mEEAERBERIE 24 - (106,934)
Allowance for trade receivables EWE 5 RSB E 6(b)(i) (2,200) (4,304)
(Allowance)/reversal of allowance for FEUL B Sk (Bt ) /B f #t o)
loan receivables 6(b)(ii) (121) 3,097
Allowance for bond receivables R E S 6(b)(ii) - (10,758)
Reversal of allowance/(allowance) for &% K H ith f& UK BR Z0 B 18
deposits and other receivables B o (BE) 6(b)(ii) 724 (700)
Allowance for due from related parties [ 4 B8 B 77 7k 78 B8 6(b)(ii) (22) =
Loss from operation BB HETEEE (19,206) (286,727)
Finance costs B 75 R AR 12 (4,204) (8,440)
Loss before tax BRI ATES IR (23,410) (295,167)
Income tax credit AR 13 643 28,349
Loss for the year from continuing RERBELEER
operations FABE 14 (22,767) (266,818)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
HE-_Z-_—FNA=1THILFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

2021 2020
—E-—F —TTHF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FHExT FHET
Discontinued operations BRIEEEET
Loss for the year from discontinued RECKRIEREER 2
operations FAEIE 18 = (7,345)
Loss for the year FREE (22,767) (274,163)
Other comprehensive income after Ht2mEKHE(BRBIE)
tax
Items that may be reclassified to profit At E@EH HHEEIE=7HE -
or loss:
Exchange differences arising on B IEmRRE A2 ER
translation of financial statements to EXCZERESR
presentation currency 5,393 11,639
Exchange differences reclassified EERIEREEBEN
to profit or loss on disposal of NEEERCERER
discontinued operations - (731)
Other comprehensive income for FREMZEWZE(SNH)
the year, net of tax 5,393 10,908
Total comprehensive income for the FRZEWFELE
year (17,374) (263,255)
Loss for the year attributable to: ATATEEFERESE :
Owners of the Company PiN/NEIEZ SN
— continuing operations —RBEREER (20,982) (94,502)
— discontinued operations — BRI T - (7,334)
(20,982) (101,836)
Non-controlling interests FEIER R B
— continuing operations —RBEREER (1,785) (172,316)
— discontinued operations — BRI EETS = (11)
(1,785) (172,327)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HE-_Z-_—FNA=1THIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

2021 2020
—E-—F —T-FF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 5E FEx FHET
Total comprehensive income for the LA T ALEEERZEKE
year attributable to: .
Owners of the Company KRalER A (18,203) (96,391)
Non-controlling interests FEEE AR 7 829 (166,864)
(17,374) (263,255)
(Restated)
Loss per share BERER 20 (=5))
From continuing and discontinued XRHEEERSKIE
operations REEK
Basic (HK cents per share) EAR(FRAEW) (15.20) (110.89)
Diluted (HK cents per share) e (ZRBI) (15.20) (110.89)
From continuing operations REFESEEK
Basic (HK cents per share) EAR(FRAEW) (15.20) (102.90)
Diluted (HK cents per share) 58 (FRRABL) (15.20) (102.90)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
R-ZE-—F L A=+H Asat30 September 2021

2021 2020
—EB=-—F —_T_TF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FET FHET
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BEKEE 21 112,246 108,168
Right-of-use assets FREEE 22 2,055 1,948
Goodwill [BES 23 - 580
Intangible assets B EE 24 71,031 69,507
Deposits for acquisition of property, WEME - BEMRBZIES
plant and equipment 3,582 4,412
188,914 184,615
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 26 797 766
Trade receivables UL E 5 BRI 27 6,576 3,822
Prepayments, deposits and other FEMER - Re Rk EMER
receivables BRI 28 13,794 6,027
Loan receivables eI E R 29 4,310 21,944
Bond receivables FEWE FH 30 - =
Due from a related party U — & A 7 5108 49(d) 1,591 =
Value-added tax (“VAT”) recoverable AT e ER ([HBER]) 5,850 6,516
Bank and cash balances RITNRBE &5 31 23,411 1,978
56,329 41,053
Current liabilities i =R
Trade payables BT E SRR 32 873 855
Accruals and other payables FEATE A R E MR RR 33 51,874 42,300
Contract liabilities EHaE 34 6,352 3,732
Lease liabilities HEBE 35 1,405 1,103
Due to related parties JE < B St 75 3R I8 49(d) 1,218 2,254
Due to directors JENESFFHIA 36 3,011 3,969
Non-convertible bonds TR E S 37 27,166 56,190
Bank borrowings RITIEE 38 7,680 8,012
Current tax liabilities AR IE B (& 19 -
99,598 118,415
Net current liabilities REBEEFEE (43,269) (77,362)
Total assets less current liabilities #EERABDAS 145,645 107,253
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
RZZE-_—FNLA=+H Asat 30 September 2021

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B &E FET FET
Non-current liabilities EREBEE
Due to non-controlling shareholders of & — B A &) 2 FEFEE
a subsidiary and its related parties A% 3 &% E B 5 Z R 39 44,423 40,441
Lease liabilities HEBE 35 445 393
Non-convertible bonds ;R ES 37 - 2,706
Bank borrowings RITEE 38 10,387 12,589
Deferred tax liabilities RIEHIAAE 40 17,758 17,377
73,013 73,506
72,632 33,747
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARREE
Share capital fi& A 41 4,559 45,586
Reserves {1 42(a) 23,296 (55,787)
Equity/(capital deficiency) attributable to AR RIHEE AELHERS
owners of the Company (BAREA) 27,855 (10,201)
Non-controlling interests (“NCI”) FEvEfR i e ([ IE PR R ]) 44,777 43,948
Total equity A 72,632 33,747

Approved by the Board of Directors on 17 December

2021 and are signed on its behalf by:

Wang Wenzhou
EXA

RERE

Wu Guoming
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

Attributable to owners of the Company

KLREBARS
Share
Share Capital Share Other ~ Translation options  Accumulated
capital reserve  premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total NCI  Total equity
Re  BABE  RBEE  HHBE  AERE  BREGH Zithk G fERER  BRAE
(note (note (note (note
Poed) B D) 20N b
LiE: (W& Uik: liE:
(Weat) om0 0 i) d2bw)
HK$000  HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000 HK$000  HKS'000 HKS 000 HK$'000
S T Tht Thr S T S T ThT ThT
At 1 October 2019 R-E-NETR-A 32,586 7540 287,434 12,20 9,532) 5,966 (269,265) 66,984 210,799 217,783
Total comprehensive income for ~ ERZENEES
the year - - - - 5,445 - (101,836) (96,301)  (166,864)  (263,209)
Issuance of ordinary shares BTERR 13,000 - 6,206 - - - - 19,206 - 19,206
Forfeture of share optons granted Bt B fE - - - - - (1527) 1507 = = =
Cancellation of shars options T R BE
granted - - - - - (4,439) 4,439 - - -
Disposal o dlscontinued HERR IR SR
operations (note 45(t) (Ki4510) - - - - - - - = 13 13
At 30 September 2020 and RZBZRENAZTAR
1 Octaber 2020 ZECRETA-H 45,586 7540 293,640 12,265 (4,087) - (365,135) (10201) 43,948 33,147
Total comprehensive income for ~ FA2ENEEE
the year - - - - 2,119 - (20962) (18,203) 829 (17.374)
Capita reduction rote 41(d) el (B 241(d) (t4674) = = = - = 4674 = - -
Issuance of shares on rights issue  FLEREIR
(note 41(g) (Hi41(9) 3647 - R - - - - 5659 - 5659
At 30 September 2021 NE--FnA=1A 4559 7540 346,262 12,265 (1,308) - (341,443) 27,898 T 12,632
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
 E_T_—FNA=F+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR ERE} B

2021 2020
—EB=-—F —E=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&xT FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHRESHRTRE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax RIS E
Continuing operations S (23,410) (295,167)
Discontinued operations BRIEREER - (7,345)
(23,410) (302,512)
Adjustments for: FE
Depreciation of property, plant and M - WERERBITE
equipment 8,933 16,018
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEENE 1,379 3,084
Amortisation of intangible assets EE R 2,876 6,458
Finance costs YR IDEN 4,204 8,446
Interest income FEUA (1,723) (3,388)
Loss on fair value change on BERAFEFAERZ
convertible bond designated at AR ES AT EE
FVTPL EE - 399
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEWE  BER&EKR
and equipment - (4)
Loss on written off of property, plant MWEEE - BEMKEEE
and equipment - 16
Loss on disposal of discontinued HESRIEREXELEE
operations - 5,910
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE— B A RS (52) (1,576)
Loss on waiver of loan receivables e EWE REE - 552
Impairment loss on intangible assets B EEREEE - 106,934
Impairment loss on goodwill AR EEE 580 1,958
Impairment loss on property, plant ME - BERZREREEE
and equipment - 132,902
Impairment loss on right-of-use FREEEREERE
assets - 887
Allowance for trade receivables FEUNE 5 BR R 2,200 4,304
Allowance/(reversal of allowance) for R B sk E,(BERE)
loan receivables 121 (3,097)
Allowance for bond receivables FERESEE - 10,758
(Reversal of allowance)/allowance for — H b EUBRFX (B E R R,
other receivables Rim (724) 700
Allowance for due from related parties  J&UR BAESE T3 7R I8 5 22 =

SEERDF
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HE-_Z-_—FNA=1THILFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

2021 2020
—EZ—F —T_FTF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
ihr=s FET FHET
Operating cash flows before working ~ ZE&EEAI2LER e
capital changes mE (5,594) (11,251)
Increase in trade receivables FEWE 5 BRFRI8 N (4,682) (1,252)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, FEMER - He REMEIR
deposits and other receivables BRI n), R (6,762) 2,347
Decrease in VAT recoverable ] i [ $ (& 7 1,069 =
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL, /(35 m) 18 (396)
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables  EWEZ SEZCAD), &N (30) 98
Increase/(decrease) in accruals and FEEHE A R A M0 FE S BRFK
other payables #wm,/ Cd) 6,850 (921)
Increase in contract liabilities BB EEM 2,354 1,336
Movements in balance with related RAE 5 RS E
parties (2,762) 1,647
Cash used in operations KEFTARES (9,539) (8,392)
Interest on lease liabilities HEABZFE (90) (217)
Income tax paid EARIZIECT! (57) (1)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING RETHMARSFR
ACTIVITIES (9,686) (8,610)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETBMEBREESRE
ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of property, plant and WEEME - BE LR E
equipment (2,052) (1,911)
Interest received EHFIE 2,061 5,494
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME  BEMEEZFE
plant and equipment IR - 50
Increase in loan receivables JE W B SR8 N (8,000) (21,420)
Receipt from repayment of loan W3 UL B FRAE 3R
receivables 25,170 11,750
Increase in bond receivables JE W5 15 2538 hn = (80)
Deposit paid for acquisition of property, WEM% - MELEZH 2 DN
plant and equipment A (3,053) (4,320)
Cash outflow arising from acquisition of WIE—FBARELZRSE
a subsidiary pigss 45(a) - (760)
Cash outflow arising from disposal of HEBKRILEEEBELEY
discontinued operations Bemit 45(c) - (3)
Cash inflow arising from disposal of HEMBRARELE RS
subsidiaries mA 10 1,427
Decrease in VAT recoverable A Uy 5] 3 (B R - 516
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE-_Z-_—FNA=1THIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

2021 2020
—EB=-—F —_T_TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FET
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/ REFTEFRE(FRARE
(USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES HE 14,136 (9,257)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METHFSRERE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of new ordinary BITHEBR S FIEFEE
shares, net of 56,259 19,206
Advances from/(repayment to) ) — B A A2 FEER%
non-controlling shareholders of AR BRI HL R 58K,
a subsidiary and its related parties, (BR) %5
net of 1,129 (6,378)
New bank borrowings raised BEEHLRTER 6,655 4,482
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due to  JENEZEZEZHIER A1)
directors (1,198) 3,557
Repayment of lease liabilities BEREEE (988) (2,451)
Proceeds from non-convertible bonds & 8 N AR (E %5 2 FT1S A - 7,012
Repayment of non-convertible bonds (€& 7 A # A% (& 5 (30,797) (7,442)
Repayment of bank borrowings EBEBITEE (10,458) (2,241)
Interest paid ERFLE (4,792) (1,997)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM METDHREREFR
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 15,810 13,748
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN ReRBRSEEYEM
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (R2) 58 20,260 (4,119)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes JMNE[E R & 8) 2 & 1,173 2,772
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT F¥{HR&RRESEEY
BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,978 3,325
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT F£XE&RRESZEY
END OF YEAR 23,411 1,978
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED 3RERE;RE SE @ AR A T

2" —FNA=+HIEFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021
GENERAL INFORMATION

Global Strategic Group Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law
(Revised) of the Cayman Islands. The address of its
registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box
2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman lIslands. The
address of its principal place of business is Unit A, 11/F,
Neich Tower, 128 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
The Company’s shares are listed on GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 25
to the consolidated financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA").
HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRS”); Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”);
and Interpretations. These consolidated financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the
Stock Exchange and with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). Significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group are disclosed in
note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

&

2" —FNA=1+HIEFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021
BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for
the current accounting year of the Group. Note 3 provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting years reflected in these consolidated financial
statements.

Basis of Going Concern

The Group incurred a net loss of HK$22,767,000 for the
year ended 30 September 2021 and, as of that date, the
Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
HK$43,269,000. In addition, as at 30 September 2021, the
Group had capital commitments amounting to HK$9,902,000
as disclosed in note 48. The Group was also in default
of non-convertible bonds of HK$16,853,000 (“In Default
Bonds”) as of 30 September 2021.

These events and conditions indicate the existence of
material uncertainties which may cast significant doubt
about the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal
course of business.
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2" —FNA=+HIEFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021
BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of Going Concern (Continued)

Subsequent to 30 September 2021, non-convertible bonds
of HK$3,850,000 included in the In Default Bonds have
been renewed with maturity date extended to 30 September
2022 and non-convertible bonds of HK$12,303,000 included
in the In Default Bonds have been settled. Moreover,
holders of non-convertible bonds with principal amount in
aggregate of HK$11,912,000, including the aforementioned
non-convertible bonds of HK$3,850,000 which have been
renewed, have signed letters of intent with the Company
agreeing to extend the maturity date by one year once the
bonds mature.

The directors have estimated the Group’s cash requirements
by preparing a cashflow forecast of the Group for the
twelve-month period ending 30 September 2022. Mr. Wu
Guoming (“Mr. Wu”), a shareholder and a director of the
Company, and Mr. Wang Wenzhou (Mr. Wang”), a director
of the Company, as at 30 September 2021, have agreed to
provide sufficient funds to the Group so that the Group will
be able to meet all current obligations as they fall due for
the foreseeable future.

The directors of the Company therefore consider it
appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in preparing
these consolidated financial statements on the basis that
Mr. Wu and Mr. Wang have agreed to provide continuous
financial supports to the Group. Should the Group be unable
to operate as a going concern in the foreseeable future,
adjustments would have to be made to write down the
carrying value of the Group’s assets to their recoverable
amounts, to provide for any further liabilities that might
arise, and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current
liabilities as current assets and current liabilities respectively.
The effect of these adjustments have not been reflected in
these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

(@) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (a)

The Group has applied the Amendments to Reference
to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards
and the following amendments to HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA for the first time, which are mandatorily
effective for the annual period beginning on or after
1 October 2020 for the preparation of the financial
statements:

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8
Amendment to HKFRS 16

Definition of Material

COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform

Except as described below, the application of the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in HKFRS Standards and the amendments
to HKFRSs in the current year had no material impact
on the Group’s financial positions and performance for
the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures
set out in these financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of
Material

The amendments provide a new definition of material
that states “information is material if omitting,
misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary users
of general purpose financial statements make on the
basis of those financial statements, which provide
financial information about a specific reporting entity.”
The amendments also clarify that materiality depends
on the nature or magnitude of information, either
individually or in combination with other information,
in the context of the financial statements taken as a
whole.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

(a)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED 3RERE;RE SE @ AR A T

Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of
Material (Continued)

The application of the amendments had no impact on
the consolidated financial statements.

Amendment to HKFRS 16, COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions

The amendment provides a practical expedient that
allows a lessee to by-pass the need to evaluate
whether certain qualifying rent concessions occurring
as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic
(“COVID-19 Related Rent Concessions”) are lease
modifications and, instead, account for those rent
concessions as if they were not lease modifications.

There is no impact on the opening balance of equity at
1 October 2020.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE—_%T—

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7,
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

The amendments modify specific hedge accounting
requirements to allow hedge accounting to continue for
affected hedges during the period of uncertainty before
the hedged items or hedging instruments affected by
the current interest rate benchmarks are amended as a
result of the on-going interest rate benchmark reform.

The amendments had no impact on the financial
statements of the Company as the Company is not
affected by the interest rate benchmark reform.

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective
for the financial year beginning 1 October 2020. These
new and revised HKFRSs include the following which
may be relevant to the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. RAFIIRLETERAMK
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING WEER (&)
STANDARDS (continued)
(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet (b) EEMERKREMZHETRELE
effective (Continued) AEBMBEREER(E)

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RT3 BHHE 2%
Mz HBEN
Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS &#& 8 %5 2R E 5% « &5 1 January 2021
7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 Interest Rate & #ERIFE395% « BB —E_—%—HA—H
Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 WMEERETH - BEPHR
HERELAFERBBMBRE
HERIE1658 (BETAR) | R EA
W — FoMER
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018 — BEUNBHMELEN T —N\FE 1 January 2022
2020 Cycle —ECTFRRFEBE —E-_F—-HA—H
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Business BEMBREEEIFK(EFT 1 January 2022
Combination — Reference to the R)EBE G — B SERR T F—H—H
Conceptual Framework
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, plant BB EETERE169(BFTA) 1 January 2022
and equipment: proceeds before intended — #1% - BE ME&E - (EBE e
use RZRIZ TS 5RIE
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous contracts &b @&t RI 53758 (f&5] ) 1 January 2022
- cost of fulfilling a contract BEEH-—BITEOKE T F—H—H
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of EAGHERE1R (BRI A) 1 January 2023
Liabilities as Current or Non-Current BESHEARIDIIERD —E=%—H—H
Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation BT ERFE1ISRUBETAR) 1 January 2023
of Financial Statements and HKFRS g HER 2V RBE BT —E-=F—F—H
Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality WMERBEBWMEFE2%R
Judgements - Disclosure of Accounting (BRI IER EE M A B
Policies — B BRZHE
Amendments to HKAS 8 Accounting BB G ERESTE(1BETA) 1 January 2023
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates @& ~ @t {EEHH K —E-=F—H—H
and Errors — Definition of Accounting R —giHhETZEE
Estimates
Amendments to HKAS 12 Income Taxes BB EDE125R(BETA) 1 January 2023
— Deferred Tax Related to Assets and FRiGH — 8 — X ZFTEAEH —E-=%—H—H

Liabilities Arising from a Single Transaction & ZE & & EMBIELEHE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

&

2" —FNA=1+HIEFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021
ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3.

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment

of what the impact of these amendments and new

standards is expected to be in the period of initial

application. So far it has concluded that the adoption

of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the

consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, unless mentioned
otherwise in the accounting policies below (e.g. certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair value).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are

disclosed in note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED 3RERE;RE SE @ AR A T

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 30 September. Subsidiaries
are entities over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. The Group has power over
an entity when the Group has existing rights that give
it the current ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e.
activities that significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its
potential voting rights as well as potential voting
rights held by other parties. A potential voting right is
considered only if the holder has the practical ability to
exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that
results in a loss of control represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the
sale plus the fair value of any investment retained in
that subsidiary and (i) the Company’s share of the net
assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill
and any accumulated foreign currency translation
reserve relating to that subsidiary.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

Consolidation (Continued)

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to
the Company. Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial position
and consolidated statement of changes in equity
within equity. Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of profit or loss
and total comprehensive income for the year between
the non-controlling shareholders and owners of the
Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling shareholders even if
this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.
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Hz % FNA=+THIEFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED 3RERE;RE SE @ AR A T

Consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions (i.e. transactions
with owners in their capacity as owners). The carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed
to the owners of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment loss, unless the investment is classified as
held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale).

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the
acquisition of a subsidiary in a business combination.
The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at the acquisition-date fair
value of the assets given, equity instruments issued,
liabilities incurred and any contingent consideration.
Acquisition-related costs are recognised as expenses
in the periods in which the costs are incurred and the
services are received. |dentifiable assets and liabilities
of the subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at
their acquisition-date fair values.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

Business combination and goodwill (Continued)

The excess of the sum of the consideration transferred
over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded
as goodwill. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over
the sum of the consideration transferred is recognised
in consolidated profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase which is attributed to the Group.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest in the subsidiary is
remeasured at its acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gain or loss is recognised in consolidated
profit or loss. The fair value is added to the sum of the
consideration transferred in a business combination to
calculate the goodwill.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are
initially measured at the non-controlling shareholders’
proportionate share of the net fair value of the
subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities at the
acquisition date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BREREIRS &

Business combination and goodwill (Continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating
units (“CGUs”) or groups of CGUs that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination. Each
unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the Group at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwill
is compared to its recoverable amount, which is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately as
an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”).

The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$”), which
is the Company’s presentation currency. The
functional currency of the Company is Renminbi
(“RMB”).
HK$ as the presentation currency best suits the

The directors consider that choosing

needs of the shareholders and investors.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
—®NLA=+HIFE For the year ended 30 September 2021
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(ii) Transactions and balances in each entity’s

financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
into the functional currency on initial recognition
using the exchange rates prevailing on the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
in foreign currencies are translated at the
exchange rates at the end of each reporting year.
Gains and losses resulting from this translation
policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates when the fair values
are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income.
When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in profit or loss, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(c) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii) Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group

entities that have a functional currency different

from the Company’s presentation currency are

translated into the Company’s presentation

currency as follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each statement of

financial position presented are translated at

the closing rate at the date of that statement

of financial position;

- Income and expenses are translated at

average exchange rates for the period
(unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the

rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the exchange rates on the

transaction dates); and

- All resulting exchange differences are

recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the foreign currency

translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising

from the translation of monetary items that form

part of the net investment in foreign entities are

recognised in other comprehensive income and

accumulated in the foreign currency translation

reserve. When a foreign operation is sold,

such exchange differences are reclassified to

consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain or

loss on disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii) Translation on consolidation (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes, are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised in profit or loss during the period in which
they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Hz % FNA=+THIEFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED 3RERE;RE SE @ AR A T

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost less
their residual values over the estimated useful lives on
a straight-line basis. The principal annual rates are as
follows:

2.5% - 20%
20% - 33%%
12.5% - 33%%
20% - 60%
20% - 25%
5% - 20%
10% — 20%

Buildings

Computer system and equipment
Furniture and fixtures

Leasehold improvements

Motor vehicles

Pipeline and equipment

Plant and machinery

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction and plant and equipment pending
installation, is stated at cost less impairment losses.
Depreciation begins when the relevant assets are
available for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether

the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or

contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to

control the use of an identified asset for a period of

time in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed

where the customer has both the right to direct the use

of the identified asset and to obtain substantially all of

the economic benefits from that use.

(i)

The Group as a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s)
and non-lease component(s), the Group has
elected not to separate non-lease components
and accounts for each lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single
lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability, except for short-term leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less and leases
of low-value assets which, for the Group are
primarily car parking spaces. When the Group
enters into a lease in respect of a low-value
asset, the Group decides whether to capitalise
the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease
payments associated with those leases which are
not capitalised are recognised as an expense on
a systematic basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE—_T—-—
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED 3RERE;RE SE @ AR A T

Leases (Continued)

(i)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability
is initially recognised at the present value of the
lease payments payable over the lease term,
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined,
using a relevant incremental borrowing rate. After
initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is calculated
using the effective interest method. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or rate
are not included in the measurement of the lease
liability and hence are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting year in which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs
to dismantle and remove the underlying asset
or to restore the underlying asset or the site on
which it is located, discounted to their present
value, less any lease incentives received. The
right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses.

FNRA=ZFTHIEFE For the year ended 30 September 2021

4., EESFHBEE)

(e) HEHE)

(i) FEBEDERBAE)

HEEEA BMHEHESR
B e 1R 1H B A e 5 AH B A
RZBERER - LEAHE
EPRES MR - K
fief 5% ) & A~ AT B B A E
Al £ /A 1 7 18
Koo RYmERR HE
BERBHKAGE B
B X B R A RORE
B oo WIFBURR #5 B A
K2 A BHEENRTAAE
SEaEFE  BUR
EZetFEFARS -

HEEEAN R ERZER
BEEVIRIRK A E -
BREEAEREZVREREN
R F % B B8z B B R (]
HENRK  AERMEEZ
T ERKAN - £i#
AIBERT - EREEEMX
R BIEFGE RBRERE
EXMERBEESEME
R 2 AR (B RER
EHRME)  BAKRZE
MEEXRR  EREEE
H g3 AR, R I & MR

EEESIR -

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 i



e R R AR B A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

Leases (Continued)

(i)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the
underlying leased assets at the end of the lease
term are depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-
use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of its estimated useful life and
the lease term.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at
fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of right-of-use
assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, or there is a change in
the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to
be payable under a residual value guarantee, or
there is a change arising from the reassessment
of whether the Group will be reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in
this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or
is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to
zero.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED 3RERE;RE SE @ AR A T

Leases (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured when
there is a change in the scope of a lease or the
consideration for a lease that is not originally
provided for in the lease contract (“lease
modification”) that is not accounted for as a
separate lease. In this case the lease liability
is remeasured based on the revised lease
payments and lease term using a revised discount
rate at the effective date of the modification.
The only exceptions are any rent concessions
which arose as a direct consequence of the
COVID-19 pandemic and which satisfied the
conditions set out in paragraph 46B of HKFRS
16. In such cases, the Group took advantage of
the practical expedient not to assess whether
the rent concessions are lease modifications,
and recognised the change in consideration
as negative lease payments in profit or loss in
the period in which the event or condition that
triggers the rent concessions occurred.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do
not meet the definition of investment properties
and lease liabilities separately in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

The Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at
lease inception whether each lease is a finance
lease or an operating lease. A lease is classified
as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership
of an underlying assets to the lessee. If this is not
the case, the lease is classified as an operating
lease.

4., EESFHBEE)

(e)

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 i

HE(E)

(i)

(i)

FEEBERBEBA(E)

ENESBESIHEANRE
VERTZHERBRAY
(TR EBHR]) - BRE
AREBHEHEARR T8
EHEREARE - EIt
BRAT  HEEBBEELEE
FIEEMN R RARERER
£ B H BT R IR XK
BITEHTE - B —FH
AHE2019BMRmERERE
MEZEENTMABESR
% BERFEEBHBR
HAERISE 1657 B A6BE ATk
BWiEH - EBEBBERLT -
AEBERUTEERET
FTAHHeREREBHEE
a7l  WEBBEHEHSR®
B = sl IR B A M HAR 8
REZHHERALBHEENK
FFABE ©

AEBRGEEMBERRAKRA
BEBRITTAREDE
EEZEREEENEER

E)

AR BIERDHEA

EAKESLBEAR  H
REERERETSEM
ERRMEMEERKEH
E-WHEKHBEEEM
BrREfim @Ko R R &
O HEREABEA - BIZ
HESHESARMEME - &
A - ZBEESBERELEH
= o



e R R AR B A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4., EESTEERE)

(Continued)
() Intangible assets (f) BEEE
(i) Intangible assets acquired separately (i) EBEBEWEZEFEE

(ii)

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at costs less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is recognised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
The estimated useful life and amortisation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting year,
with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination are recognised separately from
goodwill and are initially recognised at their fair
value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as
their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets

(i)
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acquired in a business combination with finite Rl EBRA{EAF
useful lives are reported at costs less accumulated M EmPEAERESBEIE
amortisation and any accumulated impairment ZEREEEMRE%E
losses, on the same basis as intangible assets LARK AR R 5t 85 R AE ] B

that are acquired separately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

(9)

(h)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED 3RERE;RE SE @ AR A T

Intangible assets (Continued)

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal,
or when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains and losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit
or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average basis. The cost of finished goods comprises
all cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other
cost incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue. A contract liability would also be
recognised if the Group has an unconditional right to
receive consideration before the Group recognises
the related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding
receivable would also be recognised. When the
contract includes a significant financial component, the
contract balance includes interest accrued under the
effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position
when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for
If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of

amounts it may have to pay.

a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to
recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

U]

)]

(k)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED 3RERE;RE SE @ AR A T

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments (Continued)

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace. All recognised financial
assets are measured subsequently in their entirety at
either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the
classification of the financial assets.

Trade and other receivables, loan receivables and
bond receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right
to receive consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due. If revenue has been recognised
before the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration, the amount is presented as a contract
asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit
losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

U]

(m)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liguid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Cash
and cash equivalents are assessed for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”).

Discontinued operation

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group
(i.e. the operations and cash flows of which can be
clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group) that
either has been disposed of, or is classified as held
for sale, and which represents a separate major line
of business or geographical area of operations, or
is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a
separate major line of business or geographical area of
operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with
a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the component meets the criteria
to be classified as held for sale in accordance with
HKFRS 5, if earlier. It also occurs when the component
is abandoned.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Discontinued operation (Continued)

(n)

(o)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED 3RERE;RE SE @ AR A T

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a
single amount is presented in the statement of profit or
loss, which comprises:

- The post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation; and

- The post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or

of the assets or disposal group

constituting the discontinued operation.

on the disposal,

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument under
HKFRSs. The accounting policies adopted for specific
financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out
below.

Borrowings and bonds

Borrowings and bonds are recognised initially at
fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings and bonds are classified as current
liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the reporting year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p)

(a)

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a
financial liability at the time the guarantee is issued.
The liability is initially measured at fair value and
subsequently at the higher of:

- The amount determined in accordance with the
ECL model under HKFRS 9; and

- The amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, the cumulative amount of income
recognised in accordance with the principles of
HKFRS 15.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined
based on the present value of the difference in cash
flows between the contractual payments required under
the debt instrument and the payments that would
be required without the guarantee, or the estimated
amount that would be payable to a third party for
assuming the obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables
of associates are provided for no compensation, the
fair values are accounted for as contributions and
recognised as part of the cost of the investment.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r)

(s)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED 3RERE;RE SE @ AR A T

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidence
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Revenue and other income

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts collected
on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes VAT or
other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

Revenue from sale of liquefied natural gas in bulk are
recognised when control of the goods has transferred,
being when the goods have been delivered to the
customer’s specified location (delivery), and the agreed
service performed. Following delivery, the customer
has full discretion over the manner of distribution and
price to sell the goods, has the primary responsibility
when on selling the goods and bears the risks of
obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods. A
receivable is recognised by the Group when the goods
are delivered to the customer as this represents
the point in time at which the right to consideration
becomes unconditional, as only the passage of time is
required before payment is due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

Revenue from pipeline installation services is recognised
at a point in time when the installation completed and
the government inspected and issued approval report.
Payment for installation services is not due from the
customer until the installation services are complete.

The performance obligation of sale of natural gas
through pipelines to the customer are satisfied over
time as the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits of the natural gas provided
by the Group as it performs, therefore, revenue
arising from the sale of natural gas through pipelines
is recognised over time. The revenue from sale of
natural gas is based on the price as set out by the
government.

The Group provides leasing of steel support axial force
servo system and related installation services and
technology support to customer. Leasing income is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term
in accordance with the accounting policy in note 4(e).
Installation services and technology support services
income are recognised as a performance obligation
satisfied over time as the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits of these services
provided by the Group as it performs.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) (recycling) that are
not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is applied
to the gross carrying amount of the asset. For credit
impaired financial assets, the effective interest rate
is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying
amount net of loss allowance) of the asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

®

(u)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED 3RERE;RE SE @ AR A T

Revenue and other income (Continued)

Leasing income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the
leased asset.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to it and that the grant will be
received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and
recognised in profit or loss over the period to match
them with the costs they are intended to compensate.

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Employee benefits

(i) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as
a result of services rendered by employees up to
the end of the reporting year.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

—®NLA=FTHIFE For the year ended 30 September 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u)

(v)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii) Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by
the Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
retirement benefit scheme cost charged to profit
or loss represents contributions payable by the
Group to the funds.

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier
of the dates when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits, and when the
Group recognises restructuring costs and involves
the payment of termination benefits.

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments
to certain directors and employees. Equity-settled
share-based payments are measured at fair value
(excluding the effect of non market-based vesting
conditions) of the equity instruments at the date of
grant. The fair value determined at the grant date of
the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based
on the Group’s estimate of shares that will eventually
vest and adjusted for the effect of non market-based
vesting conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(w)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED (RIREREEEE AR AT  ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F 3R

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and
used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset,
the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation
is determined by applying a capitalisation rate to the
expenditures on that asset. The capitalisation rate is
the weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable
to the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding
during the year, other than borrowings made specifically
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset. Any
specific borrowing that remain outstanding after the
related asset is ready for its intended use or sale is
included in the general borrowing pool for calculation
of capitalisation rate on general borrowings.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x)

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in
profit or loss because of items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses or unused tax
credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BREREIRS &

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting year and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting year. Deferred tax is recognised in profit
or loss, except when it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end
of the reporting year, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-
of-use assets and the related lease liabilities, the
Group first determines whether the tax deductions
are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group
applies HKAS 12 requirements to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences
relating to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
are not recognised at initial recognition and over the
lease terms due to application of the initial recognition
exemption.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x)

(v)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax
assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life
or that are not yet available for use are reviewed for
impairment annually and whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate the carrying amount may not
be recoverable.

The carrying amounts of other non-financial assets
are reviewed at each reporting date for indications
of impairment and where an asset is impaired, it is
written down as an expense through the consolidated
statement of profit or loss to its estimated recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets. If this is the case,
recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which
the asset belongs. Recoverable amount is the higher of
value in use and the fair value less costs of disposal of
the individual asset or the CGU.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated
future cash flows of the asset/CGU. Present values are
computed using pre-tax discount rates that reflect the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset/
CGU whose impairment is being measured.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

v)

(2)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED 3RERE;RE SE @ AR A T

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

Impairment losses for CGUs are allocated first against
the goodwill of the unit and then pro rata amongst
the other assets of the CGU. Subsequent increases
in the recoverable amount caused by changes in
estimates are credited to profit or loss to the extent
that they reverse the impairment unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case
the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECLs on
trade and other receivables, loan receivables and bond
receivables. The amount of ECLs is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition of the respective financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECLs on these financial assets are
estimated using a provision matrix based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at
the reporting date, including time value of money where
appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition. However, if
the credit risk on the financial instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group measures the loss allowance for that financial
instrument at an amount equal to 12-month ECL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECLs that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
a financial instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected
to result from default events on a financial instrument
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort. Forward-looking
information considered includes the future prospects
of the industries in which the Group’s debtors operate,
obtained from economic expert reports, financial
analysts, governmental bodies, relevant think-tanks and
other similar organisations, as well as consideration
of various external sources of actual and forecast
economic information that relate to the Group’s core
operations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(z) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into

account when assessing whether credit risk has

increased significantly since initial recognition:

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED 3RERE;RE SE @ AR A T

an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk for a particular financial
instrument;

existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

significant increases in credit risk on other
financial instruments of the same debtor;

an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A financial instrument is determined to
have low credit risk if:

(i)  the financial instrument has a low risk of default;

(i)  the debtor has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term;
and

(il adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to
fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have low
credit risk when the asset has external credit rating
of “investment grade” in accordance with the globally
understood definition or if an external rating is not
available, the asset has an internal rating of “performing”.
Performing means that the counterparty has a strong
financial position and there is no past due amounts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(@)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED 3RERE;RE SE @ AR A T

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that the
Group becomes a party to the irrevocable commitment
is considered to be the date of initial recognition for
the purposes of assessing the financial instrument
for impairment. In assessing whether there has been
a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition of a financial guarantee contracts, the
Group considers the changes in the risk that the
specified debtor will default on the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an
event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that
receivables that meet either of the following criteria are
generally not recoverable.

- when there is a breach of financial covenants by
the counterparty; or

- information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

—®NLA=FTHIFE For the year ended 30 September 2021

4., EESFHBEE)

()

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 i

ERMEEREE)

FEEEEEEM(E)

RHMBEREAOME - AREMNX
AR BEEAE— 75 2 BHIRG
AR T ERENEETNSG
BRzAH - FEEERREM
BERSNDIIGERER T ER
ZREME - AKREEZRIETES
ANER AR 2 ZE -

AEEERERMBREZEN
- LBREERBRESREE L
Tt WiEEERT ARERZ IR ERE
WERRBHRA BN EERRZ
BELT -

BHZESH

AEERRUTBERRAREE
REREEBMNMERBKENS
- AREAEKBRRATENUT
B — TRAR 1 2 B R R — AR
AR E -

- XRZHFERMBRH %

— ABELRERA IR
MEMKE  BHEALK
ARERBEARENEEA
2HRER(TEELAKEF
BZEAEHm) -



e R R AR B A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Definition of default (Continued)

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is
more than 90 days past due unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate
that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following events:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
counterparty;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

- the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
counterparty a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

- it is becoming probable that the counterparty will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
or

- the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(@)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED 3RERE;RE SE @ AR A T

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, including when the debtor has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when
the amounts are over two years past due, whichever
occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised
in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECLs is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward-looking information as
described above. As for the exposure at default, for
financial assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross
carrying amount at the reporting date; for financial
guarantee contracts, the exposure includes the amount
drawn down as at the reporting date, together with any
additional amounts expected to be drawn down in the
future by default date determined based on historical
trend, the Group’s understanding of the specific future
financing needs of the debtors, and other relevant
forward-looking information.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the
difference between all contractual cash flows that are
due to the Group in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the original effective interest rate. For a
lease receivable, the cash flows used for determining
the ECLs is consistent with the cash flows used in
measuring the lease receivable in accordance with
HKFRS 16 Leases.

For a financial guarantee contract, as the Group is
required to make payments only in the event of a
default by the debtor in accordance with the terms of
the instrument that is guaranteed, the expected loss
allowance is the expected payments to reimburse the
holder for a credit loss that it incurs less any amounts
that the Group expects to receive from the holder, the
debtor or any other party.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a
financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL
in the previous reporting year, but determines at the
current reporting date that the conditions for lifetime
ECL are no longer met, the Group measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to 12-month ECL at
the current reporting date, except for assets for which
simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount
through a loss allowance account.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(aa)

(ab)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED 3RERE;RE SE @ AR A T

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditures expected to settle the
obligation.

When it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is
remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of
the reporting period or those that indicate the going
concern assumption is not appropriate are adjusting
events and are reflected in the consolidated financial
statements. Events after the reporting period that are
not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements when material.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES

(i)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the

directors have made the following judgements that have

the most significant effect on the amounts recognised

in the consolidated financial statements (apart from

those involving estimates, which are dealt with below).

(a)

(b)

Going concern basis

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis, the validity
of which depends upon measures taken by the
directors to improve the Group’s financial position,
cash flows and profitability and the financial
supports from two directors of the Company, at
a level sufficient to finance the working capital
requirements of the Group as explained in note 2
to the consolidated financial statements.

Consolidation of entity with less than 50%
equity interest holding

Although the Group owns less than 50% of the
equity interest in EE MIZHXARFAER AR
(Yichang Biaodian Natural Gas Utilisation Co. Ltd.)
(“Yichang Biaodian”), Yichang Biaodian is treated
as a subsidiary because the Group is able to
control the relevant activities of Yichang Biaodian
as a result of the shareholders’ agreement among
the Group and other shareholders of Yichang
Biaodian. The assessment on the control is set
out in note 25(b).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
—®NLA=FTHIFE For the year ended 30 September 2021

S

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continued)

(i) Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

(c) Significant increase in credit risk

As explained in accounting policy as disclosed
in note 4(z), ECL are measured as an allowance
equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets, or
lifetime ECL for stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An
asset moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition.
HKFRS 9 does not define what constitutes a
significant increase in credit risk. In assessing
whether the credit risk of an asset has significantly
increased the Group takes into account qualitative
and quantitative reasonable and supportable
forward-looking information.

(ii) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the

reporting year, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are

discussed below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continued)

(i)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(a) Depreciation and impairment on property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets

The Group determines the estimated useful lives,
residual values and related depreciation charges
for the Group’s property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives and
residual values of property, plant and equipment
of similar nature and functions. The Group will
revise the depreciation charge where useful
lives and residual values are different to those
previously estimated, or it will write-off or write-
down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets

that have been abandoned.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(i)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED 3RERE;RE SE @ AR A T

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(a)

Depreciation and impairment on property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
(Continued)

The Group assesses whether property, plant and
equipment and construction in progress have
any indication of impairment in accordance with
the accounting policy. The recoverable amounts
of property, plant and equipment have been
determined based on value in use calculations
of each CGU the property, plant and equipment
belonged, which requires the Group to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the
CGUs and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value. Property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets are stated
at costs less accumulated depreciation and
impairment, if any. In determining whether an
asset is impaired, the Group has to exercise
judgment and make estimation, particularly in
assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred or
any indicators that may affect the asset value;
(2) whether the carrying value of an asset can
be supported by the recoverable amount, in the
case of value in use, the net present value of
future cash flows which are estimated based
upon the continued use of the asset; and (3)
the appropriate key assumptions to be applied
in estimating the recoverable amounts including
cash flow projections and an appropriate discount
rate. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset (including
right-of-use assets), the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the CGU to which the
assets belongs. Changing the assumptions and
estimates, including the discount rates or the
growth rate in the cash flow projections, could
materially affect the recoverable amounts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
2" —FNA=1+HIEFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

&

5.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continued)

(ii) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(a) Depreciation and impairment on property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets

(Continued)

No impairment losses (2020: HK$132,902,000
and HK$887,000 respectively) were recognised
for the year ended 30 September 2021 to write
down the carrying amount of the property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets to the
recoverable amount of the CGUs belonged
respectively. The carrying amount of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets as
at 30 September 2021 was HK$112,246,000
and HK$2,055,000 respectively (2020:
HK$108,168,000 and HK$1,948,000 respectively).

(b) Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes mainly
in several jurisdictions. Significant estimates
are required in determining the provision for
income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions
in the period in which such determination is
made. During the year ended 30 September 2021,
HK$643,000 (2020: HK$28,349,000) of income
tax was credited to profit or loss based on the
estimated assessable profits from continuing

operations.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED (RERERE @GR AT

5. FEHEHREKXMEF #)

(ii)

R FHBEEZEBRIR(E)

(a)

(b)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(i)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED 3RERE;RE SE @ AR A T

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(c) Amortisation and impairment on intangible

assets

The Group determines the estimated useful lives
and related amortisation for the Group’s intangible
assets. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite, based on
the expected usage and technical obsolescence
from the changes in the market demands or
services output from the assets. Intangible assets
with finite useful lives are amortised over the
expected useful economic lives and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication
that the intangible assets may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method
for the intangible assets with a finite useful
life are reviewed by the management at least
at the end of each reporting year. The Group
assesses whether any indication of impairment
in accordance with the accounting policy.
The recoverable amounts of intangible assets
have been determined based on value in use
calculations of each CGU the intangible assets
belonged which requires the Group to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the
CGU and a suitable discount rate in order to

calculate the present value.

No impairment loss (2020: HK$106,934,000) was
recognised for the year ended 30 September
2021. The carrying amount of intangible assets at
30 September 2021 was HK$71,031,000 (2020:

HK$69,507,000).

5. FEHEHRE KM &)

(ii)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continued)

(i)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(d)

Impairment of trade and other receivables,
loan receivables and bond receivables

The management of the Group estimates the
amount of impairment loss for ECL on trade and
other receivables, loan receivables and bond
receivables based on the credit risk of these
receivables. The amount of the impairment
loss based on ECL model is measured as the
difference between all contractual cash flows
that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.
Where the future cash flows are less than
expected, or being revised downward due to
changes in facts and circumstances, a material
impairment loss may arise.

As at 30 September 2021, the carrying amount
of trade receivables was HK$6,576,000, net of
allowance for trade receivables of HK$6,264,000
(2020: HK$3,822,000, net of allowance for trade
receivables of HK$4,424,000).

As at 30 September 2021, the carrying amount
of prepayments, deposits and other receivables
was HK$13,794,000, net of allowance for other
receivables of HK$11,000 (2020: HK$6,027,000,
net of allowance for other receivables of
HK$700,000).

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED ¥RERE} B & B 5 IR A &)

5. FEHEHREKXMEF #)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY

ESTIMATES (Continued)

(ii) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(d)

Impairment of trade and other receivables,
loan receivables and bond receivables
(Continued)

As at 30 September 2021, the carrying amount
of loan receivables was HK$4,310,000, net of
allowance for loan receivables of HK$1,138,000
(2020: HK$21,944,000, net of allowance for loan

receivables of HK$1,017,000).

As at 30 September 2021,

of bond receivables was nil,

the carrying amount
net of allowance

for bond receivables of HK$10,935,000 (2020:
Nil, net of allowance for bond receivables of

HK$10,935,000).

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest
rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s

financial performance.

(@) Foreign currency risk

The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency
risk as some of its business transactions, assets and
liabilities are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the Group entities such as United
States dollars (“US$”) and HK$. The Group currently
does not have a foreign currency hedging policy in
respect of foreign currency transactions, assets and
liabilities. The Group monitors its foreign currency
exposure closely and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED 3RERE;RE SE @ AR A T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Hz—% FNA=+THIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

®= —< —

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

At 30 September 2021, if RMB had weakened 10%
against the HK$ with all other variables held constant,
consolidated loss after tax for the year would have
been HK$425,000 (2020: HK$2,782,000) higher, arising
mainly as a result of the foreign exchange loss on non-
convertible bonds and other payables denominated in
HK$, but partly offset by loan receivables denominated
in HK$. If RMB had strengthened 10% against HK$
with all other variables held constant, consolidated loss
after tax for the year would have been HK$425,000
(2020: HK$2,782,000) lower, arising mainly as a result
of the foreign exchange gain on non-convertible bonds
and other payables denominated in HK$, but partly
offset by loan receivables denominated in HK$.

At 30 September 2021, if RMB had weakened 10%
against the US$ with all other variables held constant,
consolidated loss after tax for the year would have
been HK$95,000 (2020: HK$541,000) higher, arising
mainly as a result of the foreign exchange loss on non-
convertible bonds denominated in US$. If RMB had
strengthened 10% against US$ with all other variables
held constant, consolidated loss after tax for the year
would have been HK$95,000 (2020: HK$541,000)
lower, arising mainly as a result of the foreign exchange
gain on non-convertible bonds denominated in US$.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED ¥RERE} B & B 5 IR A &)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED 3RERE;RE SE @ AR A T

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not
meet its obligations under a financial instrument or
leading to a financial loss. The
Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating

customer contract,

activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its
financing activities, including deposits with banks and
financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions
and other financial instruments. The Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from cash and cash equivalents
is limited because the counterparties are banks and
financial institutions with high credit-rating assigned by
international credit-rating agencies, for which the Group

considers to have low credit risk.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 85%
(2020: 97%) of the total trade receivables were due
from the Group’s three (2020: three) largest customers
as at 30 September 2021, of which 45% (2020: 67 %)
came from the largest customer of the Group and all of
the customers are located in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”).

6.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business
unit subject to the Group’s established policy,
procedures and control relating to customer credit
risk management. Individual credit evaluations are
performed on all customers requiring credit over
a certain amount. These evaluations focus on
the customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customer as
well as pertaining to the economic environment in
which the customer operates. Trade receivables
are due within 180 days from the date of billing.
Debtors with balances that are more than 3 to
6 months past due are requested to settle all
outstanding balances before any further credit
is granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix.
As the Group’s historical credit loss experience
does not indicate significantly different loss
patterns for different customer segments, the
loss allowance based on past due status is not
further distinguished between the Group’s different
customer bases.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED ¥RERE} B & B 5 IR A &)

—®NLA=+HIFE For the year ended 30 September 2021

6.

R EREZ)

(b)

EERK(E)

(i)

PR B 5 R

EEBBEUEASEIREH
REFPEERREREZK
CRBERREZEERT
SEEFPEERR o AE
EHgHmBEEERRNET
SR BEFPETEREERT
e WEFBEEHHEE
FiRA R R BREER
REZEREN  LEE
XEPZHEEER A KkE
B EET 2 KOBEIRIE M
BHER - EIRE FER
EREHHRE 1808 K E
H o AEBEkKBE B
BI3EGEAE#H 2 EB A
BEFBREEES A
ERTHBREMNEER - B
FEBRAT  AXEBTE
M5 EEF G o

7

my AR

AEBEZEERR2HASRE
EEBRZEBAERKES
R EBEEEE RNE
REEREEETTHE - H
RAEEREZEEEEL
AR TEEFED BB REXN
TRAEBEER  EXAaH
REZERBEBETIENAE
BTRAEFPERZEE—F

B e

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 4Fif

125



e R R AR B R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. BKREKRER#)

(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERKRE)
(i) Trade receivables (Continued) () EREZERH(E)

TEREBIWRZZ=Z—FNA
= TRAEERERE SR
RERZEERRNMBERE

The following table provides information about
the Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for
trade receivables as at 30 September 2021:

126

EEENER
Gross

Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
e R BREAE EERE
% HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

2021 —E-—f
Current (not past due) BVHA (R HR) 3.52% 2,689 94
1 — 90 days past due #EI1 — 90H 7.59% 4,066 308
91 - 180 days past due #HI91 — 180H 11.08% 25 3
181 — 366 days past due #HI181 — 366H 14.97% 237 36
More than 366 days past due  #HiBiB366H 100.00% 5,823 5,823
12,840 6,264

Gross

Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount  allowance
TEEAETIE & RmAaE EE R
% HK$’'000 HK$’000
FHET FHT

2020 —E-SHE
Current (not past due) BVHA (R HA) 4.29% 1,638 70
1 — 90 days past due #EF1 — 90H 6.07% 94 6
91 — 180 days past due #HI91 — 180H 6.07% - -
181 — 366 days past due #HE181 — 366 H 15.47% 2,562 396
More than 366 days past due w HAEE 366 H 100.00% 3,952 3,952
8,246 4,424

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED 3RERE;RE SE @ AR A T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. MBEREE®
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) =ERRE)

(i) Trade receivables (Continued) () EUREZERH(E)
Expected loss rates are based on actual loss TEHBEEDREBRE=F
experience over the past three years. These LEBREBEBELRSEL - %
rates are adjusted to reflect differences between S ERSELHAEARBRE
economic conditions during the year over which BERSEBRCFEIKE
the historic data has been collected, current MR BRI RAEH
conditions and the Group’s view of economic HEWRRBRFR 2 &E
conditions over the expected lives of the MR BRIz EZRE -
receivables.

Movement in the loss allowance account in FRNEKREZERER ZEER
respect of trade receivables during the year is as HRIBZFHUT
follows:
2021 2020
—BZ—F —T-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FHET
At beginning of the year REH] 4,424 48
Allowance recognised for the year FAER L BHE 2,200 4,304
Disposal of discontinued operations HEDKRIEEEET
(note 45(b)) (Bft7E45(0)) - (20)
Write-off i 5 (659) -
Exchange differences EHZER 299 92
At end of year RER 6,264 4,424

The loss allowance increased drastically in 2021
because of slow settlement from customers
causing to balances long outstanding and
increased in days past due over 1 year resulted in
an increase in loss allowance of HK$2,200,000.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED 3RERE;RS SE @GR A F)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

(ii)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BREREIRS &

Bond receivables, loan receivables, deposits
and other receivables and due from a related
party

The Group transacts only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. Bond receivables, loan
receivables, deposits and other receivables and
due from a related party are monitored on an

ongoing basis.

The credit quality of the financial assets included
in bond receivables, loan receivables, deposits
and other receivables and due from a related
party is considered to be “normal” when they are
not past due and there is no information indicating
that the financial assets had a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise,
the credit quality of the financial assets is
considered to be “doubtful”.

EAERQH

6.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6.

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

EERERE)

(b) FEERMR(E)

(ii) Bond receivables, loan receivables, deposits (i) EYESF  BEUEF #2
and other receivables and due from a related REMERBRFREK—F
party (Continued) BB EE(E)

The loss allowance account in respect of FANERKREFRER &
bond and loan receivables, deposits and other & N2 E it JiE W BR SR DA % FE U
receivables and due from a related party during —HEABM AR IE SIERE
the year is as follows: BRIBAAT -
Deposits
Loan Bond and other  Due from a
receivables  receivables receivables related party
BeREfM Ek—4
ERER EKES FE R TR BH LA
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT T THT THT
At 1 October 2019 RZZ-NE+HA—H 7,003 177 - -
Allowance recognised for the — F AR Z &
year 763 10,758 700 -
Disposal of discontinued HEDRIHEEEE
operations (note 45(b)) (Bt E45(b)) (2,921) = = =
Reversals e (3,860) - - -
Exchange differences BN ER 32 - - -
At 30 September 2020 and ~ RZEZF
1 October 2020 NA=+TBER
“Z-ZETH-H 1,017 10,935 700 -
Allowance recognised for the — FRTER 2 &
year 1,138 - - 22
Reversals Ao (1,017) - (724) -
Exchange differences EHER = = 35 -
At 30 September 2021 R-F-—F
NA=+H 1,138 10,935 11 22

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IREREmE & @B R

-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

(ii)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED 3RERE;RE SE @ AR A T

Bond receivables, loan receivables, deposits
and other receivables and due from a related
party (Continued)

The management of the Group assessed the
risk of default based on both quantitative and
qualitative information on hand after initial
recognition. Based on their assessment, there
was a significant increase in the loss allowance
in bond receivables because of the increase in
default risk that certain bond receivables have
been overdue since maturity as they have financial
difficulty to repay or the debtor has been under
litigation process.

6.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The maturity analysis based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows of the Group’s financial

liabilities is as follows:

6. KEKRER#)

(c)

REE SRR

AEBZBRRERERINH R
BEHRBESFR - NRBAER
RRZEACHBRERNEEREE
HZRBESFL -

AEESRAEBREGORME
ReEREBAEZIHOINAT ¢

Total
Less than Between Between Over undiscounted
1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years 5years  cash flows
RER
SME 1-2% 2-5F 580F HEREAE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THER ThRT THER TERT TR
At 30 September 2021 R-B=-F
AE=tH
Trade payables LT 873 - - - 873
Accruals and other payables R B R AR
B 49,804 - - - 49,804
Lease liabilities HEaE 1,500 454 = = 1,954
Due to related parties R A 1,218 - - = 1,218
Due to directors ENESHAE 3,011 - - - 3,011
Non-convertible bonds Rk ES 27,526 - - - 21,526
Due to non-controlling shareholders R —EHBA R 2
of a subsidiary and its related FERRER
parties EB 7 A - 44,423 - - 44,423
Bank borrowings RAEE 8,829 9,356 1,278 - 19,463
92,761 54,233 1,278 - 148,272
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Hz % FNA=+THIEFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

r_=_

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(c)

(d)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED 3RERE;RE SE @ AR A T

6. BKREKRER#)

Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) RBEESREM(E)
Total
Less than Between Between Over  undiscounted
1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years 5 years cash flows
REER
SIE 1-2% 255 SENE  HReRERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TR T Tz TR
At 30 September 2020 R-2-%fF
AB=1A
Trade payables [ECESA 855 - - - 855
Accruals and other payables EHERREMER
Rl 40,354 - - - 40,354
Lease liabilties HERE 1,208 415 - - 1,618
Due to related parties JEfTBE 7R 2,254 = = = 2,254
Due to directors ERESRA 3,969 - - - 3,969
Non-convertible bonds TR ES 57,146 3,160 - - 60,306
Due to non-controlling shareholders & —RIf B AR 2
of a subsidiary and its related FERRER
parties HBEATE - 40,686 - - 40,686
Bank borrowings BEE 9,385 5,382 8,114 - 22,881
115,166 49,643 8,114 - 172,923
Interest rate risk (d) F=EREK

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of benchmark interest
rate of the People’s Bank of China arising from the
Group’s borrowing denominated in RMB.

Other than bank borrowing mentioned above, the
Group’s loan and bond receivables, non-convertible
bonds and other borrowings bear interest at fixed
interest rate and therefore are subject to fair value
interest rate risk.

The directors consider the Group’s exposure to interest
rate risk is not significant and therefore no sensitivity
analysis has been prepared.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. KEKRER#)

(e) Categories of financial instruments at 30 September (e) MABE=1tHZzE®MIESHE
2021 2020
—E-—F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHET
Financial assets: SRMEE !
Financial assets at amortised cost REHEKAR R @R EE 37,208 30,526
Financial liabilities: cReE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost R HEK AR Z /A E 144,562 167,370
(f) Fair values f) 2DFE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets RE VBRI R R 2 N EE
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated cHMEENEHABEZCEREHR
statement of financial position approximate their HESAZAFEREE -

respective fair values.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 7.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The
following disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair
value hierarchy that categories into three levels the inputs to
valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the Group can access at the
measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of any of the three levels as of the date of the
event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7.

Reconciliation of liabilities measured at fair value

based on level 3:

NEETESE)

REE=REQXFETEZEGYHK:

Convertible bond designated

At beginning of year

Total losses recognised in profit or loss#

Transfer as non-convertible bond upon
maturity

Exchange differences

At end of year

REA]

PIE s TR 2 B IR AR RR#

R EI B IR R AR AR
B%

M ERE

RER

# The total gains or losses recognised in profit or loss
at end of reporting year were presented in the face
of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income for the year ended 30

September 2020.

at FVTPL
EBERAFHEFTABREZ
ARRES
2021 2020
—E-—F —ZEEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FExT FHT
- 19,771
- 399
- (20,000)
- (170)

W5 RN B R RIS S

EBlEAENEE S -_ZENA

—tELEFEZEAER REA

cEAERPEEERS -

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED 3R ERELRE &£ @GR 2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

8. REVENUE 8. W=
Disaggregation of revenue W&o
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by RFARBREREEBZEEEM
major products or service line for the year from continuing SR EHRAEEFPEN W EE D
operations is as follows: wmR
2021 2020
=B —F —T_FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Revenue from contracts with customers & &M EZERAE155
within the scope of HKFRS 15 HEARBEFEHAZWE
Disaggregated by major products or service & BE sk IR LR EI
lines
- Sales of natural gas —HERAR 57,558 37,438
- Rendering of services — RS 6,011 2,966
63,569 40,404
Revenue from other sources H At RFE =z W s
— Leasing income —HEWRA 7,917 2,330
71,486 42,734
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&

r2-F-

REVENUE (continued)

Disaggregation of revenue (Continued)

The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods and

services over time and at a point in time in the following

major product lines and geographical regions:

—FNA=+HIEFE For the year ended 30 September 2021

AEERUTEEER S BEME
MEAR—BESEE SR RBEE
CES

Pipeline Provision of technology Independent financial
Sales of natural gas installation services  support services advisory Total
BEXAR EERERY RER I RRH BIHBRE @it
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
Z8C-F -To%F “§C-F CF%EF C§o-F CSC%E CR3o-F CSC5F CR-EF CECERE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$000  HK$'000
TR TEr  TErn TR TEr  TEx  TEr  TEn  TEm  TEn
Primary geographical markets EHE 5
-The PRCexcept Hong Kong -~ $EI(T8HEER) 57558 97438 3276 563 2505 1904 - - 63429 30905
- Hong Kong -&% - - - - - - 140 499 140 499
Revenue from external customers  RESNIEE 24& 57,55 37,438 3,276 563 2,595 1,904 140 499 63,569 40,404
Timing of revenue recognition  WEEZRME
Products transferred at a point in - RE-BEHEY 7 ER
time - 157 3,276 563 - = 140 499 3,416 1,219
Products and services transferred FeEEER 2 ERRRE
over time 57,558 37,281 - - 2,595 1,904 - - 60153 39,185
Total &5 57,55 37,438 3,216 563 2,595 1,904 140 499 63,569 40404
GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BRIREREEER AT  ANNUAL REPORT 2021 43R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

9. OTHER INCOME 9. Hftlr A

2021 2020

—B--—F —_ETF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Bank interest income H|ITRIE A 4 1
Interest income from bond receivables FEWEZ 2 A B WA - 968
Interest income from loan to third parties REFE=ZFEZTZFERA 1,719 2,419
Government grants (note) RS R B (B 3E) 788 512
Others EAh 118 39
2,629 3,939
Note: During the year, the Group recognised government Mizy : RAEERN - AEEFH20198
grants of approximately HK$520,000 (2020: A 7% 55 J 48 8 ¥ B RE SR BRI 48 B
HK$512,000) in respect of COVID-19 related #1520,000 B T (ZE =T F :
subsidies, which relates to Employment Support 512,000 7T ) « BAE B AT AT
Scheme provided by the Hong Kong government. The REZRMETEEH - 8T
remaining government grants represented government BB AR EM B A B 2@
subsidy granted to enterprise, who had fulfilled certain @z EMBRFRTESE THRE
requirements such as engaging in research and (Planfe EMEES - RIBESF
development activities, duly paid taxes in previous BT LA REMRHE &
years and use of IT to support its business, by the ¥B) 2 EERENBSEN(Z

local government of the region that the subsidiary TTF | o

operates (2020: Nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

10. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 10. Hfttlz= R EG18
2021 2020
—EC-—fF —T_FTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHH B AR E 52 1,576
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME - BEMEERE
equipment - 4
Loss on written off of property, plant and WEEWZE - BE LREEE
equipment - (16)
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets FRAEEERERBE
(note 23(a)) (B¥5E23(a)) - (887)
Others HA, 2 150
54 827
11. SEGMENT INFORMATION 1. 7 HER
The Group has three (2020: three) operating segments as AEBZ=E(ZZT_FF : — @)K
follows: oEAN
Natural gas operations - including investment in natural RARET - BEKERARE
gas projects, sales of natural B - HEXA
gas, natural gas cooking R AARKA
appliance and accessories NEEMAREE
and pipeline installation 8
Leasing business - including services rendered HEHEK - PERESEME
from leasing of steel support N RIR AR R
axial force servo system and Rtz
technology support P 7%
Independent financial - including services rendered from BUMBER - BERBLYEE
advisory independent financial advisory ol M (R B A8 42 2
and insurance brokerage B 2 R

business
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=

11. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

r2-EF-

—®NLA=FTHIFE For the year ended 30 September 2021

11.

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business

units that offer different products and services. They are

managed separately because each business requires
different technology and marketing strategies.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the

same

as those described in note 4 to the consolidated

financial statements. Segment profits or losses do not

include amounts for discontinued operations, unallocated

corporate expenses, certain other income, finance cost

and income tax. Segment assets do not include assets of
discontinued operations or held for sales, bank and cash
balances and unallocated assets. Segment liabilities do not
include liabilities of discontinued operations, non-convertible

bonds, some other borrowings and unallocated liabilities.

Segment non-current assets do not include deposits for

acquisitions.

The Group accounts for intersegment sales and transfers as

if the

sales or transfers were to third parties, i.e. at current

market prices.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED 3RERE;RE SE @ AR A T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z-_—FNA=1THIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

11. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(a)

Information about operating segment profit or loss,
assets and liabilities from continuing operations:

11. o EHER (&)

(a) FRAREBEBEARKEEB2KED
MR - EERBENER

Independent
Natural gas Leasing financial
operations business advisory Total
RARREHR HEXYE BIYMKER Mt
HK$’000 HK$’°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT THET THET THET
Year ended 30 September &BE=-ZT=-—F
2021 AAZ+tHLEE
Revenue from external REIMNBEE 2 Was
customers 60,834 10,512 140 71,486
Segment (loss)/profit HEB(ER),/EF (4,870) 3,196 (1,260) (2,934)
Interest revenue Yz - 3 - 3
Interest expense FEHL (2,157) - - (2,157)
Depreciation and amortisation 7% & # 4 (9,325) (1,968) - (11,293)
Net foreign exchange gain P 5 Wz 58 130 - - 130
Other material non-cash items: EfEAIEIRLIER ¢
Impairment loss on goodwill  EEFEERE - - (580) (580)
(Allowance)/reversal of VH&T%EE (4
allowance for trade &),/ BERR
receivables (49) (2,152) 1 (2,200)
Reversal of allowance for H b 5 BR SRR A
other receivables Gl 4 - - 4
Allowance for due from JRE Ak BRSO BR R
related parties - (22) - (22)
Additions to segment non- NEDEIERBEE
current assets 1,986 4,161 - 6,147
As at 30 September 2021 R-B-—F
hA=+H
Segment assets DEEE 182,423 26,748 15 209,186
Segment liabilities DEAE (126,379) (8,167) (935) (135,481)
GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIRE{MEEEAR AT ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F3#
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

11. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 1. 2 ER (&)

(a) Information about operating segment profit or loss, (a) EHERERELEEK2RED
assets and liabilities from continuing operations: HmiER  EEREBENER (&)
(Continued)

Independent
Natural gas Leasing financial
operations business advisory Total
AARED MEE® By VBER et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
FET FHEL FHL FET
Year ended 30 September BHEZZE-EF
2020 AAZ+HLEE
Revenue from external RAMNBRE 2=
customers 38,001 4,234 499 42,734
Segment loss DEbEE (257,072) (2,539) (2,857) (262,468)
Interest revenue 8 e = 1 = 1
Interest expense FERE (3,210) = = (3,210)
Depreciation and amortisation  #7& K& # 5 (20,199) (1,086) = (21,285)
Gain on disposal of fixed & B B E W
assets 4 - - 4
Net foreign exchange loss fE KB F 5 (41) = = (41)
Other material non-cash items: EMEAIFFREIEE :
Impairment loss on goodwill  EEREEE = = (1,958) (1,958)
Impairment loss on property,  #% - BB K& E
plant and equipment BEEE (132,902) = = (132,902)
Impairment loss on B EEREER
intangible assets (106,934) - - (106,934)
Allowance for trade e E Z R
receivables (6) (4,297) (1) (4,304)
Allowance for other Hofth B UL BR TR BB
receivables (8) - = (8)
Additions to segment non- RNEDHIERDEE
current assets 635 4,612 = 5,247

As at 30 September 2020 R-ZT-ZTHF

hA=+H
Segment assets DEEE 176,382 20,108 616 197,106
Segment liabilities DEaE (119,808) (6,095) (710) (126,613)
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HE-_Z-_—FNA=1THIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

11. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(b)

11. o EHER (&)

Reconciliations of segment revenue and profit or (b) REFELEEBK 2P HHE
loss from continuing operations: BEEEK
2021 2020
—B——F —EoTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FHET
Revenue U &2
Consolidated revenue from continuing KEBELEERZ
operations rae W 71,486 42,734
Profit or loss B
Total profit or loss of reportable segments A & 7 ZR18 54258 (2,934) (262,468)
Unallocated amounts: ROWEEE -
General and administrative expenses — R RITHE (21,291) (24,130)
(Allowance)/reversal of allowance for R B Sk (B tl) /B
loan receivables B E (121) 3,097
Allowance for bond receivables FEURfE 5 e = (10,758)
Reversal of allowance/(allowance) for H b e AR SR 45
other receivables Bm (B 720 (692)
Finance costs B TS AR AR (2,047) (5,230)
Other income Hapug A 2,211 3,845
Other gains and losses HE s Rk EE 52 1,568
Loss on fair value change on EEZ AT EF AR
convertible bond designated at ZABmRES 2 AT E
FVTPL ZHER - (399)
Consolidated loss before tax from REFBELEEG 2
continuing operations BrELATAR G BB (23,410) (295,167)
Reconciliations of segment assets PHEEHRBBELHE
and liabilities:
Assets BE
Total assets of reportable segments AISRE D ERE E 209,186 197,106
Unallocated FOHE 36,057 28,562
Consolidated total assets mEmEE 245,243 225,668
Liabilities =N
Total liabilities of reportable segments AmENEEEE 135,481 126,613
Unallocated ROEL 37,130 65,308
Consolidated total liabilities mamaE 172,611 191,921
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

11. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 1. 2 BER &)

(b) Reconciliations of segment revenue and profit or (b) REFELEEK 2P FE
loss from continuing operations: (Continued) BEYE (&)
Geographical information 1 B A
All of the Group’s revenue and non-current assets RE P iz & EFT Tt &l
by location of customers or by location of assets are DRZAEBRBERERIETRSE
within the PRC, including Hong Kong. EAMRARE @ BEEE -

(c) Revenue from major customers: (c) REEXEEFF2WHE:
An analysis of revenue from major customers which RKEEXE2EPz2KBE(EAREH
account for 10 percent or more of the Group’s revenue WzE10% A E) 2T ¢

is as follows:

2021 2020

—B-—F —ETF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FTET FET

Customer A BEPA 11,233 9,029

Customer B 2FB 9,926 8,164

Customer C BFC 7,002 5,185

Each of the major customers represents a single EFXEEPEHEXGEABRA

external customer whose transaction is generated from REBHIH(ZZZ_ZF : XA
natural gas operations segment (2020: natural gas REBHEH)E—ILEP -

operations segment).
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TZ_—FNA=+HIEFE For the year ended 30 September 2021

BHE—

12.

13.

— =

FINANCE COSTS

12. BIF R AR

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FET
Continuing operations BEREEK
Interest on bank borrowings RITEEFRE 1,900 1,450
Imputed interest on loans from non- FEPERR IR R N B
controlling shareholders and its related REEZEFHEFR S
parties 257 1,760
Interest on convertible bond designated at  1EFIEAFETABEZ
FVTPL AR E S 2 A = 1,348
Interest on non-convertible bonds PR ES 27 B 1,888 3,681
Interest on lease liabilities HEABZAE 159 201
4,204 8,440
INCOME TAX CREDIT 13. FIEBESR

Income tax relating to continuing operations has been

recognised in profit or loss as following:

ERER
ZEBHIT

PR BB BERLER

2021 2020
—E-—fF —EETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Current tax — Hong Kong RVERTR I — &
Over-provision in prior years BEFEBERE - (1)
Current tax — the PRC BVERFR IE —
Provision for the year FNEHE 76 =
Deferred tax (note 40) EIERTE (M13E40) (719) (28,348)
(643) (28,349)
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=

r2-EF-

—FNA=+HIEFE For the year ended 30 September 2021

13. INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands,
Samoa, Seychelles and the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), the
Group is not subject to any income tax in these regions.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT”)
and Implementation Regulations of the EIT Law, the tax rate
of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% (2020: 25%). The tax rate of
Hong Kong Profits Tax in respect of Hong Kong subsidiaries
is 16.5% (2020: 16.5%).

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is required since
the Group has no assessable profit for the year ended 30
September 2021 (2020: Nil).

The reconciliation between the income tax credit and the
product of loss before tax from continuing operations
multiplied by the PRC EIT rate is as follows:

13. FIEHIE R (&)

REFMSHS  BEZI ETBLH
BERZEES(ZBRZEEDRAIR
ER G AEBERZSHRBAGNE
TR -

BEPECEMESHR(TOEMRER])
ERCEMEFREAERIES - PEK
BAGIHNME A% (T T 4HF
256%) - BEEEENE R A NEF B
MERHEERAE165% (ZE_FF :
16.5%) °

HRASERBZE_T_—FNLA=
TEHLEFEYEERBGEN(ZF-F
FE) WBEAELEBENGEHE
e

PREBERERARARLEXRT 2R
MABERATBEEERMERE 2T
ZHERWT

2021 2020
—E-—-F ZEEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FHET
Loss before tax from continuing operations R EFEKEERE 2
B 35 Bl 5 1R (23,410) (295,167)
Tax credit at PRC EIT rate of 25% (2020: EHBEPEREHE25%
25%) ZETF 1 25%)2
HIEE % (5,852) (73,792)
Tax effect of expenses that are not AR 2 RS &
deductible 2,213 9,213
Tax effect of income not taxable BB 2 T 5 2 (634) (880)
Tax effect of tax losses and temporary RERRBEEERDREERE
differences not recognised 2R 2,635 33,052
Utilisation of tax losses not previously PR AERHEEBE
recognised (78) (344)
Tax effect of tax concessions IR R 2 MG 2 (766) =
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries R E i BEARER AL & B A 7]
operating in other jurisdictions Z AR E & 1,839 4,403
Over-provision in prior years BAEFEBEREG - ()
Income tax credit for the year relating to FNEBRECEER
continuing operations FrisHik e (643) (28,349)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

14. LOSS FOR THE YEAR FROM CONTINUING 14. RESERE X 2 ERNE

OPERATIONS |
The Group’s loss for the year from continuing operations is AEEREFECEEB 2 FANEAE
stated after charging/(crediting) the followings: TyiEBR (T A) AT S IBEIIE -
2021 2020
—B-—fF k- ek 35
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Amortisation of intangible assets (included in & E#H (GTABERD
selling and distribution costs) SHRK AN ) 2,876 6,458
Auditor’s remuneration 1% S5 A 3 A
— Audit service — BZ RS 1,050 1,000
— Other services — H Ath AR 75 540 442
1,590 1,442
Cost of inventories sold BEEFEKA 45,196 27,350
Depreciation of property, plant Y - BEMSETE
and equipment 8,933 16,018
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (included {£BEEETE
in general and administrative expenses) (FEA—MBRITHBE ) 1,379 3,084
Gain on disposal of property, plant and LEME - BEREBRE
equipment - (4)
Loss on written off of property, plant and MEEDE - BB RREEE
equipment - 16
Impairment loss on goodwill (included in B EEE
general and administrative expenses) (FIA—BRITEBEE) 580 1,958
Net exchange loss P& 5 E518 5 5E 916 3,627
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Bz

15. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED ¥R 3R & &

“E-—FNA=1+HIEFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

15. EEEFHEX

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Continuing operations FRELSEEK
Employee benefits expense (including EERAAS
directors’ emoluments): (BREESHM):
Salaries, bonuses and allowances E e AP A AW = 3 13,903 8,895
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RREFIFHEI K 552 363
Severance payments EME 9 =
14,464 9,258
One director (2020: Nil) is included in the six (2020: five) RAFERNAEERB(ZZEFF

highest paid individuals in the Group during the year. The
emoluments of the remaining five (2020: five) individuals

during the year are as follows:

R ) EReFHALERE—RZ(ZZT =
TE:TZ)EFT - FAFHBAEAR(Z
TTF - AR)ATZHMEHT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind
Retirement benefit scheme contribution

EEAERAF

e o RRLEWEMN

RARREHET IR

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 i

2021 2020
—EB-—F —EZFE

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FHET

5,189 2,151

81 90

5,270 2,241
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

15. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (Continued) 15. EEEFRE X (#)

Number of individuals

AE
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETFF
The emoluments fell within the following TR A TEME :
bands:
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,000/8 7T 3 5
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,0018TE
1,500,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 TE
2,000,000/% 7T = -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 72
2,500,000/ 7T = -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 T2
3,000,000/8 7T 1 -
5 B
During the year, no amount was paid or payable by the RAFEAN  AEEWEZ N EN
Group to any of the five highest paid individuals or the ERXRTRHEERTMA TR T XHAEH
directors set out below as an inducement to join or upon EEPzEM—RBAL EEWSIE
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. ZEMASARMARE B2 2E) - 3k

TEABERLES 2 (8 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

16. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(a)

Directors’ emoluments

The remuneration of each director is set out below:

16. EEZBA R A=

(a) EEM<

BEFZMEHINOT :

30 September 2021

“B--fRA=tH
Retirement
benefit Total
Salaries and scheme directors’
Fees other benefits contributions emoluments
ek BIKER
ik HitER HEMY ESMesE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Name of director EENE THER TR TR THET
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Wu Guoming REIALE - 120 6 126
Mr. Duan Fanfan BRAMEE - 120 6 126
Mr. Wang Wenzhou FXELE
(Chief Executive Officer) (FTHAER) - 480 18 498
Independent non-executive BIFHTES
directors
Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin 230k 4 120 - - 120
Mr. Sun Zhi Jun BEERE 120 - - 120
Ms. Huang Yu Jun (note (a)) ®EZ &L (Kist(a)) 56 - - 56
Dr. Chung Ling Cheong Dicky #48EB L (FizE(b))
(note (b)) 35 - - 35
Total st 331 720 30 1,081

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED 3RERE;RE SE @ AR A T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

16. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 16. EE BRI EFZH (&)

(Continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) EE=ME(E)
30 September 2020
—E-ZFAR=TH
Retirement
Salaries and benefit scheme Total directors’
Fees other benefits  contributions emoluments
Hek RIKER
ik H ity #l FEMHR EEMeLE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Name of director EEMA FAET FAET FTHET THET
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Wu Guoming RERELE - 120 6 126
Mr. Cheung Tuen Ting o = SE A (HT3E(c)

(note (c)) - 76 4 80
Mr. Li Wentao (note (d)) FBSLAE (M) - 35 2 37
Mr. Duan Fanfan (note (e)) B LIRSt 4 (3 (e) - 108 6 114
Mr. Wang Wenzhou (note (f))  E X4 (FH5E() - 331 13 344
Independent non-executive BYFHITES

directors
Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin 230k 4 120 - - 120
Mr. Sun Zhi Jun BEBERE 120 - - 120
Ms. Huang Yu Jun ERELL 120 = = 120
Total @t 360 670 31 1,061
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

16. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

(@) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

Ms. Huang Yu Jun retired on 19 March 2021.

Dr. Chung Ling Cheong Dicky was appointed on
16 June 2021.

Mr. Cheung Tuen Ting resigned on 24 January
2020.

Mr. Li Wentao was appointed on 11 October 2019
and resigned on 24 January 2020.

Mr. Duan Fanfan was appointed on 8 November
2019.

Mr. Wang Wenzhou was appointed on 24 January
2020.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and
the Group.

The independent non-executive directors’
emoluments shown above were for their services
as directors of the Company.

There was no payment of the performance related
incentive payments for both years.

Saved as disclosed above, neither the chief executive

nor any of the directors waived any emoluments during
the year ended 30 September 2021 (2020: Nil).

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BREREIRS &

EAERQH
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16. EEZBA R A= #)

(@ EEME(#E)

GEE

(@)

BEELITR-_ZBE-_—F=
A+HhHBEIEE -

FEAEBR TR _ZE_—F X
ﬂ‘f’/\ EM%;EE ©

RigEEER T _TF—
AZ+WmB#&IE -

EVBEER-_TE—NE+
Bt+—HREZARKR=-Z=
TZE—A-+MBEBRT -

BRAMEER -
*ﬂﬂﬁﬁéﬁo

—NET

EXARER T _TF—
ﬂ_+@EE§E°

EXRTRHTESTE ZME )
IZHHREHEARFALAK
HEEEHRE RS -

EXFRRBYFTESZ
MEDEBHBREERN
RBEESZRT -

MELAZMEFE SRR
BB ES -

BREXPIIEEN  REBE-T——
FANA=ZTHELEFERERSTEA
EXEMEEREEANS(—T_F

FE) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

16. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 16. EE BRI EFZH (&)

(Continued)

(b) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other (b) UNEE  ZSEFHZEREEESR
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies BRERANER  HLEREH
corporate and connected entities X5 HER
(i)  The information about loans, quasi-loans and () ARAFHAQBHHER A

other dealings entered into by the Company AARRRESRBIRLER
or subsidiary undertaking of the Company in ZESNEE B = AT
favour of a controlled body corporate of Mr. EX BUEZREEMR
Wu Guoming, a director of the Company, is as SHERMT :
follows:
Outstanding ~ Outstanding Maximum
amount at the amount atthe  outstanding Provision for
Total amount  beginning of end of the amount during ~ Amount due doubtful Interest
payable the year year the year  butnotpaid  debts made Term rate  Security
FEff REDN RERH ERER )
BRAE  AEESE  REESE  AEENA KfieE RERE 2R CIE S ¥
Name of the borrower HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$ 000
FEALR Thn Thn TEL ThEn Thn Tin
As at 30 September 2021
e S B =
Quasi-loans or credit
transactions
HERRRRTRARAA 2,59 - 2,59 5019 2,59 (05) 180days NI NI
1808 & g
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% Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
\ HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

16. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 16. EE @R EFZH &)

(Continued)

(b) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other (b) UEE - ZSEFHZEREEESR
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies BRERANER  BHLUEREH
corporate and connected entities (Continued) HRZHER(E)

(i) The information about loans, quasi-loans and (i) AAFHAREHHER A
other dealings entered into by the Company or AR BIESRBALER
subsidiary undertaking of the Company in favour BEERAYEAGUNE
of connected entity of Mr. Wu Guoming, a director FBUERREAMIZS
of the Company, is as follows: BERT

Outstanding ~ Qutstanding Maximum
amount at the amount atthe  outstanding  Provision for
Nature of ~ Total amount  beginning of  end of the amount during doubtful Interest
connection payable the year year theyear  debts made Term rate  Security
RELH RERM ERER
BEKE ERERAE  AEESE  REESE  AEERA RERE AR Mz R
Name of the borrower HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
BEARS T T T Tin TET
As at 30 September 2021
RZBZ-EAA=TR

Quasi-loans or credit

transactions

BHETAEERS

Wu Xiachen Son of Mr. Wu 1,613 (537) 1,613 1,613 (22) Repayable Nil Ni
Guoming on demand

RER RERTE REXEE B B

Wt
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

16. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 16. EE BRI EFZH (&)

(Continued)

(c) Directors’ material interests in transactions, (c) BEERXE  ZHRENTEES
arrangements or contracts ZERER
Save for those disclosed in note 49 to the consolidated BRERE ISR M aE 40P B8 25
financial statements, no other significant transactions, AN - B P G IR B A A ] R
arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group’s GEZEMARBERTHN AR
business to which the Company was a party and in RARIEEREEFZLHEATR
which a director of the Company and the director’s EhEESHEREEE AER Z
connected party had a material interest, whether ERAASEEB 2ERARS
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or EREHNFE -

at any time during the year.

17. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 17. RIKEREE
The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement N & B (A F R FOGR KT B 1E
plans which are available for eligible employees in the PRC K RPABEREBNGEREERSA
and Hong Kong. S8 o
Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the BEPEMBEEERER  A&EEA
Group has joined defined contribution retirement schemes KR T BTS T RZREBLEEA
for the employees arranged by local government labour and BHEE2LHETHEHEICGERKEE([ P
security authorities (the “PRC Retirement Schemes”). The BIRARETE]) - REEIREE BT
Group makes contributions to the PRC Retirement Schemes KEATHNSEREALERFPER
at the applicable rates based on the amounts stipulated REtEIER 3R - RIKE - 0 7 BUF
by the local government organisations. Upon retirement, BIRTREEEREEIRAERKES
the local government labour and security authorities are XATRRER] o

responsible for the payment of the retirement benefits to the
retired employees.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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EFET_-—

17. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED 3RERE;RE SE @ AR A T

(Continued)

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the laws of Hong Kong)
for employees employed under the jurisdiction of Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the laws of Hong
Kong). The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement
plan administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF
Scheme, the employer and the employees are each required
to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income
of HK$30,000.

During the years ended 30 September 2020 and 2021,
the Group had no forfeited contributions under the PRC
Retirement Scheme and MPF Scheme and which may
be used by the Group to reduce the existing level of
contributions. There were also no forfeited contributions
available at 30 September 2020 and 2021 under the PRC
Retirement Scheme and MPF Scheme which may be used
by the Group to reduce the contribution payable in future
years.

During the year ended 30 September 2021, retirement
benefit scheme contributions paid from continuing
operations amounted to approximately HK$552,000 (2020:
HK$363,000).

FNRA=ZFTHIEFE For the year ended 30 September 2021
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17. ERERNEE 2

AREBRBERHELTE2 A SERD(F
BIEDIE485F ) BIRIEE B B R 1R P
(BREEDFESTE)RIZEERERD
BEEFRFIE B RES
HEl]) - REEAEAHBILETEA
BEZERHRFERARTE - RIFRE
T8 BENEBEDALEEER
WARIE%AFBIHR - S ABRNK
AH) ER 30,000 7T °

HE_Z-TFR_FT-_—FNA=
THILEFE  BEHRBERKTER
BEEFE  AEBELEDZHR
AEAREEANBRIERB H®RKKE -
RZZEZZEFR_F_—FNA=T
B BEHRBERKTE REES
g AEENEERRERITHEARE
B A LUBE R 2R E 2 ok o

HE_Z_-_—FNA=+HLFE
BREKEEB I 2 RIKER S
HEA B552,0008 T(Z T - F :
363,000/ 7T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
“E-—FNA=1+HIEFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

BH=

18.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On 29 September 2020, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party to
dispose its subsidiaries engaging in trading of copper and
petrochemicals. Details of the assets and liabilities disposed
of, and the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal, are

disclosed in note 45(b).

Al

18. E#& 1k4

mm N A

BILE =

DFFFF )E&/“T'S
m

—E_2FEAA-—TAHE -

ZAE -
RIS B B A

ENEEERARALLERZHBR
Al -DHEERERABEZHIE
BB ZFETERKE45(0)KE -

LA R

2020
HK$’000
FET
Loss for the year from discontinued operations: REBRIEEER 2 FREAE -
Other income AN 2
Other losses HEE (553)
General and administrative expenses — M RITE S (878)
Loss from operation TS EE (1,429)
Finance costs RPN (6)
Loss before tax BRIEERIEE (1,435)
Income tax expense FrS iR (4,869)
(6,304)
Loss on disposal of operations (note 45(b)) K E 1R (B95E45(0)) (1,041)
Loss for the year from discontinued operations REERIEEEXEB 2 FAER (7,345)
Loss for the year from discontinued operations NN EIEEGREERIL
attributable to: EER 2 FNEBA -
Owners of the Company RAREEAR A (7,334)
NCI AR (11)
(7,345)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR ERE} B

SEERDF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

18. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued) 18. DAL REEK (»)
Loss for the year from discontinued operations include the REERIKEXEH 2 FABEEE
following: LA &8 -
2020
—_ETF
HK$’000
FET
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment W - BEMEHITE 8
Depreciation on right-of-use assets FREEENE 156
Employee benefits expense: BERAMMAX :
Salaries, bonuses and allowances e - EARERL 453
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIREF T8I 5K 20
473
Net exchange loss b 5 i858 94
Cash flows from discontinued operations: ERIEREEBCRERE -
Net cash outflows from operating activities KBNS F R (359)
Net cash outflows from investing activities CEEEIR ML FRE (29)
Net cash outflows from financing activities BB EEIR M LFE (163)
Net cash outflows REmLFEE (551)
19. DIVIDENDS 19. RE
The directors do not recommend the payment of any EETEEREBEE_TE=_—F A=
dividend for the year ended 30 September 2021 (2020: Nil). THEFERNEREE(ZZEZF
FE)o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_ZT—

20.

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share is

based on the following:

—FNA=+HIEFE For the year ended 30 September 2021

20. BREE

= = .
ﬁ“»#'

BREARNLREFEERBDRENATRIE

2021 2020
—E-—& —EFF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Loss from continuing and discontinued REZFERCLKIEE
operations E$ A o
Loss for the purpose of calculating basic PEATERAERFBERERIEESE
loss per share from continuing and X EREXRBEMS 2
discontinued operations B8 (20,982) (101,836)
Effect of fair value change on convertible BERATEFABR AT
bond designated at FVTPL R EH N FEE e - 399
Effect of interest on convertible bond EERAFEFABR AT
designated at FVTPL BREFFE2ZE - 1,348
Loss for the purpose of calculating diluted  FLETEREEFE R DR IEES
loss per share from continuing and ¥z BREESENS 2
discontinued operations &8 (20,982) (100,089)
Loss from continuing operations REFELSEEBL 2 EE
Loss for the purpose of calculating basic AT ERERFBELCEEBZ
loss per share from continuing operations ~ FREAEIEM S 2 &8 (20,982) (94,502)
Effect of fair value change on convertible BEEAFEFABE AR
bond designated at FVTPL REHFQATFEESH 2 E - 399
Effect of interest on convertible bond BERAFEF AR AT
designated at FVTPL REHFHNE & - 1,348
Loss for the purpose of calculating diluted FLETEREEERLERK 2
loss per share from continuing operations S # HE B M= 2 &8 (20,982) (92,755)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR ERE} B

SEERDF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=

r2-EF-

20. LOSS PER SHARE (continued)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED 3RERE;RE SE @ AR A T

—®NLA=FTHIFE For the year ended 30 September 2021

20. BREE(#)

2021 2020
—B--—F —_ETF
’000 000
T T B
(Restated)
Number of shares gl 24z (&&:75))
Weighted average number of ordinary shares Szt EFREREIEMS <
for the purpose of calculating basic loss I E AR N 9 B
per share 138,037 91,836
Effect of deemed conversion of convertible 18 {EEE 5 F iR A FE A
bond designated at FVTPL BanzagkEs g - 1,494
Weighted average number of ordinary shares Bzt EEREEEIEMS <
for the purpose of calculating diluted loss &A% hIAE F 15 2k
per share 138,037 93,330

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for current
and prior years have been adjusted retrospectively to reflect
the effect of rights issue as disclosed in note 41(e).

The computation of diluted loss per share for the year ended
30 September 2020 does not assume the exercise of the
Company’s outstanding share options, as this would result in
the decrease in the loss per share.

From discontinued operations

Basic and diluted loss per share from the discontinued
operations for the year ended 30 September 2020 was
HK7.99 (restated) cents per share, based on the loss for
the year ended 30 September 2020 from discontinued
operations attributable to the owners of the Company of
approximately HK$7,334,000 and the denominators used are
the same as those detailed above for both basic and diluted
loss per share in 2020.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 i

RAFERBEFE 2 EBRIMNEF
BB EE M 7 B LA R BR BT 741 (e)

BIHBEZTE -

BE_T_THFANA=ZTBLFELZ
BEREIEBERFAELTNBRAQAT
ERHARTEZEERE RAKEKSE
HEREBERD -

ERIEREER

ERAQRBBABEEEZE-_S=F
FNANA=ZTHLEFERBEERLELSR
¥ 2 BB 47,334,000 HE
—TE_EFARA=THLEFEXRBD
RIEGEERr BREAREEEE
RER7.99BI(KEES]) - MFAER
ZHoHHEEXHHFLAER_T_F
FrEREARBEEBBZHEHER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

21. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

21. M1% - BERRE

Computer
systemand  Furnitureand ~ Leasehold Motor  Pipelineand ~ Plantand  Construction
Buildings  equipment fixtures  improvements vehicles  equipment  machinery  in progress Total
i EER HER
BT FARRE HARRE  HERE hE BL] BE  ERIE it
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK§000 HK§000 HK$ 000
Tin Tin Tin Tin Tin Tin Thn Tin Tin
(note (a) (note (o))
(Hita) ()
Cost A
At 1 October 2019 RE-nfF
tA-R 6,479 B4 1438 2174 1508 210,786 7,39 846 291,265
Additions BE = B4 - - - 8 4612 562 5200
Disposals it - - - - (37) - - - (37)
Writen off ki - - - 2%) = = - = 2%)
Transferred from assets EREAERRE
dlassifiet s held for sale HEEE 230 - - Pl 3 = = = 2,747
Disposal of subsidaries HEHEAT - 2%) - = (399 = = = (18]
Exchange differences EXZE 263 - L) % i 8,807 R0 4 9519
A3 September 2020and HZF-EEAF=1A
1 October 2020 R-E-%E1A-A 9,072 652 1480 2209 1,146 219,766 12,349 1438 308,111
Additions BE - 5 - - 40 - 4161 1738 6,365
Transfers &y - - - - - 2,085 - (2,083) -
Witen off Lk - - - (1,056) - - - - (1,056)
Exchange differences ERER 579 - 8 T4 17 17,106 836 8 19,384
At 30 September 2021 R-B-ENA=1A 9,651 708 1565 1221 1572 299,556 17,346 1,179 332,804
Accumulated depreciation ~ EifERAE
and impairment
At 1 October 2019 RCE-nETA-H 676 449 829 547 696 45,07 619 - 48843
Charge for the year EMRR 340 10 244 861 486 12,91 1,086 - 16018
Impaiment for the year fnote (o)~ ERUE (HizE(p) - - - - - 132,902 - - 132,902
Eiminated on disposals RHERSH - - - - (312 - - - (312
Witten of LEd - - - 0 - - - - ]
Disposal of subsiaries HENEAT - (19 = = (299) = = = (308]
Exchange differences EiEE %0 1 3 17 @ 2,688 4 - 2,809
A 30 September 2020and A-F-EEAF=1R
1 October 2020 kZE-%E1A-A 1,046 507 1,104 1416 573 193,548 1,749 - 199,943
Charge for the year ERFR 34 46 14 525 28 5679 1968 - 8,933
Witen off ks - - - (1,056) - - - - (1,056)
Exchange differences EIEE 10 - 69 I 12 12411 134 - 12738
At 30 September 2021 RoE--f
AR=TH 1462 553 1314 % 813 211,638 3851 - 220,558
Carrying amount ]
At 30 September 2021 RoE--E
MA=TH 8,189 195 21 0 759 87918 13495 1,79 112,246
At 30 September 2020 R-32%E
AR=TH 8026 14 376 9% 572 86,218 10600 1438 108,168

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED (RERERE @GR AT

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 4Fif

161



162

e R R AR B R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S

21. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Notes:

(a)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED 3RERE;RE SE @ AR A T

The Group’s buildings are located in the PRC under
medium term leases.

The Group’s pipeline and equipment belong to the
CGU of Yichang Biaodian. Details of the impairment
assessment of the CGU of Yichang Biaodian are set out
in note 23(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

At 30 September 2021, the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment pledged to an
independent third party for obtaining an advance of
RMB100,000 (equivalent to HK$122,000) amounted to
RMB1,824,000 (equivalent to HK$2,221,000) (2020:
RMB100,000 (equivalent to HK$114,000) amounted to
RMB1,955,000 (equivalent to HK$2,237,000)).

On 24 September 2019, the Group entered into a
sales and purchase agreement with an independent
third party (“Purchaser”) to dispose its building
located in the PRC together with associated leasehold
improvements. The aggregate carrying amount of the
aforementioned building and leasehold improvements
as of 30 September 2021 was HK$2,221,000 (2020:
HK$2,241,000). Deposit was received for the disposal
of building of the Group (note 33).

On 8 July 2020, the Group received a preservation
order from the Court in Shenzhen, which preserve the
building from being sold by the Group. Details of the
litigation are set out in note 46(b).

—FNA=+HIEFE For the year ended 30 September 2021

21. ¥ - BERRE#)

B &

(@) AKBZEBFHEFBEAGHE

MFA -

b) AKEZEE

) R-ZTE-_—FhhA=+H  AE
B FZARE100,0007(HE R
122,000 L) MER FBLE
ZHRME  BERZENERT
EAARY1,824,000(HER
2,221,00087m) (ZE=F
BMEBZHARE100,0007T(HEE
114,000 0) MEA TR E
=HFNYE  BELRXENER
EAEAR1,955000C(HER

2,237,000/ 7T)) °

d RZFE—AFALA=+WTA &
EBR-ZBIYE=ATEHF])
A& E AR
PRz EFERMBBERAEE S -
HE-_ZTE-_—FNLA=+8"
FlEFEHERERALES
2,221,000 L(Z T ZF F:
2,241,000 7T) - ERHEERE
EEFREIES (H:E33) °

RIME B W&

R-ZZE-_ZTF+AN\B » ~&HE
WERRINTERBELEZRES
REZEFIEAKELE o F

AAFEIBE M FE46(D) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

22. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

22 FRAEEE

Leased Leased motor

Leasehold land properties vehicles Total

HELTH HEME MER #at

HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000

FTET TET TET TET
At 1 October 2019 RZE—-NF

+HA—H 1,453 2,906 452 4,811

Additions NE - 493 572 1,065

Depreciation e (31) (2,508) (547) (3,084)

Impairment (note 23(a)) BE (HI5E23(a)) (887) = = (887)

Exchange differences PEN Z58 41 2 - 43
At 30 September 2020 and R =T _ZTF

1 October 2020 NWA=+HBK

—E_TF

+H—H 576 895 477 1,948

Additions NE - 1,450 - 1,450

Depreciation e (13) (1,103) (263) (1,379)

Exchange differences PEN =58 36 - - 36
At 30 September 2021 R=-=B-—F

hA=+H 599 1,242 214 2,055

Lease liabilities of HK$1,850,000 (2020: HK$1,496,000) are
recognised with related right-of-use assets of HK$1,456,000
(2020: HK$1,372,000) as at 30 September 2021. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants other than the

security interests in the leased assets that are held by

the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for

borrowing purposes.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED ¥R R B & B 45 R A &)

RZZE=Z—FNLA=+H8" BEH
£ & E1,456,0008 (=T =
TF 1,372,000 L ) EREEE
& 1,850,000 t( = & = & F:
1,496,000 7T) - RIEEAMBEE
BECERERI  HEBREILEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

22. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued) 22. EHEEE#)

2021 2020
—B--—F —_ETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Depreciation expenses on right-of-use FRAEEENERX
assets 1,379 3,084
Interest expenses on lease liabilities (included & & &F| 85 %
in finance costs) (FEABBEAA) 159 207
Expenses relating to short-term lease HEAERME X
(included in general and administrative GtA—REATHXZH)
expenses) 173 70

Details of total cash outflow for leases is set out in note HEZRESRHEEZFBHNKE
45(f). 45(f) o

For the year ended 30 September 2021, the Group leases BE-_Z-_—FNLA=Z1+HILFE -
AEBHEME  —WIBERESEN
AREE - HEANR—ZE=F2H
FEHRRETY - BEHEKIERERE - IR

properties, a motor vehicle and car parking spaces for its
operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term
of one to three years, but may have termination option to

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED 3RERE;RE SE @ AR A T

terminate the leasing agreement of motor vehicle after one
year. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. In
determining the lease term and assessing the length of the
non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a
contract and determines the period for which the contract is
enforceable.

In addition, the Group owns a natural gas station and
office complex located in the PRC. The Group is the
registered owner of these property interests, including the
underlying leasehold land. Lump sum payments were made
upfront to acquire these property interests. The leasehold
land component of these owned properties is presented
separately only if the payments made can be allocated
reliably.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

23. GOODWILL 23. B8
Yichang Shenzhen Lw
Biaodian Energynt Insurance Total
HERE RIZEES FIERE st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET TET FTHET
(Note (a)) (Note (b)) (Note (c))
(Kf3E(a)) (P3E(b)) (P3E(c))
Cost B
At 1 October 2019 RZE-NF+A—H 4,207 7,392 - 11,599
Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary ~ UEE— B A B ES
(note 45(a)) (BI5E45(a)) - - 2,538 2,538
Derecognised on disposal of REEE R EEEE B
discontinued operations (note 45(b)) 4 IEFER(K3T45(b)) = (7,635) = (7,635)
Exchange differences BN ER 138 243 - 381
At 30 September 2020 and 77\* Z-% iﬂﬂ +H
1 October 2020 —E-FF+H—H 4,345 - 2,538 6,883
Exchange differences ER%%E 277 - - 277
At 30 September 2021 n= —FhA=1A 4,622 - 2,538 7,160
Accumulated impairment losses  ZiFREFE
At 1 October 2019 RZE-NFE+A—H 4,207 7,392 - 11,599
Impairment for the year FRRE - - 1,958 1,958
Derecognised on disposal of RIHEE R S # 5
discontinued operations (note 45(b)) & IFHER (KT 45(0)) - (7,635) = (7,635)
Exchange differences fE N Z5 138 243 - 381
At 30 September 2020 and F:f:?inﬂ =18
1 October 2020 K_Z-TF+H—H 4,345 - 1,958 6,303
Impairment for the year FRRME - - 580 580
Exchange differences b 5 E=H 277 - - 277
At 30 September 2021 RZZE=-—FAA=1H 4,622 - 2,538 7,160
Carrying amount REE
At 30 September 2021 R-E-—FNA=1H - - - -
At 30 September 2020 —EZTENA=TAH - - 580 580

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED ¥R R B & B 45 R A &)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z-_—FNA=1THILFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

23. GOODWILL (continued)

Notes:

(a)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IREKEiRE EEE B IR A &l

The Group acquired 49% of the equity interest in
Yichang Biaodian in 2016. The goodwill arising from the
acquisition is allocated to CGU of Yichang Biaodian.

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been
determined on the basis of its value in use using
discounted cash flow method. The key assumptions for
the discounted cash flow method are those regarding
the discount rates, growth rates and budgeted gross
margin and revenue during the year. The Group
estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the CGU. The growth rates are
based on long-term average economic growth rate of
the geographical area in which the businesses of the
CGU operate. Budgeted gross margin and revenue are
based on past practices and expectations on market
development.

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from
the most recent financial budgets approved by the
directors. Yichang Biaodian’s cash flows beyond the
5-year period are extrapolated using a steady 3%
(2020: 3%) growth rate. This growth rate is based
on the relevant industry growth forecasts and does
not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the
relevant industry in which Yichang Biaodian operates.
Other key assumptions for the value in use calculation
relate to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows
which include budgeted revenue and gross margin,
such estimation is based on Yichang Biaodian’s past
performance and management’s expectations for the
market development. The pre-tax rate used to discount
the forecast cash flows from the Group’s is 13.23%
(2020: 12.05%). Since the recoverable amount of this
CGU was approximately to its carrying amount, no
impairment loss was recognised for the year ended 30
September 2021.

23. & (&)

B &

(a)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

23. GOODWILL (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

Impairment losses on non-current assets and the
charges to profit or loss for the year are analysed as
follows:

23.

[ -3€-))

FY&E « (4&)

(a)

(&)

FRIERBEERBEBBRRERS
AT

2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET

Property, plant and equipment (note 21) Y% - M= L& E
(PfF5E21) - 132,902
Intangible assets (note 24) mREE(ME24) - 106,934
Right-of-use assets (note 22) A& E(HiF22) - 887
Charged to profit or loss MBI - 240,723

The goodwill arose from the acquisition of #IJIZ
BERF D BN BEJR B R 2 A (“Shenzhen Energynt”) in
2018, which was expected to engage in the solar
photovoltaic business. During the year ended 31
December 2018, because of the changes in the state
government policies on the construction scale of
ordinary photovoltaic power stations, the Group revised
its cash flow forecast for this CGU that leading to
the recoverable amount became nil. The amount was
derecognised upon disposal in 2020.

(b)

FEELEEBR T \FRER
YD BRAERBRA A
(TRYI =R ) BHEREXR
GRESXRER -HE-_FT—N
F+ZA=+—BLEE &R
BRI 8 & e R BUA R
REBEZBRES - NEBEEBRTZ
ReELBUZRSRERAE
HAKRODEBERT -R_F_F
F o ORARARNHERK LR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z-_—FNA=1THILFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

B HRMEE

23. GOODWILL (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(©)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BREREIRS &

The Group acquired 100% of the equity interest in LW
Insurance Brokers Limited (“LW Insurance”) in October
2019. The goodwill arising from the acquisition is
allocated to CGU of LW Insurance.

The recoverable amount of the investment in LW
Insurance is determined from the fair value calculations
using market approach by an independent valuation
expert. The key assumptions for the fair value
calculations are those regarding the enterprise value
multiples, the control premium and the discount for
lack of marketability.

The measurement of the fair value of recoverable
amount was within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

At 30 September 2021, before impairment testing, the
carrying amount of goodwill allocated to LW Insurance
was HK$580,000, net of impairment of HK$1,958,000
(2020: HK$2,538,000). The recoverable amount of this
CGU was below the carrying amount of the CGU of
which the assets belong. LW Insurance did not perform
as expected because of the effect of COVID-19 that
potential customers cannot visit Hong Kong and
seek professional advice on insurance plan from the
Group. Besides, as there was no professional party
acting as representative on behalf of LW Insurance for
compliance purpose, the management of the Group
considered to suspend the business in LW Insurance
thereof.

The CGU has been reduced to its recoverable amount
to zero (2020: HK$516,000). Therefore, impairment
loss on goodwill of HK$580,000 (2020: HK$1,958,000)
was recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 30
September 2021.

EAERQH

23. & (&)

B &E « (&)

(c)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

“E-—FNA=1+HIEFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

24, B EE

Natural
gas supply
exclusive
Car license rights Total
XAR
== BRUERE et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET FAET
(note (a)) (note (b))
(Ft3E(@@) (FF3E®D))
Cost B A
At 1 October 2019 RZE—NF
+A—H 1,520 218,296 219,816
Disposal of a subsidiary (note HE B AT
45(c)) (Bf5E45(c)) (1,520) - (1,520)
Exchange differences fEHZER - 7,171 7,171
At 30 September 2020 and 1 R-T-THF
October 2020 NA=1tB K
—EEF
+A—H = 225,467 225,467
Exchange differences bE =78 - 14,381 14,381
At 30 September 2021 A —HF
NA=+H = 239,848 239,848
Accumulated amortisation and E&H 8 R EE
impairment
At 1 October 2019 RZZE—NF
+A—H 770 40,361 41,131
Charge for the year FRHEZ = 6,458 6,458
Impairment losses (note 23(a)) W EEE (M5E23(a)) = 106,934 106,934
Disposal of a subsidiary (note HE BB AR
45(c)) (Bi5E45(c)) (770) - (770)
Exchange differences M H Z R0 - 2,207 2,207
At 30 September 2020 and R-T-_TF
1 October 2020 hNE=Z+HK
—ETEF
+A—H = 155,960 155,960
Charge for the year FRHEZ = 2,876 2,876
Exchange differences fEHZER - 9,981 9,981
At 30 September 2021 prAE S
NA=+H - 168,817 168,817
Carrying amount BREE
At 30 September 2021 N—E_——%
NA=+H - 71,031 71,031
At 30 September 2020 RZE-FTF
NA=+H - 69,507 69,507

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED ¥R R B & B 45 R A &)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

24. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED 3RERE;RE SE @ AR A T

Car license represented the China/Hong Kong cross
border car license acquired from an independent third
party. The directors are of the opinion that the car
license has an indefinite useful life as the car license is
transferrable and able to renew on an annual basis with
minimal cost and hence no amortisation is provided.
The car license is carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.

The natural gas supply exclusive rights arose from
the acquisition of Yichang Biaodian completed on 24
February 2016 and is amortised over the remaining
years of the contractual period of 30 years till the years
ranging from 2041 to 2044.

As there was continuous loss made by Yichang
Biaodian and indication of impairment exists, the Group
performed impairment assessment on natural gas
supply exclusive rights and other assets which belong
to the CGU of Yichang Biaodian. Details of impairment
assessment are set out in note 23(a).

24.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 i

BIELEE &)

B &

(a)

ERERNBIE=TKRBZHE
BHEER - BEERL  BRERE
AEEREAAREX RS FE
BOHAERAFHAER Bt
WEmETIREEIH o BRI AR
EERRFHRERBREK -

AKARARBREEHELENAEH
RZTE—RNE-A-+MHERK
WHEESEZEHA THREE_ZTN
—FE TN F F30FE LB
2RI FE NN -

MREERRFESERFER
BFR  AKREHRXARBR M
FELFENESGERRASEL
Bz HMEEETRENG -
B R (A B E N M RE23(a)



e R R AR B A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

25. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 25. R B RARIZRE
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 30 September 2021 are RZZBEZ—FNA=THZHBRAAF
as follows: BT

Issued and
Principal country of operation fully paid share Percentage of
and country of incorporation or capital/registered equity attributable
Name of subsidiary establishment/Kind of legal entity capital to the Group Principal activities
IBREAFRAMALSALAR/  BRORAR
HEARAR EREREE R /iRER AEERERERIL  TEER
2021 2020
IR ZBCF%E
DIGITALHONGKONG.COM INC. BVI/Company limited by shares US$1 100% 100% Inactive
ABRZES/BHERLR 17 TR
Great China Inc. Limited (note (a)) Hong Kong/Limited liability company HK$1 - 100% Inactive
EHERAA (Hit@) Eh/ERRLAR 187 TERH
Digital Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong/Limited liability company HK$2 100% 100% Investment holding
UEERERARLA Bh/ERELAR kT REER
Logo Plus Limited Hong Kong/Limited liability company HK$1,000 100% 100% Inactive
BA/RREMAT 100087 TE%H
Pickworth Limited Samoa/Company limited by shares US$1 100% 100% Investment holding
RS/ BHERAA %7 REBR
Rich Ascent International Limited Hong Kong/Limited liability company HKS$1 100% 100% Inactive
EEERARRA B4/ ERALAR 187 TERH
Global Billion Access Investments Limited ~ BVI/Company limited by shares US$1 100% 100% Investment holding
BHERRARRAT ABRAHE/ RABRAT %7 R&R
Hong Kong Global Billion Access Investments Hong Kong/Limited liability company HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited
BRRERRARRAA B4/ ERALAR 187 REZK
BIRERE AR ERAR PRC/Mholly foreign-owned entity HK$14,000,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
(Global Billon Trading (Shenzhen) Limited) & /S EEELE 14,000,000% ¢ RERR

(‘Shenzhen Global) (IR AR ))

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED RRERE{IEEEBER AT ANNUAL REPORT 2021 &3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

25. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

25. RfIB AR Z2RE (&)

Issued and
Principal country of operation fully paid share Percentage of
and country of incorporation or capital/registered equity attributable
Name of subsidiary establishment/Kind of legal entity capital to the Group Principal activities
IZLEEFRAEMALARLEAR/  BEARER
HEAR AR EEERER Ra/iRER AEEEERERIL  TEER
2021 2020
IR ZBCFE
Yichang Biaodian (note (b)) PRC/Limited liability company RMB58,800,000 25% 256% Natural gas operations
HEEA(KiHD) hE/AREFAR ARR#58,800,0007C AT
King Saling International Limited BVI/Company limited by shares US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
FRERARAA ABRLHE/ RABRAT %7 REBR
Charmland Treasure Limited Seychelles/Company limited by shares ~ US$100 100% 60% Investment holding
EER/BABERAA 10057 REBK
Hong Kong Sunrise Electric Technology Hong Kong/Limited liabllity company HK$10,000 - 60% Investment holding (Not yet
Limited (note (c)) commenced business)
BATASNREERRA (M) Bh/BRARAA 10,000%7 REBR(AFEXH)
Eternal Goal Limited Seychelles/Company limited by shares  US§100 100% 60% Investment holding
58/ ROARAT 100%7 RERR
Hong Kong Eternal Goal Limited (note (d)) ~ Hong Kong/Limited liability company HK$10,000 - 60% Inactive
(Hi¥(a)) Bh/BREALA 10,0007 BEEH
Heroic Sunshine Limited Seychelles/Company limited by shares  US§100 60% 60% Investment holding
58/ ROARAT 100%7 RERR

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED 3RERE;RE SE @ AR A T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

25. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 25. RfB AR ZRE (&)

Issued and
Principal country of operation fully paid share Percentage of
and country of incorporation or capital/registered equity attributable
Name of subsidiary establishment/Kind of legal entity capital to the Group Principal activities
IZHEEFREMALAALEAR/  BRRER
HEAR AR EEERER Ra/dRER ARBELRERSE  IEER
2021 2020
ZEC-f CE-%
Hong Kong Central Environmental Technology Hong Kong/Limited liability company HK$10,000 60% 60% Investment holding
Limited
BARERRNHARLR Bh/BRAMLA 10,0047 RERR
RERGHR(LS)ERAT PRC/Mholly foreign-owned entity RMB10,000,000 60% 60% Leasing business of the steel
support axial force servo
system
hE/NEEELE ARE10,000,0007 Az NARAZGHEEH
RA(LE)HEERAT PRC/Limited liability company RMB30,000,000 60% 60% Dormant
hE/ERERLT AR 30,000,0007 LELH
RE(MIEER)HRARAA PRC/Limited liability company RMB30,000,000 60% 60% Dormant
hE/ERERLT AR 30,000,007 LELH
East Perfection Development Limited BVI/Company limited by shares US$10 100% 100%  Investment holding
REZRARAA ABRLHE/ RABRAT 10%7 REBR
Global Business (Hong Kong) Limited (formerly  Hong Kong/Limited liability company HK$10,000 100% 100% Inactive
known as East Prefection (Hong Kong)
Limited)
RABE(BR)ARARNGIBRERR(FR) B4/BRELAR 10,0007 TEXH

BRAAF)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED (RERERE @GR AT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

25. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 25. RfB AT Z2RE (&)

Issued and

Principal country of operation fully paid share Percentage of

and country of incorporation or capital/registered equity attributable
Name of subsidiary establishment/Kind of legal entity capital to the Group Principal activities

IEREAFRAMALAALAR,/  ERARMR
HEARER EEERER Ra/dRER AREELREASE  IEER

2021 2020
ZEC-f CE-%

Bilion Champion Business Limited BVI/Company limited by shares US$10 100% 100%  Investment holding
kZBEERAT ABRLHE/ RABRAT 10%7 RESK
Bilion Champion (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong/Limited liability company HK$10,000 100% 100% Inactive
K% (ER)GRAT B4/ ERELAR 10,0007 TEXH
LW Capital Group Limited Hong Kong/Limited liability company HK$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
NERHEERRAT B4/ ERELAR 10,0007 REBR
LW (Hong Kong) Finance Limited Hong Kong/Limited liability company HK$10,000 100% 100% Dormant
HE(ER) ABERAR Bh/ERELAR 10,0007 TEXH
LW Insurance Hong Kong/Limited liability company HK$3,687,500 100% 100%  Insurance broker business
Fl2RR BA/BRARAA 3,687,500 RS
Rich Point Credit Limited Hong Kong/Limited liability company HK$10,000 100% - Not yet commenced business
EAEERRAA BA/BRARAA 10,0007 HARREH
Bright Able Century Limited BVI/Company limited by shares USS$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
ARHLARRAT AERAER/BHERAT %7 REBR
Smart Target Billion Limited Hong Kong/Limited liability company HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
BEEERAT BA/FRARAA 187 REBR
LW Manin Immigration Consultancy Limited ~ Hong Kong/Limited liability company HK$10,000 60% 60% Dormant
NEEFHRERERAA BA/BRARAA 10,0007 IRXH

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED 3RERE;RE SE @ AR A T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_ZT—

25. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

The subsidiary was disposed on 1 April 2021.

Yichang Biaodian is a subsidiary of the Group even
though the Group has only 25% (2020: 25%) ownership
interest in Yichang Biaodian.

The Group has held 25% equity interest in Yichang
Biaodian upon the capital contribution from two
shareholders on 4 January 2019. 12 KR @AR A
7] (“Hubei Biaodian”), BEEAERER AT (“EEH
A8, HEXSFEAR AT and Mr. Li Wanging (“Mr.
Li”) (collectively the “Non-controlling Shareholders”)
owned 21%, 24%, 20% and 10% equity interest
in Yichang Biaodian, respectively, after the capital
contribution and up to the date of this report.

The directors, with the assistance of the legal counsel
in the PRC, assessed whether or not the Group still
has control over Yichang Biaodian based on whether
the Group has the practical ability to direct the
relevant activities at Yichang Biaodian unilaterally. In
making their judgement, the directors considered the
Group’s power to affect the board of directors (the
“BOD”) of Yichang Biaodian. The BOD of Yichang
Biaodian, responsible for all relevant activities at
Yichang Biaodian, consisted of eleven directors, of
which six were appointed by the Group while the other
five directors were appointed by the Non-controlling
Shareholders. BOD resolutions of Yichang Biaodian
were reached by more than two-third of the attending
directors. In accordance with the terms of a further
shareholders’ agreement entered into among the Group
and the Non-controlling Shareholders, in any events
where the Group and the Non-controlling Shareholders
have diversed views in the BOD meetings, the Group,
being the single largest shareholder of Yichang
Biaodian, has the power to make the final decision.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED (R EBABR AT  ANNUAL REPORT 2021 ik

—FNA=+HIEFE For the year ended 30 September 2021

25. RMIB AR Z2’RE (&)

B &
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S

25. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

()

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED 3RERE;RE SE @ AR A T

(Continued)

Based on the assessment mentioned above, the
directors concluded that the Group under the terms of
the shareholders’ agreement had the current ability to
direct the relevant activities of Yichang Biaodian and
therefore the Group has control over Yichang Biaodian
after the capital contribution.

The subsidiary was deregistered on 11 June 2021.

The subsidiary was deregistered on 11 December
2020.

The following table shows information on the
subsidiaries that have NCI material to the Group. The
summarised financial information represents amounts
before inter-company eliminations.

FNRA=ZFTHIEFE For the year ended 30 September 2021

25. RfB AR ZRE (&)
BisE : (45)

b) (%)

ER L E > EFRE
PR W& R NEEBRE
BENETRESRRZEBE
At AEERIEREAES

TR PRI

© HHEAAR-T=—
— BB -

@ BMEARR-E-ETF+A

+— B

) TREFAGHAKEMEEBE
RZFERES KB R
o MEHHER SR AREE

A THE o
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BE—_%T—

25. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 25.

Notes: (Continued)

(f)

(Continued)

—FNA=+HIEFE For the year ended 30 September 2021

B E

()

RB AR 2RE (#)

(%)

(%)

Yichang Biaodian

HEEH
2021 2020
—BZ—fF —E-FF
Principal place of business and country & & &1 2 & Ak 37 BISR PRC
of establishment s
% of ownership interests/voting rights  JEIERR iz 15 A ~ B 1
held by NCI Bw/ REEADL 75%/45% 75%/45%
HK$’000 HK$’000
Non-current assets ERBEE 167,566 164,344
Current assets RBEE 12,720 10,036
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (71,351) (70,407)
Current liabilities mEBE (51,269) (45,891)
Net assets BERE 57,666 58,082
Accumulated NCI Rt IR ER 42,497 43,017
Revenue Wz 60,834 38,001
Loss for the year FAEE (4,074) (228,379)
Total comprehensive income ZEEERE (416) (221,015)
Loss allocated to NCI DB T IR 2 B 1R (520) (165,865)
Net cash generated from operating REEBITSIRE FE
activities 7,000 4,956
Net cash (used in)/generated from BEES(R) FEES
investing activities PR (1,363) 178
Net cash used in financing activities ~ Fi& /& FTAIR S E5E (5,792) (4,137)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and RekAeEEBMORD),/
cash equivalents EINFER (155) 997

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED ¥R R B & B 45 R A &)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

26. INVENTORIES 26. #E

2021 2020
—2-—F —TCFF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FTEx THTT
Finished goods LIFK om 96 629
Raw materials R # 701 137
797 766

27. TRADE RECEIVABLES 27. EWWE Z RN
2021 2020
—E-—fF —EFF
HK$°000 HK$’'000
TE T T T
Trade receivables (note) FEWE ZBR K () 12,840 8,246
Less: impairment losses (note 6(b)(i) o R EEE (I EEe (b)) (6,264) (4,424)
6,576 3,822

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED 3RERE;RE SE @ AR A T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z-_—FNA=1THIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021
27. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Note:

Generally there is no credit period for customers of sales
of natural gas as the customers need to prepay before the
usage of the natural gas. For a few specific customers they
can use the gas on credit and the Group allows an average
credit period of 60 days. The Group recognises revenue for
natural gas pipeline installation service when the installation
is completed and the Group allows an average credit period
of 30 days upon completion. For leasing business, the
Group allows an average credit period of 180 days upon
service rendered. For independent financial advisory, the
Group allows an average credit period of 30 days upon
service rendered.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables at the end of the
reporting year based on the goods or services delivered is
as follows:

27. EWE SRR (&)

B &

HERARNBEFPBET TERHEER
B REAARFPENEARARATEL
MR mPEAUEEFRAFERARA
RZBEEEFPMmMs AEEERTHGBO
BZFEHEE AEERTETK
FEARADEELTERS 2 W
REKE - REBR FHEI0A 2 F
EEH pREEEBMmE  RIRER
?f%ié  AEERTHEIS0B ZFHEE
BV MEEEMmE - RRM Hlﬁ’z
??: RNEEFTFHI0A 2 FHEEH

RBEFERREMZNBRIIRG 2
P2 R E B R IRER AT T

2021 2020
—B=-—F —_ETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FAT
0 to 90 days 0290H 1,451 1,656
91 to 180 days 91£180H 1,891 -
181 to 366 days 1812366 H 3,234 2,166
6,576 3,822
Before accepting any new customer, the Group’s finance EEMNERNFTERR  NEEPBHR

and sales management team would assess the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customer. Credit limits attributable to customers are
reviewed regularly with reference to past settlement history.
The Group’s finance and sales management team considers
trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired to
be of good credit quality as continuous repayments have
been received.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED ¥R R B & B 45 R A &)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

27. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 27. EWWE SR (&)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are AEBEKESHERCEERENUTIE

denominated in the following currencies: HEHE -
2021 2020
—B--—F —_ETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FH&T
HK$ BETT 1 26
RMB AR 6,575 3,796
6,576 3,822

Included in trade receivables of approximately HK$2,391,000 JEU B 5 BR X #92,391,000/8 7T B 35 &
was due from a related company controlled by a director of W—HBRARRESES @B AT 2
the Company. FKIE o

28. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 28. AR - RERHEMEW

180

RECEIVABLES R
2021 2020
—E-—&F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Deposits b 807 925
Prepayments TERT BRI 12,474 3,245
Others (note) Hofb (B =E) 513 1,857
13,794 6,027

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED 3RERE;RE SE @ AR A T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021
28. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

29.

RECEIVABLES (continued)
Note:

On 20 September 2019, the Group signed a letter of intent
with a private company (the “investee”) established in the
PRC, engaging in development and distribution of healthcare
technologies and products, to invest in the investee. A
deposit of RMB4,900,000 (equivalent to HK$5,430,000) was
paid to the investee as a deposit for capital contribution. As
the acquisition was not completed before 31 March 2020,
the deposit of RMB3,240,000 (equivalent to HK$3,708,000)
was refunded to the Group during the year ended 30
September 2020, the remaining balance of RMB1,660,000
(equivalent to HK$1,900,000) was still outstanding and was
included in other receivables as at 30 September 2020. The
remaining balance was fully refunded during the year 30
September 2021.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s prepayments, deposits
and other receivables are mainly denominated in RMB.

28. AIRA - REREMEK

5 NE))
M sE -

RZE—NFEAAZTH » AEEE—
e 7E o B A% 37 10 =B B8 AT T E o P B
ROz LERR([WRES NEEE
M RIREWRE S - AEEE RH
HEF X e AR 4,900,000t (48
E 55,430,000/ T) ' ERIERSE -
HRKRESEBEREN S _TF=A=
+—HAIEA + AR%3,240,0007T (48
E 53,708,000 70) 2 e EREE—
T_EFENAZTRIEFERARETAR
S8 RZZE-ZTFNA=1+H ' &%=
AR #1,660,0007T (#8& 11,900,000
BIT)NAREEL T AEMEUWERR -
BMEOCRBE_E-_—FhLA=THI
FERNBERE -

AEBEMER - 2E RE A REKRERR
ZEHEFZUARKHE -

LOAN RECEIVABLES 29. EE K
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHET
Loan receivables, unsecured FEUWE SR - EIIE 5,448 22,961
Less: impairment losses (note 6(b)(ii) W R E B 1 (B EE6(b)(i)) (1,138) (1,017)
4,310 21,944

The Group granted loans to certain independent third parties
during the year ended 30 September 2020, with maturity
between 3 October 2020 to 2 July 2021. Loan receivables
were unsecured and are charged on effective interest rate
mutually agreed with the contracting parties, at a fixed rate
ranging from 12% to 20% per annum. The borrowers are
obliged to settle the amounts according to the terms set out
in the relevant agreements. All loan receivables were settled
by borrowers upon maturity.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED ¥R R B & B 45 R A &)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021
29. LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

30.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED 3RERE;RE SE @ AR A T

The loan balances as at 30 September 2021 represented
loans to two private companies incorporated in Hong
Kong with maturity at 4 November 2021. Loan receivables
are unsecured and are charged on effective interest rate
mutually agreed with the contracting parties, at a fixed rate
at 12% per annum. The borrowers are obliged to settle
the amounts according to the terms set out in the relevant
agreements. Subsequent up to the report issue date, these
two borrowers have not settled the loans upon maturity.

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding loan receivables so as to minimise credit
risk. The granting of loans is subject to approval by the
management, whilst overdue balances are reviewed regularly
by the management.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s loan receivables are
denominated in HK$.

29. EWER#)

BE_Z-_—FAA=THZENREH
BRI EREB MK Z M E R FE
HIN—F-_—F+—-ANBRHZE
Koo BURESRTIEER  REANES
MEWEZBERMEGE - BEEFF
EB12% - tEEABREERBEBHZ
P8z R EN S8 - BERETIEA
Hl > ZMEBEEARISE N REEFE

=
N

REE N SREH A R EE B RS
BREE - UREBREEERR - K
ERAKERERLE  MBRERHE
B EE BT e

REE R ERZREENAEITE -

BOND RECEIVABLES 30. EWfESH
2021 2020
—B-—F —_ETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET

Unlisted debt instruments, at amortised —MEMRRIETZIELET

cost, issued by a listed company B TR - REHKAR 10,280 10,280
Accrued interest receivables U AT F B, 655 655
10,935 10,935
Less: impairment losses (note 6(b)(ii) B OREEE (K6 (b)) (10,935) (10,935)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z-_—FNA=1THIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

30. BOND RECEIVABLES (Continued) 30. EWES &)

Note: BtaE
On 2 April 2019, the Group subscribed bonds from a RZFE—AFNA=-H AEEHR—

listed company (“Bond lIssuer”) with principal amount of
HK$3,000,000. The bonds were unsecured and interest-
bearing at fixed rates of 10% per annum. The carrying
amount of HK$3,300,000 was receivable on 2 April 2020.
The bonds could be redeemed by Bond Issuer at 100% of
the outstanding principal amount, together with accrued

MEMRAR([EHETADRBEASE
/3,000,000 T2 EH o EH REK
o W EFEFHEI10%EE - RE
63,300,000 LEN T F 0 A
ZHKE - EHFAHEFEITALRHR
EBEAELHEZ100%EREEEE HH

interest up to settlement date. Upon the maturity date, Bond JEEt 2 FIEEE - REEIA - EHET
Issuer did not repay the interest and principal. /\Iﬂﬂa%&ﬂ%&$$ 0
On 4 May 2020, Bond Issuer issued bonds with principal R—ZE_ZTFHANA - BEHEETAR

amount of HK$7,280,000 at fixed interest rate of 12% per
annum to the Group for taking up the settlement obligation
of one of its subsidiaries’ bonds subscribed by the Group.
The carrying amount of HK$8,153,600 will be receivable on
3 May 2021. The bonds can be redeemed by Bond Issuer
at 100% of the outstanding principal amount, together with
accrued interest up to settlement date.

On 5 June 2020, Bond Issuer announced that it has entered
into liquidation process, the management of the Company
considered the recoverability of these bonds was remote and
full impairment was made accordingly.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bond receivables are
denominated in HKS.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED ¥R R B & B 45 R A &)

NEBEITASE A7,280,000/8 T
RETEFFE12%TENES - LURIE
HASEERBZ —HKBARZEES
£ - BRMEE8,153,6008 TN _T =
—FRA=ZHWE - BEHAREFET
ABEHAEERSBEZ100%ERESE
HERHENZHEER -
RZE_FTFARH @ EBFETAS
HMEBEANBRIEF  ARREEER
BREZEESAREMERTEMN - &
BEHREEERE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

31. BANK AND CASH BALANCES

31.

The carrying amount of the Group’s bank and cash balances

is denominated in the following currencies:

RITRREEER

AREZ RITRA S EH 2 EEEAT
S EHE

2021 2020

—B--—F —_ETF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT FHET

HK$ BT 23,053 1,009
RMB AR 350 962
Us$ e 8 7
23,411 1,978

As at 30 September 2021, the bank and cash balances of
the Group denominated in RMB was HK$288,000 (2020:
HK$903,000). Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is

subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations

and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of

Foreign Exchange Regulations.

32. TRADE PAYABLES

32.

Generally, there is no credit period for suppliers of natural
gas as the Group need to prepay before the purchase of
the natural gas. For liquefied natural gas, the credit period
granted by supplier to the Group was 30 days. For other
business, the credit period granted by supplier to the Group

ranged from 60 to 180 days.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BB EREAGIR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

32. TRADE PAYABLES (Continued) 32.

The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on date of

ENE SRR #)

RIFWEE @ B2 2 BN E SRR

receipt of goods, is as follows: REEDITT
2021 2020
—E-—& —EFF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
0 to 30 days 0ZE30H - 38
31 to 60 days 31Z260H - 115
Over 60 days @60 H 873 702
873 855

The trade payables are non-interest bearing and normally

ENEZERS T ERA

EANIE

settled on 30 to 180 days terms.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are

180 A HAMAELT -

AREBEENE SRR ZEEETIA TS

denominated in the following currencies: BHEEE -
2021 2020
—E-—F —T-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FET
HK$ BTT 92 113
RMB AR# 781 742
873 855

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED 3RERE;RS SE @GR A F)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

33. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 33. EEtE AR HMEN RN
2021 2020
—B--—F —_ETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Payable for construction in progress TR TIREN R 34,469 32,352
Receipt in advance (note) Ta s R IE (B =) 2,070 1,946
Other payables and accruals Hab R R BT B R 15,335 8,002
51,874 42,300
Note: B -
The amounts represented deposits received for disposal of ZEFREERLDEASEEF(HF
building (note 21(d)) of the Group, from an independent third 21(d) MBI BE=HFRBMZ RS o
party.
34. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 34. eNEE
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Billings in advance of performance obligation B4 & (LB BR K
— Sales of goods —HEEm 5 5
— Sales of natural gas —HERAR 5,105 2212
— Pipeline installation services —BEETERS 1,242 1,615
6,352 3,732
Contract liabilities relating to sales of goods, sales of natural HIEEER  HERARNEBTER
gas and pipeline installation services are balances due to BEBzEHNEBETIREREESED -
customers under goods sales contracts, natural gas sales RKARHEBHNNEBLRERBENIE
contracts and pipeline installation services contracts. They NEEZ&E% -HNEBEPLPINBBES
arise because customers pay deposits for the contracts HRZWEHZENES - IR il
which exceed the revenue recognised to date. e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

34. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued) 34.
Increase in contract liabilities balances during the reporting

year was because of more new natural gas sales contracts

were signed with new customers, leading to increase in

billing in advance of sales of natural gas.

EHNEBEE)

BHNBEEHRRBREFRIEN - RER
B EPRIAEEHAARBERLD
HEHERARZ BOFAEMREM -

Movements in contract liabilities: BHBRECE
2021 2020
—B--fF —EB-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Balance at beginning of year FUEERR 3,732 2,396
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of E4F RNERUZEHHN
recognising revenue during the year that aHERERLETA
was included in contract liabilities at the FHaHEaE
beginning of the year (2,621) (2,168)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of HIHEXARNEE
billing in advance of sales of natural gas ZHRRHTAMNER
and pipeline installation services BHAKBEEN 5,170 3,497
Exchange differences EHZER 71 7
Balance at end of year FRAER 6,352 3,732

There is no billings in advance of performance received that
is expected to be recognised as income after more than one
year (2020: Nil).

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IREREmE & @B R
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BE T —FhA=THLFE

35. LEASE LIABILITIES

For the year ended 30 September 2021

35. HEAE

Minimum lease payments

Present value of minimum

lease payments

REREMRK RERENRZRE
2021 2020 2021 2020
—E--F —ZT_TF —E--F —T_TF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THEx FAT THET TET
Within one year —F R 1,500 1,203 1,405 1,103
More than one vyear, but not ~ —% A FETE
exceeding two years BmF 454 415 445 393
1,954 1,618 1,850 1,496
Less: Future finance charges & @ KRRgLE
EH (104) (122) N/A N/A
Present value of lease HEETZRE
obligations 1,850 1,496 1,850 1,496
Less: Amount due for o AR 1218 A
settlement within 12 NEEZ
months (shown under FIE (AT
current liabilities) FBEFEIE
TAIR) (1,405) (1,103)
Amount due for settlement AR12E A%E
after 12 months B2 58 445 393

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied
to lease liabilities range from 8.17% to 14.76% (2020: from

6.45% to 14.76%).

The carrying amount of the Group’s lease liabilities is

denominated in HKS.

ERAREERBEZ NETFHIEEEER
ENF817%E14.76% (ZF_FF :
6.45%%E14.76%) °

AEEHERBZREENAEITE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

37.

36. DUE TO DIRECTORS 36. ENEENIE
The amounts due to directors are unsecured, interest-free ENESHEAERT  2ERARE
and repayable on demand. KEFEE o
NON-CONVERTIBLE BONDS 37. TAIRRES
2021 2020
—E-—F —E_TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHBT FHET
Non-convertible bonds AR EFH 27,166 58,896
Analysed as: DT
Current liabilities mENBE 27,166 56,190
Non-current liabilities EREBARE - 2,706
27,166 58,896

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED ¥RERE} B & B 5 IR A &)
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r2-EF-

37. NON-CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

From

—FNA=+HIEFE For the year ended 30 September 2021

37.

18 October 2018 to 9 November 2018, the Group

issued fixed rate non-convertible bonds with total principal
amount of HK$9,500,000 to independent third parties. The
non-convertible bonds are unsecured and interest-bearing at
fixed rates ranging from 12% to 14% per annum in arrears
and will be repayable on dates ranging from 17 October

2019

to 8 November 2019. The aggregate outstanding

principal amount as at 30 September 2020 amounted to

HK$6,

500,000, in which HK$3,500,000 bonds in aggregate

was overdue while maturity date of HK$3,000,000 bonds in
aggregate was further extended to 8 November 2020. During
the year ended 30 September 2021, HK$2,356,000 bonds
in aggregate have been settled. The aggregate outstanding
principal amount as at 30 September 2021 amounted to

HK$4

,144,000 (2020: HK$6,500,000) and HK$4,144,000

(2020: HK$3,500,000) bonds in aggregate have been
overdue as at 30 September 2021. Subsequent to 30
September 2021, bonds of HK$2,400,000 in aggregate have

been

renewed with maturity on 30 September 2022 and

holders of these bonds have further signed letters of intent
with the Company agreeing to further extend the maturity
date to 30 September 2023. Subsequent to 30 September

2021,

the remaining bonds of HK$1,744,000 in aggregate

have been settled.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021
37. NON-CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued) 37.

On 29 November 2018, the Group issued fixed rate non-
convertible bonds with principal amount of HK$3,000,000
to an independent third party. The non-convertible bonds
are interest-bearing at fixed rate of 12% per annum in
arrears with maturity on 28 November 2020. The bonds
were unconditionally and irrevocably secured by personal
guarantee provided by a former director of the Company. On
29 November 2020, the Company issued a new bond with
principal amount of HK$3,360,000 with the maturity date
on 28 May 2021 to replace the overdue bond together with
accrued interest. On 29 May 2021, the Company issued
another new bond with principal amount of HK$3,562,000
with the maturity date on 28 October 2021 to replace
the bond issued on 29 November 2020 together with
accrued interest. The outstanding principal amount as at
30 September 2021 amounted to HK$3,529,000 (2020:
HK$3,000,000). Subsequent to 30 September 2021, a new
bond with principal amount of HK$3,562,000 with maturity
on 28 February 2022 has been issued to replace this
overdue bond. The bondholder also signed a letter of intent
to further extend the maturity date to 28 February 2023.
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37. NON-CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

From 14 February 2019 to 23 September 2019, the Group
issued fixed rate non-convertible bonds with principal
amount in aggregate of HK$20,561,000 to certain
independent third parties. The non-convertible bonds are
unsecured and interest-bearing at fixed rates ranging from
6% to 20% per annum in arrears and are repayable on dates
ranging from 22 December 2019 to 9 September 2020.
During the year ended 30 September 2020, bonds with
principal amount in aggregate of HK$9,360,000 have been
extended by six months to two years upon maturity. The
aggregate outstanding principal amount as at 30 September
2020 amounted to HK$18,906,000 in which bonds of
HK$9,546,000 in aggregate was overdue. During the year
ended 30 September 2021, bonds of HK$8,612,000 in
aggregate have been settled and interest-bearing bonds (4%
per annum in arrears) of HK$1,524,000 with maturity date
on 27 October 2021 were issued to replace the bonds with
principal amounts in aggregate of HK$1,484,000 together
with the accrued interest. The aggregate outstanding
principal amount as at 30 September 2021 amounted to
approximately HK$10,334,000 (2020: HK$18,906,000) in
which bonds of HK$5,810,000 in aggregate were overdue as
of 30 September 2021. Subsequent to 30 September 2021,
bonds with principal amounts of HK$5,434,000 have been
settled and overdue balances of HK$1,200,000 have been
renewed with maturity date extended to 30 September 2022.
The bondholders with principal amounts in aggregate of
HK$4,200,000, including the aforementioned HK$1,200,000
bonds, signed letters of intent to further extend the maturity
to dates ranging from 10 March 2023 to 30 September
2023.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z-_—FNA=1THIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

37. NON-CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued) 37. TARRES &)
On 4 June 2020, the holder of a tranche of convertible RZZZZFNANE » — X8 A
bond with principal amount of HK$20,000,000 did not 20,000,000 7T 2 AT R E S 2 F 8 A
exercise the rights to convert or redeem the convertible NI Jﬁﬂ{éfﬂfiﬁiﬁa@—ﬁﬁﬂxﬁ
bond upon maturity. The convertible bondholder and the FHER o AIRRESFFBEAREIR
Company agreed to settle the outstanding convertible bond Cib=87 ‘H?"‘Eﬁ*ﬁtﬁé\%ﬁtﬁZO,SOO,OOO
by way of issuance of a tranche of non-convertible bonds BT - FMERBHIER T _TF+
of principal amount of HK$20,800,000 with interest rate “RA=ZREBZzAABERESF 2SR
of 6% per annum and maturity date on 3 December 2020. HEEHMAEBRZAIBRKRES - RZF
The outstanding principal amount as at 30 September 2021 ZT—FNA=+RH KEEXELHEA
amounted to HK$4,000,000 which was overdue as of 30 4,000,000 RZE=-_—FNA=
September 2021. Subsequent to 30 September 2021, the +HE®H R-ZTE=——FHLH=1TH
outstanding balance was settled. % REEBEHREES °
From 16 October 2019 to 28 August 2020, the Group issued RZZE—NF+ATARAEZZ=F
fixed rate non-convertible bonds with principal amount FNAZ+TNB AEERETHEL
in aggregate of HK$7,262,000 to certain independent FE-FEITATHETERT,262,0008 T
third parties, of which bonds with principal amount of MEEFNETABREKRES  HPAe
HK$1,000,000 were unconditionally and irrevocably secured %6 1,000,000 B T EHF R AR A —
by personal guarantee provided by a former director of the HRESRE ZEAEREEGER
Company. The non-convertible bonds are unsecured and TAHEMNER T RKRES AR
interest-bearing at fixed rates ranging from 6% to 18% R BN TEBF6%E18%METER
per annum in arrears and are repayable on dates ranging HREAB BN F T -_ZTF+
from 15 October 2020 to 27 August 2021. The aggregate A +£Eli_f_—¢)\ﬂ ++H
outstanding principal amount as at 30 September 2020 ZBHEEZ RZZFE-ZZTFHLA=T
amounted to HK$7,262,000, of which maturity dates of H - KREERSHF7,262,000/8 T -
bonds of HK$1,500,000 in aggregate have been further M4 ££1,500,0007% JT MY & 25 A9 B #5 B
extended to dates ranging from 15 January 2022 to 13 E—PRERENTFE=__F—AH+
February 2022. During the year ended 30 September 2021, FHEZZE-ZF-A+=R - BRE
bonds of HK$3,005,000 in aggregate have been settled EZT-_—FNA=ZTHLEFE &
and interest-bearing bond (12% per annum in arrears) of #3,005,0008 THEHFDEE  WE
HK$1,116,000 with maturity on 5 August 2021 were issued ?’*fﬂ 116,000 T AR IR T =
to replace the bonds with principal amounts in aggregate —FNARABHNERESF(ZREF12%
of HK$1,018,000 together with the accrued interest. The ZRAHAEFR) MR AL LA
aggregate outstanding principal amount as at 30 September 1,018,000 T &5 E R EETF B -
2021 amounted to HK$4,399,000 (2020: HK$7,262,000) in RZEB_—FALA=+H " 5&1@1@21&%
which bonds of HK$2,899,000 in aggregate were overdue 48 %8 54,399,000 (T F ¢
as of 30 September 2021. Subsequent to 30 September 7,262,000/ 70) + A& 2,899,000
2021, bonds of HK$2,649,000 have been settled and ETHEFER_ZT_—FNLA=TH
bond of HK$250,000 has been renewed with maturity on B c RZZTE=_—FNA=TH*%E
30 September 2022. The bondholders of HK$1,750,000 2,649,000 TLEHREHEE Hr MRZE
including the aforementioned HK$250,000 bond, signed ZZH#NA=1+HEIH2250,000% T
letters of intent with the Company agreeing to further extend BEHCEE ° 1,750,000/ T (B4 L
the maturity to dates ranging from 15 January 2023 to 30 250,000 8 THEH)EH 2 FE AER
September 2023. NG X%i‘ﬁ u ﬁii&**ﬂ%ﬂﬁﬂ =]

RENFZE-_=F—HA+HBZ=E

7__¢hﬂ JrEl °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

37. NON-CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued) 37. T ERES#)
The carrying amounts of the non-convertible bonds issued BTz IABRBRES 2 EREEER
approximate their fair values. FEMEE -
Non-convertible bonds issued at fixed interest rates expose EETHERETZ2ATBRBRESFEARSE
the Group to fair value interest rate risk. EEERATFEMNERRE
The carrying amount of the Group’s non-convertible bonds is AEETARRELS 2EEBENULNTIE
denominated in the following currencies: HEHE -
2021 2020
—B=-—F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FET
HK$ BTT 24,911 51,226
Us$ = 1,106 6,483
RMB AR 1,149 1,187
27,166 58,896
38. BANK BORROWINGS 38. RITIEE
2021 2020
—E-—F ZE-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Bank borrowings (note (a)) RITEE(KFE(@) 18,067 20,601
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

38. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 38. R{ITEE(®)
The bank borrowings are repayable as follows: RITEEANATEBEE
2021 2020
—E-—F BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FHET
Within one year —FR 7,680 8,012

More than one year, but not exceeding two —F A H1B BB F

years 9,169 4,578
More than two years, but not more than five MELA BT BBEAF
years 1,218 8,011
10,387 12,589
18,067 20,601
Less: Amount due for settlement within B AR A NBEZRK
12 months (shown under current BH(RMBBERT
liabilities) AR ) (7,680) (8,012)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months B 218 A1%/5E 2 518 10,387 12,589
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

38. BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes:

(a)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED 3RERE;RE SE @ AR A T

Bank borrowings of HK$13,393,000 (2020:
HK$16,023,000) are secured by several properties
owned by NCI of Yichang Biaodian, including Mr. Xiong
Songgan (“Mr. Xiong”), a key management personnel
of Yichang Biaodian (2020: a director and legal
representative of Yichang Biaodian), and his spouse,
and a company held and controlled by Mr. Xiong. The
bank borrowings are also jointly guaranteed by NCI of
Yichang Biaodian, including Hubei Biaodian, Mr. Xiong
and his spouse and Mr. Li.

Bank borrowings of HK$175,000 (2020: Nil) are secured
by a personal guarantee of the legal representative of
Yichang Biaodian.

Bank borrowings of HK$4,578,000 as at 30 September
2020 are secured by a property owned by NCI of
Yichang Biaodian, including Mr. Xiong and his spouse.
The bank borrowings are also jointly guaranteed by
a subsidiary of the Group and the non-controlling
shareholders of Yichang Biaodian.

The amounts are based on scheduled repayment dates
set out in the respective loan agreements.

38. R1ITEE#®)

B &

(a)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021
38. BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 38.

The carrying amount of the Group’s bank borrowing balance
is denominated in RMB.

The effective interest rate of the Group’s bank borrowings
ranged from 5.00% to 15.00% (2020: 7.10% to 8.01%).

Bank borrowings of HK$175,000 (2020: Nil) are arranged
at fixed interest rates and expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk. Other borrowings are arranged at floating
rates, thus exposing the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk.

The Group’s bank borrowings carried interest based on the
benchmark interest rate issued by the People’s Bank of
China during both years. Interest rate will be adjusted if the
benchmark interest rate changes, thus exposing the Group
to cash flow interest rate risk.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED ¥R R B & B 45 R A &)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

39. DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING

39. EN—RBMNBAR 2 ER

SHAREHOLDERS OF A SUBSIDIARY AND

ITS RELATED PARTIES

Particulars of the amounts due to non-controlling

shareholders of a subsidiary and its related parties are as

MR & H B 5 7R

JE A~ — T Y /BB 2 B SR 42 AR 3R % L A e
7 ZHRBEFBLT

follows:
2021 2020
—EB-—fF —_ETF
Name Relationship HK$’000 HK$’000
=1y 2R FHET FHT
Hubei Biaodian and its subsidiaries note (a)
AL AR B K B E A A M3 (a) 27,433 26,160
Mr. Xiong and his controlled entities note (b)
RREEREESIER iEsd(e) 16,925 14,281
HEmins note (c)
Mk (c) 65 =
44,423 40,441

Notes:

(@) Hubei Biaodian is the 21% (2020: 21%) non-controlling

shareholder of Yichang Biaodian

(b) Mr. Xiong is the controlling shareholder of Hubei

Biaodian.

(c) ESIAHE is the 24.49% non-controlling shareholder

of Yichang Biaodian.

Amounts due to Hubei Biaodian and its subsidiaries, Mr.

Xiong and his controlled entities and B & #1305 represented

advances for Yichang Biaodian’s capital expenditure

purposes and were non-trade in nature. They are not
repayable within 12 months from the date of this report.
These balances are unsecured and interest free. Certain

amounts are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, with an effective interest rate of 10% (2020:

10%).

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BB EREAGIR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

40. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities
recognised and movements thereon during the current year

and prior year:

40. EEBIHEE

ATARAFEREBEFERRLIEE
EXERARBENMEAREED)

Revaluation

of assets

EESEM

HK$’000

FHET

At 1 October 2019 RZZ—hE+HA—H 44,484

Exchange differences (R 1,241

Credited to profit or loss (note 13) s AEE(KIFE13) (28,348)
At 30 September 2020 and 1 October 2020 E(\\_g_ TENA=TARK

—E-ZTF+ A —H 17,377

Exchange differences [EH =% 1,100

Credited to profit or loss (note 13) s ABE(KIFE13) (719)

At 30 September 2021 RZEZ—FNA="H 17,758

At the end of the reporting year, the Group had unused tax
losses of HK$231,830,000 (2020: HK$216,194,000) available
to offset against future profits. The unrecognised tax losses

RBEFER @  AEEXRFHZHRE
E518 5231,830,0008 T (— T -2 4 -
216,194,00078 70) » A (4K 5 K 2K '@

of HK$199,667,000 (2020: HK$184,379,000) can be carried B o RHERTHIEEIE199,667,000/8 T

forward infinitively. The remaining HK$32,163,000 (2020:
HK$31,815,000) related to tax losses in the PRC which will

expire in one to five years.

No provision for deferred tax assets has been recognised in
respect of tax losses and other temporary differences due to

unpredictability of future profit streams.

(ZF=FF:

184,379,000 7T ) A] f&
|SE'<HH &8 o g2 232,163,000/8 (=

T -—FF 31,815,000/ 0 ) Erh F

HEERR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z-_—FNA=1THILFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

41. SHARE CAPITAL 41. R
2021 2020
—E--f —E-FF
Number Number
of shares Amount of shares Amount
REAHE &8 B g
’000 HK$’000 '000 HK$'000
TR THET T AL
Authorised: ETE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.5 (2020: SRAESEL(ZE=F
HK$0.025) each F:0.02587) 2 EBH 160,000 80,000 3,200,000 80,000
Share consolidated (note (c)) B3 Bt () - - (3,040,000) =
Capital reduction (note (d)) BRAHIR (M3 ()) 7,840,000 - - -
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 (2020: FREECOTET
HK$0.5) each (ZBZTF:05%87L)
LiEk 8,000,000 80,000 160,000 80,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRER
At beginning of year REA 91,172 45,586 1,303,440 32,586
Placing of new shares (note (a)) REFMRD (K@) - - 260,000 6,500
Placing of new shares (note (b)) e & 517 (M) - - 260,000 6,500
Share consolidation (note (c)) B & BF (Fit3E(c) - - (1,732,268) =
Capital reduction (note (d)) RSB (P EE(d)) - (44,674) = =
Rights issue (note (g)) AR (Mt 3E(e)) 364,688 3,647 = =
At end of year RER 455,860 4,559 91,172 45,586
Notes: BtaE
(a) This represented an aggregate of 260,000,000 placing (a) EHERZ-ZE-_ZTF=A=-++tH

shares issued on 27 March 2020 at a price of HK$0.05

each,

resulting in a credit to share capital and share

premium by HK$6,500,000 and HK$5,680,000, netting
off the placing cost of HK$820,000 respectively.

(b) This represented an aggregate of 260,000,000 placing
shares issued on 5 May 2020 at a price of HK$0.029

each,

resulting in a credit to share capital and share

premium by HK$6,500,000 and HK$526,000, netting
off the placing cost of HK$514,000 respectively.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BREREIRS &

EAERQH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z-_—FNA=1THIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

41. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(©)

On 24 August 2020, every twenty issued and unissued
shares of HK$0.025 each in the Company were
consolidated into one consolidated share of HK$0.5
each.

On 4 August 2021, the Company announced that
an order confirming the capital reduction granted by
the court from Cayman Islands on 3 August 2021
(Cayman Islands time), the nominal value of each of
the Company’s issued share was reduced from HK$0.5
to HK$0.01 each by cancelling the paid-up capital
to the extent of HK$0.49 on each issued share and
the existing issued share capital of HK$45,586,000
was reduced by approximately HK$44,674,000 to
approximately HK$912,000 comprising 91,172,000
shares of HK$0.01 each with effect from 4 August
2021. As a result, an amount of HK$44,674,000 was
credited to accumulated losses on 4 August 2021.
Upon the completion of capital reduction effective on 4
August 2021, the number of authorised shares of the
Company was increased from 160,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.5 each to 8,000,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each. Each share ranks pari passu
in all respects.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED ¥R R B & B 45 R A &)

41. BRA& (&)

F&E - (4&)

(©)

RZZE-_ZTEFNA_F+WTH ' K
AEEBEZ+TREREMEO0.025%
TZEBITRRETRMHE SO
BEREESE T — KA K

,f/'\ ®

RZE-_—FNAEA - XA
AEMAERSERER T =—
FNA-H(HREHEERHMH) %
RS R ES BT
HERE FITRMOL4IBILZ
BRERAMBARRERE T
f& 7 B E{E B & 0.5 TR 4
EFROOIE L MREAEE B
17 B% 7K 45,586,000 78 7T B 4 4
44,674,0007%8 7T £ £1912,000/8
JL 0 B FE91,172,000 & K ®E
BoO1 B TWiRG BT =
—FNAMBRER - Bt
446740008 TR =_E = —F
NAWBEAREE - RZF
Z—FNAWEATKBRAERE
Wit ARBETERHDEEB A
160,000,000/% & X EE0.578 T
2 E A% = 8,000,000,000 %
EREE0.0O1B T L@ -
IR TEFT B T E =B RIEHAL ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE—_ZT—

—FNA=+HIEFE For the year ended 30 September 2021

41. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 41.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IREKEiRE EEE B IR A &l

Notes: (Continued)

(e) On 20 November 2020, the Company announced a
proposed rights issue (the “Rights Issue”) on the basis
of four rights shares for every one adjusted share held
on the record date at the subscription price of HK$0.16
per rights share, to raise approximately HK$58,350,000
by issuing 364,688,000 rights shares to the qualifying
shareholders. Upon the Rights Issue was approved by
shareholders’ resolution passed at an extraordinary
general meeting on 21 April 2021 and completion of
the Rights Issue on 31 August 2021, the number of
shares in issue of the Company was increased by
364,688,000, resulting in a credit to share capital and
share premium by HK$3,647,000 and HK$52,612,000,
after netting of the related cost of HK$2,092,000.

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maximise the return to the shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to
risk. The Group manages the capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the payment of dividends, issue new
shares, buy-back shares, raise new debts, redeem existing
debts or sell assets to reduce debts.

The primary objective of the Group’s capital risk management
is to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholder value.
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41.

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes during the year

ended 30 September 2021.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
net debt divided by the total equity of the Group. Net debt
includes interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and
convertible bond, less cash and bank balances and excludes
discontinued operations. Capital includes equity attributable
to owners of the Company. The gearing ratio at the end of

—FNA=+HIEFE For the year ended 30 September 2021

41. BRA& (&)

AEBEEHEERNEBIRBLER SR
BCHEELRAE - RERFIFAERER
w%'ﬁE.W@ﬂW§H$W$Z%
return capital B BERREARNBEITHR - HE
§**¢HH—+E¢¢E'H%~ﬁ
RHRBFREE -

AEBEEREERBILREREN &
AEBLRTIZAKREF A ERARE
matE o FREBE BRITREME
EARABEES - RRE RIRITER

AT RERIEREER - EABER
NEFAE ANEIERER - RBEFERD

the reporting year was as follows: BEABBRLENT
2021 2020
—E-—fF —ZEZE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Lease liabilities (note 35) HEAE(ME35) 1,850 1,496
Due to related parties JE 1~ RAES: 5 5R0R 1,218 2,054
Due to directors (note 36) FE 2 E R IE (M 5E36) 3,011 3,969
Non-convertible bonds (note 37) AR ES (MFE37) 27,166 58,896
Bank borrowings (note 38) RITEE (M13E38) 18,067 20,601
Due to non-controlling shareholders of a FES — M B A R 2 FEIE R
subsidiary and its related parties (note 39) A% 5 & H BB 75 708 (B 5F
39) 44,423 40,441
Total borrowings EEARE 95,735 127,657
Less: Bank and cash balances (note 31) B RIT RIS SR (M &
31) (23,411) (1,978)
Net debt ERERE 72,324 125,679
Total equity iR 72,632 33,747
Gearing ratio BEABLE 99% 372%
GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIRE{RREEEBRAR  ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F 3]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

41. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

41.

The significant decrease in the gearing ratio during the year

ended 30 September 2021 resulted primarily from decrease

in non-convertible bonds, and significant increase in equity

attributable to the rights issue completed during the year (note

41(e)).

The only externally imposed capital requirement is that for

the Group to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it

has to have a public float of at least 25% of the shares.

The Group checks the substantial share interests showing

the non-public float through the Stock Exchange’s website

and it demonstrates continuing compliance with the 25%
limit throughout the year. At 30 September 2021, 95.28%
(2020: 95.28%) of shares were in public hands.

Apart from above, neither the Company nor its subsidiaries

are subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

42. RESERVES

(@) Group

42.

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements

therein are presented in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and

consolidated statement of changes in equity.

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the difference

between the nominal value of the share capital

issued by the Company and the fair value

allocated to the separable net assets of the

subsidiaries at the date of acquisition arisen from

a group reorganisation in March 2000.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED 3RERE;RE SE @ AR A T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z-_—FNA=1THIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

42. RESERVES (continued)

(b)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

Special reserve

The special reserve represents the difference
between the book values of the underlying
net assets of DIGITALHONGKONG.COM INC.,
DIGITAL COMMERCE LIMITED and Digital Hong
Kong Limited at the date on which the shares of
these companies were acquired by the Company
together with the acquisition of a shareholder’s
loan of HK$7,640,000, and the nominal amount of
the Company’s shares issued for the acquisition.
The special reserve is available for distribution
under the Companies Law (Revised) of the
Cayman Islands.

Share premium

Share premium represents the amount of the
excess of issue price of the Company’s shares
over its par value.

Other reserve

Other reserve represents deemed capital
contribution arising from non-current interest-free
loan from shareholders and the loss on disposal
arising from deemed disposal of 24% equity
interest in Yichang Biaodian.

Translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises
all foreign exchange differences arising from
the translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set
out in note 4(c)(iii) to the consolidated financial
statements.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IREREmE & @B R

42, #iEE)

(b)

HEEERE(E)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

X

BRI TN AN R AU A
DIGITALHONGKONG.COM
INC. - DIGITAL COMMERCE
LIMITED R 8 BB E A
BRARKBMHER  %ZEQA]
A ERE FEER AT
B2 R E 57,640,000
JT - BBt IR M T2
RATRMDEERE Rz =
EoRBERESBESLEBEITA
AL - FRREET RS IR 2
)EH °

4 i (B $8 AN 2 m) B fn 2 3%

TEEBREEEISRE °

Hfbi#fE

Hi#EEREIERB 2 EME
EXRBIEFHEESRHA
24% P i 2 BSR4 2 1R
ExE -

BE#E

INEMEREBERIERNRE

BINER 2 MR

FTBEINEZRE - ZFEE IR
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43.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED 3RERE;RE SE @ AR A T

“E-—FNA=1+HIEFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

On 30 November 2012, the Company adopted a share
option scheme (the “Old Scheme”). The purpose of the
Old Scheme is to attract and to retain quality personnel
and other persons and to provide them with incentive to
contribute to the business and operation of the Group.
Under the Old Scheme, the directors may grant options to
any eligible person of the Group, including (i) any director,
employee or consultant of the Company, a subsidiary or an
affiliate; or (ii) any discretionary trust whose discretionary
objects include any director, employee or consultant of the
Company, a subsidiary or an affiliate; or (iii) a company
beneficially owned by any director, employee or consultant
of the Company, a subsidiary or an affiliate; or (iv) any
person or entity whose service to the Group or business
with the Group contribute or is expected to contribute to the
business or operation of the Group as may be determined
by the directors from time to time, to subscribe for shares of
the Company. Options granted are exercisable for a period
of up to ten years from the date of grant of the option as
decided by the board.
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HE-_Z-_—FNA=1THIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021
43. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (Continued)

The exercise price (subject to adjustment as provided
therein) of the option under the Old Scheme is equal to the
highest of (i) the nominal value of share; (i) the closing price
per share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheet on the date of grant of the option, which must be a
business day and (iii) the average closing price per share
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant. The maximum number of shares in respect of which
the options may be granted under the Old Scheme shall not
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
at the date of approval of the Old Scheme. However, the
total maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding share options must not exceed
30% of the issued share capital of the Company from time
to time. The number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted to any one grantee in any 12-month period
is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue on the last date of such 12-month period from
time to time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 21 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a
nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by grantee.

Pursuant to the resolution passed by the shareholders of
the Company in the extraordinary general meeting held on
30 July 2020, the Old Scheme was terminated such that
no further options could thereafter be offered under the Old
Scheme but in all other respects and provisions of the Old
Scheme shall remain in full force and effect, while a new
share option scheme (the “New Scheme”) was approved
and adopted on 20 August 2020 and, the board of directors
may, at its discretion, grant options to the eligible persons
as defined in the New Scheme.

On 20 August 2020, all remaining share options under the
Old Scheme were cancelled upon the adoption of the New
Scheme.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED ¥R R B & B 45 R A &)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 44. XA BB B R KRR &8

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY 3]
(@) Statement of financial position of the Company (a) AATEFKEARRE
2021 2020
—B--—F —_ETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHET
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BEMEE 88 55
Right-of-use assets EREEE 144 389
Investments in subsidiaries RWBRRZIZE - -
232 444
Current assets REBEE
Prepayment, deposits and other FEERER ek
receivables H At FE UL BR 3K 6,072 1,842
Loan receivables FEUWE R 4,310 21,944
Bond receivables U EH - =
Due from subsidiaries FE U Bt B8 A B 5RIE 16,730 22,262
Bank and cash balances RITMIR & 8 22,748 661
49,860 46,709
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables E b ER R 5,627 4,277
Lease liabilities HEAR 158 249
Due to subsidiaries FELTH B A | 5k08 675 675
Due to directors BN EEHIE 2,775 885
Non-convertible bonds AR R EH 27,166 56,189
36,401 62,275
Net current assets/(liabilities) REBEE (AE)FE 13,459 (15,566)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBARG 13,691 (15,122)

208 GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BBEEEBAIR AT  ANNUAL REPORT 2021 i
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 44. XA BB B R KRR &%

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY &)
(Continued)
(a) Statement of financial position of the Company (a) ERATBMBRAER(E)
(Continued)
2021 2020
—E-—F —T-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHET
Non-current liabilities FREBERE
Lease liabilities HEBRE - 158
Non-convertible bonds AR ES - 2,706
- 2,864
Net assets/(liabilities) BE/(86)FE 13,691 (17,986)
Capital and reserves EXRRHE
Share capital f& A 4,559 45,586
Reserves ] 9,132 (63,572)
TOTAL EQUITY/ (BB B8
(CAPITAL DEFICIENCY) 13,691 (17,986)
Approved by the Board of Directors on 17 December RZE-—F+-At+tAEES=gl
2021 and are signed on its behalf by: BB TINEERKRESE -
Wang Wenzhou Wu Guoming
Ed REIHA

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BER#E =B AR AT  ANNUAL REPORT 2021 43§ 209
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HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 44. XA BB B R KRR &8

210

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY e
(Continued)
(b) Reserve movement of the Company (b) EATZFEES
Capital Special Share Other ~ Translation Share option  Accumulated
reserve reserve premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
ERBE  GERE  RBEE  HMBE  RERE  BRERE  ZhER gt
[note (note [note (note (note
420l L)1/ 1 4 1} 4200l
(Wiaom)) (ko) (Wsaom) (Kdoping)  (Bikaayy)
HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HK$'000
ThT T ThT T ThT Thr T ThT
At 1 October 2019 RZE-NETA-H 7640 197 287,434 6,734 (5,167) 5006 (282869) 21,713
Loss for the year EmEE (95,5%9) (95,505
Other comprehensive income for —~~ EMEHZENE
the year = 4,104 4,104
Issuance of ordinary shares TEER 6,206 - = 6,206
Forfeiure of share options granted ~ RAE R HERE (1521) 1527
Cancelation of share options qranted 50 R B E 4439) 443
At 30 September 2020 and H-E-ZENA=TA
1 Qctober 2020 k-E-25+A-R 7640 W 260 M (106) B4 (35T
Loss for the year EpEE (26,609) (26,605)
Other comprehensive income for ~ EREH2ENE
the year 2,023 - 2,023
Capital reduction (note 41(d) Rl (an0) 44674 4474
Issuance of shares on ights issue 2B (M3
(note 41(g) 4(g) 52,612 525612
At 30 September 2021 RZB_-FNA
=18 7640 197 346,262 6,734 960 (354,425) 9,132

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED 3RERE;RE SE @ AR A T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

45. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a)

Acquisition of a subsidiary

On 31 October 2019, the Group acquired 100% of the
issued share capital of LW Insurance at a consideration
of HK$2,373,000. LW Insurance was engaged in acting
as insurance broker during the year. The acquisition
is for the purpose of actively explore local sources of
revenue with the insurance brokerage business.

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
LW Insurance acquired as at the date of acquisition are

45. GERETREBRME

(a)

WiE—EHELQR

R-FB-AFTH=+—H =&
S E R K E2,373,000/% T KB F
ZERR100% < B BHITRA - XA
FE  FERBRUEERRELE
%o WBZENERBRRAM
R LR EHH R

P U BE 2 A= R B A S8R B E I
BEREBREHZAFEAT

as follows:
LW Insurance
FIZ R
HK$’000
FH&T
Net liabilities acquired: sz B &S5
Trade and other receivables JEUE 5 K& E AR X 16
Bank balances IR1THE R 213
Trade and other payables BB 5 R EMERK (393)
Current tax liabilities BNEAT IR B & (1)
(165)
Goodwill (note 23) EE(MizE23) 2,538
2,373
Satisfied by: BATHAER -
Deposits for acquisition of a subsidiary WE—ENB AR IS 1,400
Cash consideration HeRE 973
2,373
Net cash outflow arising on acquisitions: WHEE A IR S M F5E -
Cash consideration paid BfRENRE (973)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired BWEReRIRSEEY 213
(760)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED RRERE{IEEEBER AT ANNUAL REPORT 2021 &3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

45. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(a)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BREREIRS &

Acquisition of a subsidiary (Continued)

The fair value of the trade receivables acquired is
HK$9,000.

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of LW Insurance
is attributable to the anticipated profitability from
certain potential material insurance contracts will be
handled through LW Insurance on behalf of its clients.
Acquisition-related cost of HK$32,000 has been
charged to general and administrative expenses in the
consolidated statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

LW Insurance contributed approximately HK$499,000
to the Group’s revenue for the year for the period
between the date of acquisition and the end of the year
ended 30 September 2020. LW Insurance contributed
approximately HK$1,017,000 to the Group’s loss for
the year for the period between the date of acquisition
and the end of the year ended 30 September 2020.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 October
2019, total Group revenue for the year ended 30
September 2020 from continuing operations would
have been HK$42,764,000, and loss for the year ended
30 September 2020 from continuing operations would
have been HK$266,924,000. The proforma information
is for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an
indication of the revenue and results of operations of
the Group that actually would have been achieved had
the acquisition been completed on 1 October 2019,
nor is intended to be a projection of future results.

EAERQH

45.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE—_%T—

45. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b)

Disposal of discontinued operations

As referred to in note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements, on 29 September 2020 the Group
discontinued its businesses in trading of copper and
trading of petrochemicals at the time of the disposal of
its subsidiaries, Hong Kong King Sailing Limited and its

subsidiaries.

Net assets at the date of disposal were as follows:

—®NLA=+HIFE For the year ended 30 September 2021

45. mEBREREXRMT (&)

(b) HECKRILEEXK

HANAR B M ImA M 18P
R-ZB-_FFAA-_+NE ' &K
SERHEENBAREETH
BR A E N E B AR AR &
EHEBRRNMEERALERES -

RHEBHMEEFENT :

HK$’000
FHETT
Property, plant and equipment Y -~ BE L& 12
Trade and other receivables FEWE 5 K E A BR 5K 12,373
VAT recoverable Al B E R 126
Current tax assets BIEAR IR & = 166
Bank and cash balances RIT IR ER 1083
Trade and other payables ERTE 5 R E MR (5,947)
Current tax liabilities BNEATH IR B & (4,974)
NCI FEEAR M A 13
Net assets disposed of FritEMEEFEAE 1,872
Release of foreign currency translation reserve  fRERINES IR & 2 (731)
Loss on disposal of discontinued operations HE BRI E s E 18 (FTEE18)

(note 18) (1,041)
Total consideration BRE 100
Consideration satisfied by UTHARZF2RE

Cash Re 100
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEEAZESRLFERE
Cash consideration received BUIRESNRE 100
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of BEHEReRRSEEY (103)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED ¥R R B & B 45 R A &)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

45. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

45. mEBEREXRMT &)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(c) Disposal of a subsidiary

On 7 January 2020, the Group entered into a
share transfer agreement with a buyer, which was
independent from the Group, to dispose 100% equity
interest in Digital Commerce Limited. Digital Commerce
Limited was engaged in investment holding during the

year.

Net assets at the date of disposal were as follows:

(c) HE—HEHNEBLF

RZZEZEF—-—AtRH K&
EHE-FZEH(BIRAER)FT
MR EE R & 0 LA & Digital
Commerce Limited 2 & % &
# o AEEZ - Digital Commerce
Limited e F & #RR -

RHEBHMEEFENT :

HK$’000
FHET
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BWEKREE 98
Intangible assets mREEE 750
Prepayments TETER SR 8
Bank balances RITHEER 73
Other payables and accruals HE MR R ERTE R (5)
Net assets disposed of Frii &M EEFE 924
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (note 10) HE BB ARz (HsE10) 1,576
Total consideration BRE 2,500
Consideration satisfied by AT AF AN 2 RE

Cash Be 1,500
Receipt in advance FEUR R IE 1,000
2,500

Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEEZHESRAFE
Cash consideration received EURERE 1,500
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of EHERSKRESEEY (73)
1,427

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BB EREAGIR
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Hz—% FNA=+THIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

F_=_

45. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Major non-cash transaction

Imputed interest of approximately HK$257,000
charged for the year ended 30 September 2021 (2020:
HK$1,760,000) was accrued to a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary and its related parties.

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s
liabilities arising from financing activities, including both
cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from
financing activities are those for which cash flows were,
or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s
consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows
from financing activities.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED ¥RERE} B & B 5 IR A &)

45. mEBREREXRMT (&)

(d)

(e)

FEHFREXS

REEZE=_ZE=-_—FALA=1+HIL
FEENR 2 EEHN B 4257,000
BIL(ZEZZF 1 1,760,000
LB RE—EHB AR ZIEE
AR R I ELRREE 5 o

MEFDFELEREZHK

TRFAAFBAEERE LB T
EXREZEY  BRATKFE
Re®s  BMELTDFELAR
ERAEEFARERERAD
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

45. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(e) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities (Continued)

45. =&

(e)

ERERMT @)

METHELEEBEZHKR(E)

1 October Cash Interest Non-cash Exchange 30 September

2020 flows expenses movement differences 2021

it - 2.3 Z3--f

tA-R BéfhE FERX  #Be%9 EXZ®  NA=TH

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THT THT THT THT Th7 Th7

Bank borrowings (note 38) RiTEE (M) 20,601 (5,703) 1,000 - 1,69 18,067
Due to non-controlling shareholders R —RIHBA A 23
of a subsidiary and s related BRREREES A

parties (note 39) (t#39) 40,441 1,129 257 - 2,596 44,493

Non-convertible bonds (note 37) T AR B (Ff3ta7) 58,396 (33,689) 1,888 - n 27,166

Due to directors (note 36) T EZHE(M36) 3,969 (1,198) - - 240 3,011

Lease liabllties (note 35) HEARE(MH35) 1,496 (1,078) 159 1,213 - 1,850

125,403 (40,539) 4,204 1,213 4,176 94,517

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BREREIRS &

EAERQH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FNRA=FTHIEFE For the year ended 30 September 2021

45. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(e)

BE—_%T—

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities (Continued)

45. ZRE 1B

(e)

ERERMET &)

METHELEEBEZ2HKR(E)

1 October Cash Interest Non-cash Exchange 30 September

2019 flows expenses movement differences 2020

ZE-NE Z2-%F

+A-A Beng fERE  #BRef EiZE  NAZTH

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Thn T T i ThT ThT

Bank borrowings (note 38) RiTfEE (M) 17,729 791 1450 - 631 20,601
Due to non-controlling shareholders  [Ef—FMBA Al 2 3%
of a subsidiary and it related UEREE by

parties (note 39) (39 43,589 (6378) 1,760 - 1470 40,441
Convertiole bond designated at ~ RERAFEHABRL

FVTPL ERER 19,771 (548) 1348 (20,401) (170) =

Non-convertible bonds (note 37) AT &R ([ii£37) 34,885 (429) 3,681 20,800 1) 58,896

Due to directors (note 36) EESZE(M30) 347 3,557 = = 65 3,969

Lease liabilties (note 35) MERRE(HHSS) 3,245 (2,668) 207 711 1 1,496

119,566 (5,675) 8,446 1,110 1956 125,403

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED (RERERE @GR AT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

45. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 45. REREREXRMTE (@)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
() Total cash outflow for leases () HERSRHLEHE
Amounts included in the cash flow statements for FFAERESRERZSERE
leases comprise the following: IAT&IE :
2021 2020
—EB-—fF —_ETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Within operating cash flows KER G MEN 263 287
Within financing cash flows MERESREN 988 2,451
1,251 2,738
These amounts relate to the following: ZECEETY AR
2021 2020
- ZETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Lease rental paid BENHEERS 1,251 2,738
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_ZT—

46. LITIGATION

(a)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, Yichang
Biaodian entered into disputes with one of its suppliers
regarding the quality of work performed by such
supplier. Legal proceedings were initiated by the
supplier (the “Yichang Plaintiff 1”) and on 14 December
2018, pursuant to the application from the Yichang
Plaintiff 1,
to preserve the bank deposits of Yichang Biaodian
amounted to approximately RMB478,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$544,000).

the Court in Yichang granted an order

On 13 March 2019, the Court issued civil mediation
agreement which set out that the Yichang Plaintiff 1
and Yichang Biaodian agreed with the repayment terms
in relation to the aforesaid amount. Yichang Biaodian
is required to repay RMB200,000 on or before 30 April
2019 and an order could be applied to unfreeze the
bank accounts; and Yichang Biaodian was required to
settle RMB2,000,000 on or before 30 September 2019
and the remaining outstanding amount on or before
30 March 2020. The Yichang Plaintiff 1 has the rights
to apply for a court order to enforce Yichang Biaodian
to settle all its debts if it fails to repay RMB2,200,000
to the Yichang Plaintiff 1 on or before 30 September
2019. Amount of RMB8,787,000 (equivalent to
HK$10,006,000) are fully provided as liabilities of the
Group at 31 December 2018. The restricted bank
balance was released on 11 April 2019 upon agreement
between the Plaintiff and Yichang Biaodian.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR ERE} B

—FNA=+HIEFE For the year ended 30 September 2021

46.

SEERDF

RBE=Z-NE+=A=+—
A% BERAR K —
BHEEREFE  NEAWK

HEBMET I THEESE - Z#H

EE(TEERE—ERHEZER
BF  R-F-N\F+-A+H

B BREEERE—Z2HF H
Emihaﬁé%m*%Tﬂz

BITE R4 AR # 478,000t (48
%ﬁé%54400mﬁﬁﬂ°

R-ZZE—NE=ZA+=8 " &bk
BHREARGE  ERENNE
ERE—REEEHABETERL
MR BEKK - EEIZHA
R-ZFE—AFHA=+H®ZA
f&i# A R#200,0007T © I A A
BRLEBRRITERS, REEE
BBER-_T-hLFNLA=THI
Z BIEE AR2,000,0007T &%
ZECEFE=-RA=1+H%ZHB
B THABESSE - MWESZ
ﬁ*@F_T hihﬁ +A

=

s 2 Rl AE Eig AR
2mommﬁ'wﬁaﬁifﬁ%
R ERESENEEEMER

EmMBEK - ARS,787,0007T
(1% 10,006,000 TT)E R =
TE-N\E+-_A=Z+— B2 &E
%%$E@Z%F°§E%ﬁﬁ
%FEDA EZ BB EER
T-NFEA+—HRER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z-_—FNA=1THILFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

B HRMEE

46. LITIGATION (Continued)

(a)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BREREIRS &

(Continued)

On 20 November 2019, the Yichang Plaintiff 1 has
exercised its rights to apply for a court order to enforce
Yichang Biaodian for settlement of amount overdue.
Yichang Biaodian only repaid RMB200,000 up to 30
September 2021.
consolidated financial statements, the Yichang Plaintiff

As at the date of approval of these

1 has not taken any further action against Yichang
Biaodian for the outstanding balance. The directors of
the Company considered that as the full amount of the
debts of RMB8,587,000 (equivalent to HK$10,455,000)
claimed by Yichang Plaintiff 1 are fully provided as
liability of the Group as at 30 September 2021, no
further liability will be incurred.

During the year ended 30 September 2020, Shenzhen
Global has been in dispute with a former director of the
Group regarding the ownership of the building located
in the PRC. Legal proceedings were initiated by the
On 8 July
2020, pursuant to the application from the Shenzhen

former director (the “Shenzhen Plaintiff”).

Plaintiff, the Court in Shenzhen granted an order to
preserve the building of Shenzhen Global from being
sold by the Group during the period from 9 July 2020
to 8 July 2023.
On 6 May 2021, the Court in Shenzhen concluded
that the ownership of the building belongs to the
Group. On 24 May 2021, the former director lodged an
appeal against the decision made by the Court. The
management of the Group is assessing the possible
outcome that bringing to Shenzhen Global from the
appeal.

EAERQH

46.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 i
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z-_—FNA=1THIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

46. LITIGATION (Continued)

(c)

During the year ended 30 September 2019, there
was a dispute between Yichang Biaodian and one of
its suppliers regarding the settlement of outstanding
amounts for construction work performed by the
supplier. Legal proceedings were initiated by the
supplier (the “Yichang Plaintiff 2”). The Court of Sanxia
Ba District denied the application of Yichang Plaintiff 2
for the settlement amount. Yichang Plaintiff 2 appealed
to Intermediate People’s Court of Yichang City.

On 29 October 2020, the Court issued civil ruling
paper which set out the repayment of RMB1,036,000
(equivalent to HK$1,261,000) from Yichang Biaodian to
Yichang Plaintiff 2 within 15 days of the issuance of the
civil ruling paper. Yichang Biaodian is required to pay
default interest equivalent to a balance which is double
of the interest expenses for late payment (the “Default
Interest”). Yichang Plaintiff 2 has the rights to apply
for a court order to enforce Yichang Biaodian to settle
all its debts if it fails to repay within 15 days of the
issuance of the civil ruling paper.

On 7 January 2021, Yichang Plaintiff 2 has exercised
its rights to apply for a court order to enforce Yichang
Biaodian for settlement of the amount overdue. On
10 June 2021, the Court issued an consumption
restriction order, to restrict Yichang Biaodian (including
its legal representative, main person in charge, directly
responsible personnel affecting the liability enforcement
and the actual controller) and a senior management
personnel from certain specified consumption activities.
Yichang Biaodian was required to apply for permission
from the court before carrying out those restricted
consumption activities. For any acts violating the
consumption restriction order, the Court has the rights
to issue penalty or detention. Yichang Biaodian had
not repaid any of the outstanding amounts as at 30
September 2021.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED ¥R R B & B 45 R A &)

(c)

. sRaR(&)

REBEE-T-NAFALA=TAHL
FE HeGHARHE -RHE
EREER R ETEET
BHORENSEELND - 2t
EE(TEEREG Z DIRHIEER
FeoZBRRNFREGRREAESE
SE_HAHAESHENEE - HS
REZ_MESMPRARZERE
HERF ©

RZE_EF+A=-_F+hH &
EEEREHTEE  HTEHSE
THENREHTETSHEERIS
BARMESRE _EBEBARKE
1,086,0007T (#8552 1,261,000/
L) o HERHAR S HERIN
THEHESREGN SRS
FME(TEEFE]D - HEEFH
ReERNREHEEELRISHR
BX AEERE_BHARE
i<l E ERREEEME
B o

RZEBE-_—F—AtR HEAR
EIFEEENBREERBESR
HEEBEARLEOHRIE - R
T-—FRA+H ERBER
HEHEBS  RIETEEZEA(BIE
HEAERER  ETEHEA  FE
BERVBITHEEATEARE
BIESI A RESREREABETE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

46. LITIGATION (continued)
(c) (Continued)

The director of the Group assessed that the Default
Interest would have insignificant impact to the
consolidated financial statements. The directors also
considered that as the full amount of the debts claimed
by Yichang Plaintiff 2 are fully provided as liability of
the Group, no additional liabilities are required as at 30
September 2021.

47. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for car
parking spaces. As at 30 September 2021, the portfolio of
short-term leases is similar to the portfolio of short-term
leases to which the short-term lease expense disclosed
in note 22. As at 30 September 2021, the outstanding
lease commitments relating to these car parking spaces is
HK$68,000 (2020: HK$66,000).

48. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group’s capital commitments at the end of the reporting
year are as follows:

46.

47.

48.

Ei Y NE D)
) (&)

AEBEZRLEFHRRBHNE
HRAMBBRRNFELTE
R-BENRR N-FT_—F
NANA=+H EEREZMHRR
MEREBRACERANREN
BESHTIRAR  WLEEM
BEATAR -

ReHaERH

AEGTFHREEVIVEHEE - B
“T-—FNA=+H EHHEERE
HAERGHEERS FENKF22 28
HHEEREAEMRE - RZE=_—FN
A=+H  HAznSEsug@soRkEE
FHERAIEAE68000B (T _TF .
66,000/ L) °

B A&

AEEBRBEFERNEAAENT

2021 2020
—E-—-F —ZEEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Capital expenditure in respect of the HMUTEEZE - BB KR
acquisition of property, plant and MEGRBEAEEEN
equipment, development of systems and BEARMAX
networks
- contracted but not accounted for — BRI HERAR 9,902 9,567
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z-_—FNA=1THIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

49. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

(b)

Related party transactions (a)

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in
these financial statements, the Group had the following
material transactions with related parties during the
year:

40. BB AR Z

BBAE RS

Rz EMBHRRTEMEB Dl
2R REEBRFEREER IR
THEEMT CEARS ¢

2021 2020
—B--fF —E-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Finance costs incurred in respect of loans FtK B —EH B A &5 H
from a senior management personnel of EIEE A B LR 2
a subsidiary and the related parties BEREEZ EM&W$ 257 1,760
Purchase of natural gas from companies [F— BRI SHE
controlled by senior management =N =2 %UZ%(F'EJ
personnel of a subsidiary BERAR 1,590 3,568
Purchase of raw materials from controlled A —fEH B AR ﬁﬁ&%ﬂ%
by senior management personnel of a BABES 2 E8&EQ
subsidiary BE R 451 -
Rent of short-term lease to a non- m— B IEERRR EHE
controlling shareholder HHE 72 =
Sale of natural gas to a company m—HEMB AR SAE R
controlled by senior management BABESZ—HAA
personnel of a subsidiary HERAR (98) (85)
Service and leasing income from a RE—BESEH 2 —ME
company controlled by a director ~aElz R REERA (4,444) =
The related party transactions above also constitute Fat B R 5 M KGEM
connected transaction or continuing connected TRAUE-_FTEMREZ2HER
transaction as defined in Chapter 20 of the GEM PUFEBERS  MAEED
Listing Rules, and the Group has complied with the EFGEMEMRAE—F+EZR
requirement in Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules. F o BERSGZHBRFRIEE
Details of connected transaction are disclosed in X5 |—EREE -
“Connected Transaction” section in the annual report.
Details of guarantees provided by related parties for (b) BBt THMMAEERE ZEITE

bank borrowings granted to the Group are as set out in
note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z-_—4FNVA=+HIFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2021

49. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)  49.

(c) Compensation of key management personnel

The details of remuneration of key management
personnel, represents the emoluments of directors of
the Company paid during the year and set out in note
16(a).

The remuneration of directors and other members of

BEAERZ #)

(c) FEEBAEBZHM

TEERABZHHFBEFA

ENARREEMSE -

FT16(a) °

Rize 9]

FRAESERIZEEBEMKE

key management during the year was follows: ZEET
2021 2020
—E- & ZE-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FETT
Short term benefits X ERE A 1,528 1,509
(d) Amounts due from/(to) related parties (d) FEUW({1)RAEE S FRIE
2021 2020
ZB--§ —T-TF
Name of related party  Relationship Terms HK$’000 HK$'000
)y S BiE R THET FET
Wu Xiachen Son of a director of the Unsecured, interest-free and
Company repayable on demand 1,591 (537)
RER KRA-ZEEZTF BER  2EREEREER
Tang Xia Daughter-in-law of a director of Unsecured, interest-free and
the Company repayable on demand (1,218) (1,145)
nE AR —REEZRE BER  EERRERER
Shanghai Guangda Basic ~ Controlled by a director of the ~ Unsecured, interest-free and
Engineering Co., Ltd Company repayable on demand - (572)
TEBRAERIBERAR BARF-BEFES BER  REREREREE
50. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 50. KABE
Apart from as disclosed in elsewhere in these consolidated BRZEGEVBREEMBOAEESE

financial statements, the Group did not have any other
significant contingent liabilities at 30 September 2021 (2020:
Nil).
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